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CITY OF KENNER 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

E. BEN ZAHN MICHAEL T. WETZEL 
MAYOR CFO 

December 27, 2019 

Honorable Mayor and City Coimcilpersons 
City of Kenner, Louisiana 
1801 Williams Boulevard 
Kenner, Louisiana 70062 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Kenner, Louisiana, for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2019, is 
hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, 
including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all 
material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and operating activities of the 
City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's fmancial activities have been 
included. 

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Fart 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Information related to this single audit, including the Schedule of Ejqjenditures of Federal Aw^ds, 
findings and questioned costs, and auditor's reports on compliance and on intemal controls are included in the single audit 
section of this report. 

CITY OF KENNER 

The City is the largest incorporated area in Jefferson Parish, a submban parish (county) in the New Orleans Standard 
Metropolitan Statistical Area. It is bounded on the north by Lake Pontchartrain, on the south by the Mississippi River, on the 
east by unincorporated Jefferson Parish, and on the west by St. Charles Parish. The map of the City which is enclosed in this 
Introductory Section reflects a total area of approximately 15 square miles. Since 1946, the City has contained the site for the 
New Orleans Intemational Airport. 

Major industries located within the City's boundaries or in close proximity include retail, air carriers, gaming, telephone, 
energy and telecommunications providers, and manufacturing. 

REPORTEslG ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 

The City is a unit of general local government under the Census Bmeau's criteria. It is a home rule charter city incorporated 
under the constitution and laws of the State of Louisiana on July 1,1974. A seven person council and an elected mayor govem 
the City, as reflected in the organizational chart of the City's administrative departments included in this introductory section. 
The City's department directors with the exception of the Police Department, which is governed by an elected chief, report 
to the Chief Administrative Officer who in turn reports directly to the Mayor. 

This report includes government-wide financial statements and fund fmancial statements of the City. The City provides a full 
range of services. These services include police and fire protection; sanitation services; the construction and maintenance of 
highways, streets, and infrastructure; recreational activities; and cultural events. As required by generally accepted accounting 
principles, the fmancial statements of the reporting entity present the primary government (the City) and any component 
units. Component units are defmed as legally separate organizations for which the City is fmancially accountable. The criteria 
used in determining whether financial accountability exists include the appointment of a voting majority of an organization's 
goveming board, the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that organization or whether there is a potential 
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. Fiscal dependency may also 
play a part in determining fmancial accountability. In addition, a component unit can be another organization for which the 
nature and significance of its relationship with the primary government (the City) such that exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

1610 REVEREND RICHARD WILSON DRIVE - KENNER, LOUISIANA 70062 - TELEPHONE: 504-468-4049 
FACSIMILE: 504-468-6632 - WWW.KENNER.LA.US - FINANCE@KENNER.LA.US 



The City has no component units currently. 

THE REPORT FORM 

The authoritative promulgations by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) were applied in the preparation 
of this report. 

Users of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report should also refer to the narrative introduction, over\dew, and analysis 
found in the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) in the financial section of the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Internal Accounting Control 

Management of the City^ is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure fiiat 
the assets of the City' are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to 
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accountmg principles. The internal 
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognizes that; (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the 
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Single Audit 

As a recipient of federal, state, and parish financial assistance, the City also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate 
internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. 
This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management. I believe that the City's internal control 
structure adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 

As a part of the City's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, 
including that portion related to federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the City has complied wifti 
applicable laws and regulations. The results of the City's single audit for foe fiscal year-ended June 30, 2019 are included in 
the Single Audit Section of this report. 

Budgetaiy Control 

In addition, the govemment maintains budgetaiy controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance 
with legal provisions embodied in foe annual appropriated budget approved by foe City's governing body. Activities of the 
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Enterprise Funds are included in foe annual appropriated 
budget. Project-length financial plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. The level of budgetary control (that is, the 
level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the ftmd level, except for the General Fund 
which is at the departmental level. Any amendments to the total budgeted expenditures of a department require Council 
approval. The Mayor can approve changes to the budget within a department, as long as the total is not changed. The 
govemment also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. 

Besides comparing current year expenditures to the prior year, comparison to budget is of paramount importance in a 
govemment's financial reporting. The City Council annually adopts a budget for each govemmental ftmd t^'pe (except capital 
projects are budgeted on a project basis) and proprietary type funds (except for foe Intemal Service Funds). Budgetary 
accounting is not used for the Self Insurance and Health Insurance Intemal Service Funds because management considers 
effective budgetary' control achieved since their amoimts, which are charged back to other funds, are included as expenditures 
in each Fund's budget. Budgets are adopted by June 15 for the fiscal year which begins foe following July 1. Revenues and 
expenditures are budgeted on the modified accmal or accrual basis as appropriate for the ftmd type. Encumbrances of the 
current year are recorded as obligations against budgeted appropriations and are included in the columns titled "budgetary" 
in the statements in the financial section of this report. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

The City's economy has been improving and we expect it to improve. As discussed later in Management's Discussion and 
Analysis, the City's largest revenue source. Sales Taxes, are steadily growing. The construction of a new terminal at the Louis 
Armstrong New Orleans Intemational Airport located in Kenner is a major project which was completed toward foe end of 
calendar 2019. Design of the City's major corridor redevelopment program is complete. These and other potential 
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developments should provide a major boost to the City's economy by creating jobs and generating additional taxes and fees 
in the coming years. We expect these anticipated additional revenues to help the City' keep pace with ever increasing costs. 

LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

As mentioned in this report, the City's economy has been improving and is expected to continue to improve. The City's 
principal source of revenues are Ifom sales and property taxes, which are growing. Major enterprises, such as the airport and 
a casino will continue to contribute to the City's economy. Two large automotive retail outlets opened in the City during the 
year. Other significant retail outlets have recently opened near Laketown and along West Esplanade. Dining establishments 
continue to develop in Rivertown. During the fiscal year, the City moved its Recreation Department into Esplanade Mall. 
Tlie resulting increase in traffic has caused sales taxes generated at the mall to increase. Also, present and planned capital 
development projects will improve the City's outlook. Issuance of debt has been, and will continue to be a source of financing. 

LEGAL COMPLIANCE 

Tlie Uniform Guidance, previously Single Audit Act of 1984 (P. L. 98-502) and related 1996 Amendments, requires reports 
by the Auditors on compliance and on the internal control over fmancial reporting in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards, the City's compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal control over compliance 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. These reports, along with 
the City management's responses to the non-compliance findings, are presented in the Single Audit Section of this report. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

Louisiana municipalities not audited by the Legislative Auditor are required by La. R.S. 24:517 to have conducted annually 
an audit of their accounts by a certified public accountant. Moreover, the City Charter (Section 2:28) requires that die Council 
shall execute a contract each year with a certified public accountant or a firm of certified public accountants for an 
examination of the accounts of the City to mclude all funds appropriated by the Council. These requirements have been 
complied wdth and the opinion of die firm of Duplantier, Hrapmann, Hogan & Maher, L.L.P., Certified Public Accountants 
has been included in this report. 

AWARDS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year-ended June 30, 2018. This was the twenty-second consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. In 
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable 
legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual 
financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

ACKNOWUEDGMENTS 

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service 
of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the department has my sincere appreciation for the 
contributions made in the preparation of this report. 

I would also like to thank the staff at Duplantier, Hrapmann, Hogan & Maher, L.L.P., Certified Public Accountants, for their 
invaluable assistance in completing this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Kenner. 

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Mayor, the Chief Administrative Officer and the City Council, 
preparation of this report would not have been possible. 

Sincerely, 

MICHAEL T. WETZEL 
Chief Financial Officer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

December 27, 2019 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council 
City of Kenner, Eouisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Kenner, Eouisiana, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditor's Responsihility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

www.dhhmcpa.com 

Members 
American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants 
Society of LA CPAs 



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the elTectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental acti\dties, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Kermer, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2019, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplemeutaiy Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Kenner, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The introductory section, the other 
supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, and the stetistical section are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and is also not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 



The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the budget to actual schedules for the 
General, nonmajor Special Revenue Funds, and the Proprietary Funds, the combining Intemal Service 
Fund schedules, the Fiduciary Fund statement of changes in assets and liabilities, the schedule of 
councilperson's compensation, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to the Mayor, 
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underl3dng accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other 
supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductor}'' and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 27, 
2019, on our consideration of the City of Kenner, Louisiana's intemal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and tiie results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Kenner, Louisiana's intemal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Duplantier, Hrapwann, Hogan & Maher, LLP 

New Orleans. Louisiana 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I 



C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

This management discussion and analysis is intended to provide the readers of the Cit5.''s financial statements widi an 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Cit>' for the year ended June 30,2019. It should be read m conjunction 
with die transmittal letter and financial statements including footnotes. 

FINANCIAL fflGHLIGHTS 

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by 
approximately S161.0 million at June 30, 2019. 

The City's net investment in capital assets is approximately SI 83.6 million. The City's restricted net position is approximately 
S26.0 million which is primarily restricted for capital projects and debt service. The City's unrestricted net position is 
approximately S{48.6) million. 

The City's unrestricted net position in govermnental activities is approximately $(40.1) million, which is an increase of $13.9 
million, primarily due to a decrease in expenses in fiscal year 2019, mostly related to current year benefits for its net pension 
liability and other postemployment benefits obligation. Business-t>'pe activities' unrestricted net position is approximately 
S(8.6) million, which is a decrease of $2.0 million, primarily due to a decrease in sewer service charge revenue. 

The City's general fund reported an unassigned fund balance of approximately $16.5 million, which is an increase of S6..5 
million. 

There was no change in the fund balance of the One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 fund or the Fire Protection fund. The General 
Capital Projects fund had an increase in fund balance of $0.5 million while the Capital Projects fiinded with Bond Proceeds 
fund had an increase in fund balance of $0.9 million due to the progression of the 2030 Plan, the Sewerage Capital 
Improvement Program, and other various projects. 

During the year, the City continued to drawdown funds from one low interest loan from LDEQ for additional projects as part 
of the City 's Sewerage Capital Improvement Program. The Sewerage Capital Improvement Program is intended to overhaul 
the Cit\''s sewerage system to address compliance orders from the LDEQ, which frie Cit\' has been under for a number of 
years. 

The City's debt includes $63.4 million of net pension liability, OPEB liability' of $15.0 million, capital lease liability of $0.4 
million, and Compensated Absences of $5.1 million. 

The City's ofrier debt consists ofbonds and notes payable of $87.3 million. During the year, the City made principal payments 
of S4.6 million and received $3.9 million of drawdowms. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANC:iAL STATEMENTS 

The management discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements, which are the 
govemment-wide financial statements, fimd financial statements, and notes to die financial statements. Also included in the 
report is required supplementary information. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements report information about the overall 
finances of the City' similar to a business enterprise. Uie statements combine and consolidate short-term, spendable resources 
with capital assets and long-term obligations. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and deterred outflows of resources, less 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, which results in net position. The statement is designed to display the financial 
position of the City. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets help determine whether die City's financial position is 
improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities provides information which shows how the City's net position changed as a result of the year's 
activities. Tlie statement uses die accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by private-sector 
businesses. All of the revenues and expenses are reported regardless of the timing of when cash is received or paid. 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the City that are financed primarily by 
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and charges for services (governmental activities) from functions where user fees and 
charges to customers help to cover all or most of the cost of services (business-t^'pe activities). The City's governmental 
activities include general government, public safet}.'. public works, culture and recreation, health and welfare, and transit and 
urban development. The business-t>pe activities of the City mclude the City's sewer system and civic center. 

Fund financial statements. A fond is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The city uses fond accounting to ensure and demonstrate fiscal 
accountability. The City uses governmental, proprietary, and fiduciaiy fund financial statements to provide more detailed 
information about the City's most significant funds rather than the City as a whole. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to report most of the City's basic services. The funds focus on the 
inflows and outflows of current resources and the balance of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Governmental fund statements provide a near or short-term view of the City's operations. A reconciliation is prepared of the 
governmental fonds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balances of govemmental funds to the Statement of Activities. 

Eleven govemmental funds are used by the City. The City has five major govemmental funds, which have separately 
presented information in the govemmental fond Balance Sheet, and Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance. The major funds are the General Fund, One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Fund, Fire Protection Fund, General 
Capital Projects Fund, and Capital Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds Fund. The six non-major funds are presented in the 
aggregate in the govermnental fund financial statements. The individual fund information is presented in combining 
statements. 

The City adopts an armual budget for its govermnental funds with the exception of the Capital Projects Funded with Bond 
Proceeds Fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for these funds except for the General Capital Projects 
fonds-

Proprletaiy funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary fonds. Enterprise fonds are used to report the same 
functions presented as business-type acti\ities in the govemment-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds 
to account for its sewer and civic center operations. Internal service funds are an accounting de\ice used to accumulate and 
allocate costs intemally among die City's various fimctions. Tlie City uses internal service funds to account for its health care 
and self-insurance. Because diese services predominantly benefit govemmental rather dian business-tvpe functions, they have 
been included within govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as die govemment-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 
Proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the sewer and civic center, both of which are 
considered major funds of the City. 

Conversely, internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Individual fond data for the internal service funds are provided in die form of combining statements and elsewhere 
in diis report. 

The City also adopts an annual budget for its enterprise funds, and budgetary comparison statements are provided for these 
funds. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciaiy^ funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a tmstee capacity or as an agent for odiers. 
Activities from fiduciary funds are not included in the govermnent-wide fmancial statements because the City cannot use 
these assets for its operations. 

Nofes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional infomiation that is essential to a foil understanding of the 
data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Gk)vernment-wide Financial Analysis 

Net position. The following table reflects condensed information on die City's net position for the current and prior years. 

Condensed Statements of 
Net Position 

June 30, 
(In thousands) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2019 

Assets: 
Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

7L411 
159,270 

230.681 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to pensions. OPEB. 

and bond refunding 

Liabilities: 
Long-term outstanding debt 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

128.313 
14,388 

142.701 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to pensions, OPEB 
and deferred revenue 6,513 

Net position; 
Net investment in 
capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

i29,.549 
9,854 

(40^073) 

2019 

9,287 S 
91.102 

100.389 

34.830 

38.736 

54,030 
16,177 
f8„5561 

Total 
2019 

250.372 

331.070 

17,862 

.6.3,143 
18,294 
n.437 

6,515 

Governmental Business-t>'pe 
Activities Activities 

2018 2018 

183,579 
26,031 

(48^629) 

65,123 S 
161..379 

226.502 

18.967 

140,775 
14.471 

155.246 

3,908 

131,061 
9,213 

(53559) 

99 330 S 61.651 S 160.981 S_ 86.315 S 

103.825 

32,703 
3,570 

36,273 

59,420 
14,777 
(6545) 

Total 
2018 

9,492 S 74,615 
94,333 255.712 

330.327 

18.967 

173,478 
18.041 

191.519 

3,f 

190,481 
23,990 

(60,604) 

67.552 S 153.867 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Changes in net position. The Cit^^'s total revenues and expenses for governmental and busmess-t}^pe activities are reflected 
in the following chart for the current and prior years. 

Changes In Net Position 
June 30, 

(In thousands) 

Govermnenta! Business-type Governmental Biisiness-tvpe 
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total 

2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 
Revenues: 

Piogram revenues: 
Charges for ser\'ices $ 19,128 $ 9.123 $ 28,251 $ 19,616 $ 9,859 $ 29.475 
Operating grants & 

Contributions 4,808 - 4,808 2,781 - 2,781 
Capital grants & 
Contributions 10,775 139 10,914 5.546 984 6,530 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 8,420 564 8,984 8.238 552 8,790 
Sales faxes 36,622 - 36,622 33.733 - 33,733 
Other taxes 10,681 573 11,254 11.106 735 11,841 
Grants & contributions not 

restricted to specific program 30 - 30 36 - 36 
Other 1.275 287 1..562 1.056 223 1.279 

Total revenues 91.739 10.686 102.425 82.112 12.353 94.465 

Progiam expenses: 
General government 12.482 - 12,482 15.358 - 15,358 
Public safety 32,024 - 32.024 35,326 - 35,326 
Public works 25,521 - 25,521 25,194 - 25.194 
Health and welfare 465 - 465 1.118 - 1.118 
Culture and recreation 5,210 - 5,210 7,139 - 7.139 
Transit & urban development 1,367 - 1,367 1.617 - 1.617 
Interest on long term debt 1,9.50 - 1,950 1,902 - 1,902 
Sewei' operations - 11.782 11,782 - 12.132 12,132 
Civic center operations - 2.533 2..533 - 2.796 2.796 

Total expenses 79,019 14.315 93.334 87.654 14,928 102.582 

Change in net position before 
Transfer and Extraordinary 
Items 12.720 (3.629) 9.091 (5.542) (2.573) (S.11.5) 

Gaiii.'(Loss) on disposal of assets 23 (2.000) (1,977) 
Transfers 272 (272) - 319 (319) -

Change in net position 13.015 (5.901) 7.114 (5.223) (2.892) (8.115) 

Net Positiou-beginiiing of vear 86.315 67.552 153.867 106.553 70.444 176.997 

Cumulative eff«:t of change 
in accounting principle - - _ (15.0151 _ (15.015) 

Net position, beginning restated 86.315 67.552 153,867 91.538 

Net position-end of year S 99 330 S 61651 8 160 981 8 86 315 S 67 552 8 153 867 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets as of June 30,2019, for its governmental and business-type activities 
was approximately $250.4 million, net of depreciation as reflected in the schedule below; 

Capital Assets 

(Net of depreciation in thousands) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Land $ 11,593 $ 3,799 $ 15,392 
Works of art 2,160 - 2,160 
Construction in progress 13,960 4,876 18,836 
Capitalized Interest - 376 376 
Buildings 19,960 68,195 88,155 
Improvements other than buildings 8,487 9,935 18,422 
Equipment 6,696 3,921 10,617 
Infrastructure 96.414 _ 96.414 

Total $ 159 270 $ 91 102. $ 2.50 372. 

The majority of the capital additions for the year were for sewerage improvements as the City continued a major program to 
upgrade the City's sewerage system funded with funds loaned from the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality and 
bonds issued and various street improvements. The City also purchased vehicles for several departments and additional 
equipment needed for Public Works activities. For additional information on capital asset activity see note "H" in the Notes 
to the Financial Statements section. 

Long-term debt. At year-end, the City had approximately $171 million in long-term debt as shown in the table below. 

Outstanding long-term debt 
June 30, 2019 
(In thousands) 

Revenue bonds 
Note payable 
Capital lease payable 
OPEB Liability 
Net Pension Liability 
Compensated Absences 

Total 

Governmental 
Activities 

> 48,544 
1,668 
436 

14,956 
63,422 
5.100 

> 134.126 

Business-type 
Activities 

5 37,071 

Total 

85,615 
1,668 
436 

14,956 
63,422 
5.100 

37.071 171.197 

The City's sales tax bonds have an underlying rating of A+by Standard and Poor's. 

The 2011 Sewer bonds have an imderlying rating of A and an insured rating of AA by Standard and Poor's. 

State statutes limit the amoimt of government obligation debt a mimicipality may issue at a maximum of 10% of the assessed 
valuation for any purpose. The maximum may be exceeded if the aggregate issued for all purposes does not exceed 35% of 
the total assessed valuation. The City's outstanding general obligation debt is below the state limit. Approximately $220 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued) 

million of additional general obligation bonded debt is available for issuance. See note "I" in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements section of this report for additional information on the Cit^^'s Long Term Debt. 

Revenues increased by 8.4% during the year primarily due to an increase in sales tax revenue and increased capital grants 
for roadwork associated with the new airport terminal. 

Total expenses decreased due to current year benefits associated with the OPEB and net pension liability calculations, as well 
as close monitoring of department expenses. This was accomplished by extremely aggressive monitoring of the budget. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

General Fund revenues came in 6.2% over budget resulting fiom an increase in tax revenue received. 

General Fund expenditures finished the year 7.3% under budget as a result of the diligent monitoring mentioned previously. 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

Sales tax increased compared to last year. As the City's primary source of revenue, its steady rise is important to a robust 
economy. Since the Recession, the City has had to make budget cuts, rededicate capital funds to operations, and use a portion 
of the City's fund balance to balance the budget as costs have been rising faster than revenues. 

For years, the City has experienced reductions in sales tax generated at the Esplanade Mall. However, many small businesses 
have been opening in Kenner during the past year in conjunction with the newly implemented economic development 
initiatives. Hie City also moved its Recreation Department into the Esplanade Mall during the fiscal year, resulting in 
increased traffic and an increase in sales taxes generated at the mall. Seeds are being planted for future prosperity since small 
businesses are the engine of economic grower. Moreover, die increased airport traffic starting in late 2019 should provide a 
boost to our sales tax base while the last phases of expansion, including a new parking garage, should increase our hotel/motel 
tax revenue. 
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CITY OF KENSm, LOIIIS lANA 
STATEIVIENT OF NET POSmON 

JIINE30,2019 

GOVHLMVIENTAL B15INESS-TYPE 
ACIWTTIES ACnVTIIES TOTAL 

ASSETS 
Cash $ 4,151,091 $ 254,930 : e 4,406,021 

Equity in pooled cash 12,507,573 2,773,274 15,280,847 
Receivables (net, where applicable, of 

allowances foruncoUectibles) 

Taxes 1,479,497 - 1,479,497 

Accounts 3,715,578 - 3,715.578 

hiteigoveminental 8.458.673 451,441 8,910,114 
Special assessments - delinquent 477 - 477 

Interest 1,271,781 - 1,271,781 

Service cliai^ges - 2,418,386 2,418,386 

Other 460,892 31,089 491,981 
Intemal balances 12,822,778 (12,822,778) -
Inventory, at cost 22,412 - 22.412 

Prepaid itene 493,091 - 493.091 

Refiindable deposits - 3,669 3,669 
Restricted assets; 

Cash 10.336.403 16,176,932 26,513,335 

hives tinents 15.690.983 - 15,690,983 

Capital assets not being depreciated 27,713,027 9,050,571 36,763,598 
Capital assets being deprecated, 

net of accumulated depreciation 131,557,163 82,051,264 213,608,427 

Total assets 230,681,419 100,388,778 331,070,197 

Dtl-tKRLDOtiTLOWS OFRESOURCES 
Deferred charge on refunding 112,389 - 112.389 

Related to pensions 17.750.014 - 17,750,014 

Total deferred outflows of resources 17.862.403 - 17,862,403 

LIABIUTIES 
Accounts payable 1,441,086 1,267,656 2,708,742 
&timated claine payable 5,138,535 - 5,138.535 

Accmed liabilities 1,000,924 154.627 1,155.551 

Deposits on fliture events - 242,092 242,092 

Due to other- governments 967,807 - 967.807 
Other liabilities 27.155 - 27,155 

Cunent portion oflong-tennliabilities 

Due within one year 5,812,357 2,242,000 8,054,357 

Non-current liabilities; 
Due in more than one year 128,313,245 34,829,497 163,142,742 

Total liabilities 142,701,109 38,735,872 181,436,981 

DtFtKRED INFLOWS OFRESOERCES 
Deferred revenue 284,457 1.667 286.124 
Related to pensions 4.930.943 - 4,930,943 

Related to OPEB 1.297.981 - 1,297,981 

Total deferred inflows of resources 6.513.381 1,667 6,515,048 

NLl POSmON 
Net investriKnt in capital assets 129,548,648 54.030.338 183,578.986 

Restricted for: 
Capital projects 5,501,686 10,711,822 16,213,508 

Itebt service 3,881,769 5.465.110 9,346.879 

Other 470.422 - 470,422 
Unrestricted (40,073,193) (8,556,031) (48,629,224) 

Total net position $ 99,329,332 $ 61.651.239 : B 160,980.571 

Tlie acconpaiiyiiig notes are an integral pait of this stateinent. 
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CITY OF KEViNUi, 03UISI4NA 
S TATEVIEIST OF ACUVTIIES 

FOR THE YEAR ErsTHDJllNE30,2019 

Program Rewpiies 
Net ^^qiense) Rewnue and 

Net position - end of year 

The acconpanying notes are an integral part of this stateiiKiit. 

$ 99,329,332 $ 61,651,239 

Operadi^ Capital 
Char ges for Gr imts and Grants and Goyernmental Business-type 

Fimctioo/Prograins Expenses Serdces Coud'itaitions Conti'itaidons Activities Acdddes Total 

Governmental Aetiwdes 
General govemnsnt i B 12.481,649 $ 7,125,479 $ 153,839 S 290M5 $ (4.911,486) S S (4,911,486) 
Riblic safety 32,024.036 4,540,654 1,893.624 4.064,099 (21,525.659) - (21,525,659) 
Public works 25,521,327 5.4.30,424 169,596 6,(®0.27.3 (13,841,034) - (13.841,034) 
Health and welfare 465.377 53,565 53,950 - (357,862) - (357,862) 
Qilture and lecieation 5,209.904 1,154,756 2,220.425 - (1,834.723) - (1,834,723) 

Transit and urban developnent 1.366.794 823.233 316.554 339.904 112.897 - 112.897 
Interest on long-term debt 

and other charges 1,949,980 - - - (1,949,980) - (1,949,980) 
Total Governmental Activities 79.019.067 19,128.111 4.807.988 10.775.121 (44.307.847) - (44,307.847) 

Business-type Activides 
Wastewater C^erations 11,781,751 7.770,473 - 116,266 - (3,895.012) (3,895.012) 
Civic Center Operations 2.533.012 1,352.263 - 22,671 - (1,158.078) (1,158,078) 

Total Business-type Activities 14.314.763 9,122,736 - 138,937 - (5,053.090) (5,053,(M)) 

Total ; B 93,333,830 $ 28.250,847 S 4,807,988 $ 10,914.058 (44,307,847) (5,0.53,090) (49.3«),937) 

General Revenues 
Tares: 

Ad valorem 8.419.900 564.211 8,984.111 
Hotel'iiiotel 202,958 I%,869 399.827 

Sales and use 36,622,373 - 36.622,373 
Beer tax 60.711 - 60.711 
Parking 3.236.930 - 3,236,930 
Franchise 7,180,721 375,944 7.556,665 

Qants and contributions not restricted to specift: prograns 29,933 - 29,9.33 
hiterest 944.943 287.953 1,232,896 
Miscellaneous 328.814 - 328,814 
Gam/(Loss)on disposal of capital assets 22,500 (1.999,959) (1.977,459) 

Transters 271,986 (271,986) -
Total general revenues, transfer's, and other 57.321,769 (846.968) 56,474,801 

Qtange in Net Rrsition 13,013,922 (5,9(K),058) 7.113,864 

Net position - beginning of year 86,315.410 67,551,297 153,866,707 

160.980,571 
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CITYOFKElS^'iK, LOOSIANA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVEIilSMENTAL FENDS 

JLNE30,2019 

Assirre 

Cash 

Equity ill pooled cash 

lovesfiiients 

Receivables (net, where applicable, of 

allowances ibruncoUectibles) 

Ta?«s 

Accounts 

Inteigovemnental 

Special assessments -delinquent 

Interest 

Other 

Due from other funds 

Inventory, at cost 

. iteiiB 

GINIRAL 

3.293,504 

816,030 

1.479,497 

2.647,775 

4.219,286 

477 

1,270.426 

137.319 

25,040.335 

22.412 

493.091 

ONE PERCENT 

SALES TAX 

OF 1984 

2.247,639 

310.733 

FIRE 

PROTECTION 

17,8.53 

197,931 

254,831 

201 

687.787 

Total assets 39,420.152 S 2,558,372 1.158.«33 

UABILmES: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued liabilities 

Due to other funds 

Due to other governments 

Other liabilities 

Totalliabilities 

874.595 

615.106 

13,625.210 

967.807 

27.155 

16.109.873 

2,558.372 

2,558.372 

30.717 

181.552 

319.166 

531.435 

DEFERRED INTLOWS OFRESOLRCES 

Lnavailable revenues 1,561.760 627.1 

EITSD BALANCES; 

Nonspendable 

Piepaid iteus 

Inventory 

Restricted 

Federal grants 

Caphal projects 

Law Eofoicemeut 

Other coimnitnKuts/encuniirauces 

Assigned 

Subsequent yeafs ejqjenditures 

Unassigued 

Total fiind balances 

493,091 

22,412 

339,272 

2,442,361 

367,188 

1,573,848 

16,510,347 

21,7^,519 

Total liaUlities, defeiied Inflows of resources, 

and fund telances 

39.420,152 S 2.558,372 1.158,^3 

HK acconpanyiigifotes are an mtepnlpait oftliB statement. 
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CENTRAL 

CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

ETNEEDWITH 

BOND PROCTIDS 

OTHER 

<X)\TRNME?N'TAL 

FUNDS 

TOTAL 

GO\TRN!VIENTAL 

RINDS 

9.669.538 

3,567,163 

1,218.085 

15,690,983 

6,817,766 

786,067 

13,678,433 

12,507.573 

15.690.983 

1,067.772 

1,355 

322,280 

11.904.786 2,590.739 

869,872 

669,145 

1,092 

566,683 

1,479,497 

3.715.578 

8,458,673 

477 

1,271,781 

460,892 

41,101.063 

22.412 

493,091 

22.965.731 23,066.970 9,710,625 98,880.453 

357.499 

3,637,195 

3,994,694 

52,487 

2,824,547 

2,877,034 

125,785 

56,425 

1.696,855 

4.879,065 

1,441,083 

853,083 

27,661,345 

%7.807 

27.155 

30,950,473 

412,841 438.144 3.039.913 

493,091 

22,412 

93.340 18,680,680 

470,422 

3,881,769 

470,422 

3,881.769 

19,113,292 

2,442,361 

18.877.697 1,096,415 20.341.3iX) 

18.971.037 19,777,095 

41,225 

4,39.3,416 

1,573,848 

16,551,572 

64.890.067 

22,965.731 23,066,970 9.710,625 3,453 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Funi balances - total govemn^nlal fliixls S 64,890,067 

Amomts reported for govemnKntal activitks in the statement of net positfon 
are diflerent because: 

Capital assets, net, used in govemn^ntal activities are not financial resoiffces 
and, theretbre, are not reported in the governmental fimds. 159,270,190 

Deferred outflows of resources rekted to pensfons are applicable to fiitiffe 
reporting perfods and, therefore, are notreported iithe governmental fimds 17,750,014 

Internal service fimds are iwed by management to charge the costs of 
insurance to indivklual fimds. The assets and liabilities of the internal 
service fimds are incliKled in governmental activities in the statement of 
net position. (4,946,417) 

Certain revemies will be coltected afier year-end, bittare not avaikble soon enough to pay 
for the current period's expendffures and, therefore, are deferred in the fimds. 2,755,456 

Deferred infcws of resources rekted to pensions are applicabb to fiiture reporting 
periods and, thercforc, are not reported in the govemnKntal fimds. (4,930,943) 

Deferred mflows of resources rekted to OPEB are applicable to fiaure reporting 
periods aifo, therefore, are notreported in the governmental fimds. (1,297,981) 

Loi^-tenn Ikbilitfes, including bonds payable, are not dm and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the 
governmental fimds. 

Accrued interest payable (147,841) 
OPEB payable (14,956,393) 
Conpensated absences (5,099,690) 
Bonds, notes, and loans payabfe (net of premiimB, discoimts, and deferred charges) (50,099,364) 
Capital fease liability' (436,157) 
NetpetKfonliabilit>^ (63,421,609) 

Net posftion of govemn^ntal activities S 99,329,332 

The acconpammg notes are an integral part of this staten^nt. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISL4N A 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOWRNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

Debt service 

Principal 

Interest and fiscal charges 

Agent fees 

Miscellaneous 

ONE PERCENT 

SALES TAX FIRE 

GENERAL OF 1984 PROTECTION 

REVENITS 

Ta^s $ 29,033,718 $ 12.836,164 S 5,859,017 

Licenses and permits 5,018.406 - -
In tergovemmental 1,876.469 - .374.918 

Qiarges for services 1,398,437 - 448 

Fines and foiteituies 2,211.169 - -
hiteresr 153.359 - S449 

Miscellaneous 0)7.948 - 375 

Total revenues 40,299.506 12,836,164 6,240.107 

EXPENDmiRES 

(iriTent; 

Ciueral government 10,183,042 - -
Public safety 20,553.365 - 9,626.176 

Public worfa 4,987.607 - -
Health and welfere 133,264 - -
Culture and recreation 3,629.605 - -
Transit and urban developnKut 483. UK - -

Total e^enditures 39,%9,989 9,626,176 

E?s:ess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) e^enditmes 329.517 12.836,164 (3,386,069) 

OTHER FINANCINGS CIRCES (IBES) 

Proceeds fromsale ofpiopeity 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

11,927.347 

(7,567.271) (12,836,164) 

3.386.069 

Total other financing sources and uses 4..360.076 (12,836,164) 3,386.069 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning of year 

Fund balances - end of year 

4,689,593 

17.058.926 

21,748,519 $ 

The accon^janying notes are an integral part of this statenKiU. 
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GENERAL 

CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

FUNDED WITH 

BOND PROCEEDS 

OTHER 

GO\TIL\MENTAL 

ELNTIS 

TOTAL 

GOAERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

7.463.523 

115.040 

994,737 

2,115.978 

490,229 

599,616 

283,232 

3,12L5«) 

106.672 

55.119,890 

5,018,406 

12,114,120 

4,520,445 

2,211,169 

870.649 

2.202,676 

8.573.300 3,205.823 10,902.455 82.057.355 

1,093,186 

427,136 

8,307.686 

23,916 

599,910 

310.222 

.818.993 6,272,909 

383,548 

565.068 

11,276,228 

30,606,677 

22,387.195 

540,728 

4,229,515 

1.358.396 

129,626 

14.694 

152. 

2,895,134 

1,804,483 

36,aX) 

3.024,760 

1,819,177 

152,690 

36.000 

10.906,376 2.971,683 11,957,142 75.431,366 

(2.333,076) 234.140 (1,054,687) 6.625.989 

22,-500 

3,577,020 

(740.140) 

683.028 2,532,366 

(879,028) 

22,-500 

22,105,830 

(22,022.603) 

2.859,380 683.028 1,653,338 105.727 

526.304 917.168 598.651 6.731.716 

18.444.733 18,859.927 3,794,765 58.158.351 

S 18,971,037 $ 19.777,095 4,393,416 64.890,067 



CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Net chan^ in fimd balances, total govemiTKntal funds $ 6,731,716 

Amounts reported for govemirtental activities in the statement of activrties are dilferent because; 

Governmental fitnds report capital outk^^s as expenditures. However, in tte statement of 
acth^es tlie cost of ttose assets is albcated over their estimated useliil fces and reported 
depreciation expense: 

Capital outkv^ 10,790,959 
Depreciation expense (15,059,987) 

Certain govemir^ntal revenues wiH not be collected for several montlis after year-end and 109,228 
are deferred in the gxvemmental fitnds. 

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds, notes, etc.) provides current financial resources to 2,944,942 
gov^mrrKntal fiinds, while the repayment of the princpal of long-term debt consumes the 
tlie current financial resources of governmental ftmds. Nefther transaction, however, lias any 
efect on iKt position Also, govermiKntal finals report the efect of premiunB, discounts, and 
simiiar itenK when debt B issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
in the statement of acthities. This amoxmt is the net efiect of diese differences in the treatment 

of long-term debt and rekted items. 

Interest on long-term debt in the statercent of acthities di&rs fi^omthe amotmt reported in 8,078 
the governmental lunds because interest is reco^iized as an expendrture in the fimds when 
it B due, and thus requires the use of current financkl resources. In the statement of 
activities; however, interest e.'pense is reco^iized as the interest accrues, regardless of 
when it is due. 

Pension beneft (expense), which is the chaise in the net pension IkbUily adjusted for changes (1,790,665) 
in deferred outflows and inflows of resources rekted to pensions, is reported in tlK statement 
of activities. 

The Cfo^s proportionate slmre ofnomenployer contributions to the pension plans are reported 1,499,185 
in the statement of acthitfes. 

Payment of corrpensated absences is reported as expenditures in the governmental fimds when 34,180 
actually paid. However, on the statement of activities conpensated absences are exqxensed 
as tlwy are accrued. This is the clmn^ in the conpensated absences Ikbility. 

OPEB beneft (expense), which is tte clmnge in the OPEB liability adjusted for changes in 5,347,181 
in deferred outflows and inflows of resources rekted to OPEB, is reported in flie statement 
of activities. 

Contracts for long-term capital lease obligations provide current financkl resources to 129,626 
govemiTKntal fiinds, while payn^nts on capital lease obligations consume current financkl 
resources of governmental fiaids. Neither Uansaction, however, has any effect on net position. 
This is tire change in the capital lease Ikbiky. 

Donations of works of art are not reported in tte govemnKntal fimds. However, the v^hie 
of the works of art is reported in the statement of activities. 2,160,128 

Internal service fimds are used by management to charge the costs of insxorance to individual 
fimds. The net rev'erate (e.'pense) of internal service fimds are reported with govemnKntal 
activities. 109.351 

Change in net position of governmental acth/fties $ 13,013,922 

The acconpanying notes are an integral part of this stateii'^nt. 
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CIT\' OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTITTTIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

GOVERNMENTAL 

DEPARTMENT OF cmc ACTIMTIES 

WASTEWATER CENTER INTERNAL 

OPERATIONS OPERATIONS TOTAL SERMCE FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Casli ! $ $ 254,930 : > 254,930 0
0

 
o
 

Equity' in pooled ca sh 2,740,458 32,816 2,773,274 -

Receivables (net, where applicabb, 

of allowances foruncoUectibfes) 

Intergovenmientai 152,218 299,223 451,441 -

SeivTce charges 2,323,036 93,350 2,418,386 -

Otlier - 31,089 31,089 -

Due from other funds 100,765 - 100,765 -

Restricted cash 16,176,932 - 16476,932 

Refundable deposits 3,669 - 3,669 -

Total cunent assets 21,499,078 711,408 22,210,486 809.061 

Noncmrent assets: 

Capital assets: 

Land - 3,798,726 3,798,726 -

Buildings and improvements 132,040,679 20,209,078 152,249,757 -

In^rovements otlier than 

buildings - 2,490,052 2,490,052 -

Furniture and fixtur es 13,319,446 4,988,350 18,307,796 -

Veliicles and field equipiiKiit 1,745,088 - 1,745,088 -

Capitalized interest 375,919 - 375,919 -

Construction in progress 4,875,926 - 4,875,926 -

Less: accumulated dep'eciatioii (74,546,543) (18,194,884) (92,741,429) . 

Total capital assets, net 77,810,513 13,291,322 91,101,835 

Total noncmrent assets 77,810,513 1331,322 91,101,835 

Total assets : $ 99,309,591 $ 14,002,730 ; S 113,312,321 $ 809,061 

fContiniied) 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Bl SINESS-TYTE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

DEPARTMENT OF 
WASTEWATER 
OPERATIONS 

CIVIC 
CENTER 

OPERATIONS TOTAL 

GOYURNMENTAL 
ACTIYTTIES 
INTERNAL 

SERYTCE FUNDS 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilitKs: 

Accounts payabfe 
Estimated claims payabfe 
Accrued liabilitfes 
Accraed bond interest 
Deposits on future events 
Due to otlier funds 
Bonds payabfe 

$ 1,115,826 

109,333 

12,788,399 
2242,000 

$ 151,830 : 

45,294 

242,092 
135,144 

$ 1267,656 

45,294 
109333 
242,092 

12,923,543 
2242,(XX) 

$ 
5,138,535 

616,943 

Toral current liabilities 16255,558 574.360 16,829218 5,755,478 

NONCUTIRENT LIABILITIES 
Bonds payable 34,829,497 34,829,497 

Toral noncurrent liabilities 34,829,497 34,829,497 

Toral Ikbilities 51,085,055 574.360 51,659,415 5,755,478 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOUTICES 1.667 1.667 

NET POSITION 

Net iivestment in capital assets 
Restricted for capitalproiects 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

40,739,016 
10,711,822 

5,465,110 
(8.691,412) 

13291,322 

135.381 

54,030338 
10,711,822 

5,465,110 
(8.556,031) (4,946,417) 

Total net position $ 48,224,536 $ 13,426,703 : E 61,651,239 $ (4,946,417) 

The accompanying notes are an integral pail of this sfatement. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REWNUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUNT) NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

DEPARTMENT OF 
WASTEWATER 
OPERATIONS 

CIMC 
CENTER 

OPERATIONS TOTAL 

GOATRNMENTAL 
ACTIATTIES 
INTERNAL 

SERVICE FUNT)S 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for services $ 7,770,473 $ 1,352,263 : 6 9,122,736 $ 5305,805 

Total operating revenues 7,770,473 1.352.263 9,122,736 5305,805 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Sipplks and other expenses 
Ruilding and maintenance exj^nses 

Outside seivkes 

Public works 

Insurance claiins 

Instuance premnims 

Depreciation 
Other 

20,781 
70.090 

6,773,489 

113,675 

4,046,288 
22.535 

3,631 
513317 

1322,413 

58,735 

617,004 
17,912 

24,412 
583.407 

8,095,902 

113,675 

58,735 

4,663,292 
40.447 

129,655 

613,793 

5,248,567 

Total operating e}q)euses 11.046.858 2,533,012 13.579.870 5.992.015 

Operating foss (3,276,385) (1,180,749) (4,457,134) (86,210) 

NON-OPERATING REVENTES 
(EXPENSES) 

Ad valorem taxes 

Hotel/motel taxes 

Cable tefe\Tsi0n franchise fees 

Loss on disposal of assets 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

564,211 

(1,999,959) 

287,129 
(734,893) 

196,869 

375,944 

824 

564311 

196,869 

375,944 

(1399,959) 

287,953 
(734,893) 

6,802 

Total non-operating revenues 

(expense) (1,883,512) 573.637 (1309,875) 6,802 

Loss before caufributions and 
transfers (5,159,897) (607,112) (5,767,009) (79,408) 

Capital contributions 

Transfers out 

Transfers in 

116,266 
(467,986) 

196.000 

22,671 138,937 
(467,986) 

196.000 188.7.59 

Change in net position (5,315,617) (584,441) (5,900,058) 109,351 

Net position - beginning of year 53.540.153 14,011,144 67.551.297 (5,055,768) 

Net position - end of year $ 48,224,536 $ 13,426,703 : 6 61,651,239 $ (4346,417) 

The accoinpanyiiig notes are an integral pait of this statenient-
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FI NDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

BI SINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

DEPARTMENT OF CI\TC 

WASTEWATER CENTER 

OPERATIONS OPERATIONS TOTAL 

GO\T;RNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

INTERNAL 

SERVICE FUNDS 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 

ACTIMTIES; 

Recepts from customers 

Payments to suppfers 

Internal acthoty - payments (to)/from other fiuKk 

Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities 

8 J 19,697 

(6,595,659) 

i.i93.471 

2.717.509 

1,385.945 

(2,057.178) 

(67U33) 

9,505,642 

(8,652,837) 

1,193.471 

2,046.276 

5,905,805 

(6,089,627) 

(183,822) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 

FINANCING ACTI\TTIES: 

Ad vabrem faxes 

Hoteliiiotel taxes 

Cable television francliise fees 

Internal activity - payments to other funds 

Net cash provided by 

noncapital financing activttes 

564,21: 

564,21: 

260,134 

376,573 

636,707 

564,211 
260,134 
376,573 

1,200,918 

330,001 

330,001 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

IntergovernnKntal 

Capkali^d interest 

PaynKiits on bng-term debt 

Proceeds from bng-term debt 

Interest paid on bng-term debt 

Purchases of capital assets 

Net cash provided (used) by capital 

and rebted finaiicmg activities 

(18,213) 

(1,715,000) 

3,873,496 

(738,176) 

(3,184,963) 

45,559 45,559 

(18,213) 
(1,715,( 

3,8 

(738,176) 

(3,275,430) 

(1,782,85 (44,908) (1,827,764) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVTSTING 

ACTI\TTIES: 

Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by 

investing activiies 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

and cash equivatents 

Cash and cash equivabnts, beginning of year 

287.129 

287.129 

1,785,993 

17,131,397 

824 

(78,610) 

366.356 

287.953 

287,953 

1,707,383 

17,497,753 

6,802 

6,802 

152,981 

656,080 

Cash and cash equivabnts, end of year 18,917,390 287.746 $ 19,205,136 $ 809,061 

(Conthiued) 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

BUSINESS-TYPE AC^TIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FIJNDS 

DEPARTMENT OF CI\TC 
WASTEWATER CENTER 
OPERATIONS OPERATIONS TOTAL 

GOWRNMENTAL 
ACTIVTTIES 
INTERNAL 

SER\TCE FUNDS 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position: 
Cash 
Restricted cash 
Ecpjit)'' in pooled cash 

16,176,932 

2J40,458 

>54930 

32,816 

254,930 
16,176,932 

2,773,274 

Net effect of noncash actmties _$ 

The acconpanying notes are an integral part of tliis statement. 

309.061 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 18,917,390 $ 287,746 $ 19205,136 $ 809,061 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by (used for) operating activities: 

Operating income (bss) $ (3,276,385) $ (1,180,749) $ (4,457,134) $ (86210) 

Adjustments to reconcile operatiug income (bss) 

to net cash provided by (used for) 
operatii^ actMties; 

De|Heciatbn 4,046288 617,004 4,663292 -
Change in current assets and current liabilitKs: 

Decrease (increase) in receivables 349,224 (11,433) 337,791 -
Decrease (increase) in cite from other funds (22,129) - (22,129) -
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses - - - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 404,911 (144,880) 260,031 -
Increase (decrease) in accrued labilities - 3,710 3,710 -
Increase (decrease) in estimated claims payabfe - - - (97,612) 

Increase (decrease) in due to other fiinds 1,215,600 - 1215,600 -
Increrase (decrease) in deferred revenue - 1,667 1,667 -
Increase (decrease) in deposits on future events - 43,448 43,448 -

Total adjustments 5.993,894 509.516 6,503,410 (97.612) 

Net cash provkted by (used for) 
operating activities $ 2,717,509 $ (671,233) $ 2,046276 $ (183,822) 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 

Contiibutbns of capital $ 116,266 $ 22,671 $ 138,937 $ -
AcquisihoiK of propeit}-'. plant and 

equ|)meut through capital contributbns (116266) (22,671) (138,937) -
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIAN A 
STATEMENT OF FIDIJCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCYFUND 
JUNE 30, 2019 

AIRPORT 

SALES TAX 

FUND 

ASSETS 

Equity in pooled cash $ 3 

Receivables (net, where applicable, of 

allowaiice foruncoUectibles) 

Intergoveminental 423,087 

Total assets $ 423.090 

LXABIUIIES 
Due to other governments $ 423,090 

Total liabilities $ 423,090 

The acconpan^ing notes are an inte^al part of this stateirent. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

City of Kenner, Louisiana's (die "City") system of government is established by its Home Rule Cliarter which became effective 
in 1974. The City operates under a mayor-coimcil form of government. The financial statements of City of Kenner, Louisiana 
have been prepared in conformit\' with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as 
applicable to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) promulgates accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and reporting standards for state and local governments. The principles are 
found in the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, published by GASB. The more 
significant of die Cit}-''s accounting policies are described below. 

1. REPORTING ENTITY^ 

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including organizations as 
component units within the City's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of Governmental 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, include whether: 

the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name) 
the City holds the corporate powers of the organization 
the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 
the Cip,^ is able to impose its will on the organization 
the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City 
there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the City of Kermer has no component units. 

Hie Police Chief is an elected official elected by the citizenry in a general, popular election. The City Council approves the 
annual budget for the Police Department and dedicates portions of the City's revenues to hind this department- The Police 
Department is not legally separate, and. therefore, is a function of the primary government and its operations are reported as a 
part of the City's General Fund. 

2. GOVERNMENT-WTDE AND FUND FINANCLAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wade financial statements (i.e.. the statement of net position and die statement of activities) report 
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. Interhmd services provided and used are not eliminated m the 
process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given hmction or segment is offset by 
program revenues. Direct expenses are those friat are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Certain indirect 
costs are included as part of the program expenses reported for individual functions and activities. Interest on long-term debt 
is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the statement of activities. Program revenues include: I) 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given flmction or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements 
of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead 
as genera! revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for govemmental funds, proprietaiy funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the 
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the frind financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciaiy fund financial statements (except agency funds which do not have a 
measurement focus). Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless 
of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE A - SUM^L4RY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

3. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using tlie current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as tliey are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered 
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this puipose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of tlie end of tlie current fiscal 
period. Federal giant revenue is considered avarlable if collected within 150 days after fiscal year" end. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incuiTed, as under accmal accouiitmg. However, debt service expenditures, other posteinployment 
benefits, compensated absences, claims and judgments, and pension costs are recorded only when pajnnent is due. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise raxes, beer taxes, parking taxes, and certain state shared revenues 
such as tobacco taxes, parish transportation funds, and video poker monies. Property taxes are recorded as defened inflows of 
resources if measurable, but not available. Sales taxes collected and held by intermediary collecting governments at year-end on 
behalf of the City government also are recognized as revenue. Fines and pemiits are not susceptible to accrual because generally tliey 
are not measurable tmtil received in cash. Federal and state grants are recorded as deferred inflows of resources if measurable but not 
available. Revenues from rentals and leases are recorded when earned. Income on deposits, cash equivalents, and investments is 
recorded when measurable and available. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the 
govermnent and are recognized as revenue at tliat time. 

A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized 
as an outflow of resources (expenditure/expense) until tliat future time. 

A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position tliat applies to a friture period and therefore will nor be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that future time. 

The City reports tlie following major governmental funds; 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fimd. It accounts for all financial resources and expenditures of tlie general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fimd. 

The One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Fund accounts for the proceeds of sales taxes generated by a 1 percent sales tax increase. These 
fimds are to be used to fimd a municipal homestead exemption, police protection, and various other city services. 

The Fire Protection Fund accounts for the proceeds of ad valorem taxes which are specifically dedicated for tire functions performed 
by this fund. 

The General Capital Projects Fund accounts for projects originally frmded by the General Fund and the Department of Wastewater 
Operations Fund. Also included are projects funded by riverboat fees as well as Community Development Block Grants. 

The Capital Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds Fund accounts for projects frmded by the 2013A Series Bond proceeds. Also 
included are projects funded by loans from tlie Louisiana Depailrnent of Environmental Quality' (LDEQ) and the Louisiana Local 
Government Enviiomnental Facilities. 

The City reports tlie following major enterprise fimds: 

The Department of Wastewater Operations Fund accoimts for the sewer services provided to tlie residents of tlie City of Kemier. 

The Civic Center Operations Fund accounts for the operations of the Pontchartrain Civic Center. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE A - SUM^L4RY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

3. MEASUREMENT FOCUS. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
(CONTINUED) 

Tlie City reports one fiduciary fund, whicli is an agency fund and it accounts for assets held by tlie City as an agent for otlier 
governmental entities. 

The Airport Sales Tax Fmid (agency fund) is used to account for the proceeds of sales taxes generated from a special 2% sales tax 
assessed within the Airport Taxing District, and to distribute to the appropriate taxing bodies. This fund is custodial in nature and 
does not involve measurement of results of operations. Accordingly, it presents a statement of fiduciary assets and liabilities and a 
statement of changes in assets and liabilities. The agency ftmd is reported in tlie financial statements on the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fond t\pes: 

Internal service funds account for healtli insurance and self-insurance (automobile, property damage, worker's compensation) 
provided to other departments or agencies of tlie City on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 
2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues ratlier tlian as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary fimds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in coimection with a proprietary fluid's principal 
ongoing operations. Tlie principal operating revenues of tlie Department of Wastewater Operations Fmid, Civic Center Operations 
Fund, and the City's internal service frtnds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise fonds and internal 
service fimds include tlie cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When botli restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then 
imrestricted resources as they are needed. 

The City reports uncollected revenue on its goveiiimental fimd balance sheet as defened inflows of resources. Uncollected revenue 
arises when potential revenue does not meet botli the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. 
Deferred inflows of resomees also arise when resomees are received by the City before it has a legal claim to them, as when gi'aiit 
monies are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria 
are met, or when the City has legal claim to the resources, the defened inflows of resources for unavailable revenues are removed 
fiom the governmental fond balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 

4. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control device and budgets are legally adopted at the fimd level, except 
for the General Fund for which appropriations are adopted at the department level. Budgets are included as either required 
supplementary information or other supplementary information for tlie following fimds: 

General Fund 

Special Revenue Fimds 
One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 
Community Development Block Grant 
Garbage Collection and Disposal 
Streets and Drainage 
Fire Protection 

Debt Service Funds 
General Debt 
Ad Valorem Tax Bonds 
Firemen's Pension Merger 
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NOTE A - SUM^L4RY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED) 

Enteiprise Funds 
Department of Wastewater Operations 
Civic Center Operations 

Budgetary data for the Capital Project Funds are not. presented since these fimds are budgeted over the life of tlie respective project 
and not on an annual basis. Budgetary accounting is not used for the Internal Service Funds (Self Insurance and Health Insurance 
Funds) because management considers effective budgetary control achieved since then amoiuits, which are charged back to other 
iiiiids, ar"e included as expenditures in each Fund's budget. 

Expenditures may nor exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level, except for the General Ftmd which is at the departmental 
level- Appropriations lapse at year-end. 

Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Enterprise Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in tlie year of incurTence of 
tlie cormnitment to piirchase. 

5. CASH, INVESTMENTS, AND POOLED ASSETS 

The City maintains three cash pools as follows: 

a. General Pool - maintains cash balances for all funds except the paving assessments and sewerage assessments funds. 

b. Paving Assessments Pool - maintains cash balances for the General Fund and Debt Service Fimd. 

c. Sewerage Assessments Pool - maintains cash balances lor tlie General Fimd and Debt Service Fund. 

The City follows the practice of pooling cash of all funds except for Internal Service Ftmds and restricted fimds due to Trust 
Agreements and Bond Indenture Agreements. Total cash of the Pool is reported in all ftmds as "Equity in Pooled Cash". Fimds witli 
a negative Equity in Pooled Cash report the advance as an interfund payable and the General Fund, which has been determined to be 
the receivable fimd by management, reports an offsetting interfund receivable. Interest earned on pooled cash is allocated to each 
individual fund based on its month end "Equity in Pooled Cash". 

The entire cash balances in the General Pool Cash accoimt, the Capital Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds, the General Capital 
Projects Fund, and the Enterprise Ftmds are invested in interest bearing bank accounts. Interest is allocated among funds in the General 
Pool Cash account on tlie basis of ending monthly cash balances. The balances not needed for transactions in tlie otlier accounts are 
deposited in individual money market fimds earning interest at market rates; minimal checks can be written on these accounts. 

For the pmpose of tlie statement of net position, cash includes all demand and money market accounts of the City. For the purpose of 
tlie proprietary fimds statements of cash flows, all highly liquid investments (including "equity in pooled cash") with rnatiiritv' of tliree 
months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. 

The C ity is autliorized imder state law to deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized imder tlie laws of the State of Louisiana, 
the laws of any other state in tlie United States, or laws of the United States. Under state laws, these deposits must be secured by 
federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. State Law R.S. 39:1225 provides tliat the amount 
of the security shall at all times be equal to 100% of the arnomit on deposit to the credit of each depositing authority, except that 
portion of tlie deposits insured by any governmental agency insuring bank deposits, which is organized under the laws of the United 
States. 
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NOTE A - SUM^L4RY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

5. CASH, IN\'ESTMENTS. AND POOLED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Stare Law R.S. 33:2955 allows tlie investment in direct United Stares Treasury obligations; bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence 
of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies or U.S. government instrumentalities, which ai"e federally sponsored; direct 
security repurcliase agreements of any federal book entry only securities guaranteed by the U.S. government; time certificates of 
deposit of any bank domiciled or having a branch office in tlie state of Louisiana; savings accounts or shares of certain savings and 
loan associations and savings banks; certain accoimts of federally or state chartered credit imions: certain mutual or frast fund 
institutions; certain guaranteed investment contracts; and investment grade commercial paper of domestic United States corporations. 

6. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 

During tlie course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual fimds for goods provided or services rendered. 
These receivables and payables are classified as "due fi'om other lunds'' or "due to other fimds". Interfimd receivables and payables 
between fimds within govenimental activities are eliminated in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding 
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal 
balances". 

7. im^ENTORIES 

The inventory of materials and supplies acquired by the goveiimiental funds is accounted for under the pmchase method. The 
inventory of parts for veliicle maintenance is accounted for under the consmnptiori method. All inventories are recorded in the 
General Fimd at cost, determined by tlie first-iu, first-out metliod. 

8. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets, which include land and land improvements, works of art, buildings, improvements other than buildings, vehicles, 
furniture, fixmres and equipment, and infirastnrctiire assets (streets, roads, bridges, canals, and sewer and drainage systems), are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities coluimis iir the govenimeirt-wide finaircial statements. 

Capital assets are defined by tlie City as assets witli an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated life in excess of 
two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constnicfed. Donated capital assets 
are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Capital assets received in a service concession arrangement ai"e reported at 
acquisition value rather than fair value. Major additions are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incuixed during tlie 
constniction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of tlie assets constnicted. 

In tlie fimd financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accoimted for as capital outlay expenditures 
of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fimd operations are accomited for in the business-type 
activities colmnn in the government-wide financial statements. 

The costs of nomial maintenance and repairs tliat do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend assets' lives are not 
capitalized. 

Depreciation on all capital assets, excluding land improvements and constniction in progress, is calculated on tlie stiaight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Descrintion Asset Life (Years) 

Buildings and building improvements 40 

Street system 20 to 40 

Drainage system 25 

Office equipment 5 to 12 

Machinery and equipment 10 

Vehicles 5 

40 to 80 

Sewerage system 10 to 50 

Improvements other than buildings 10 to 30 
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NOTE A - SUM^L4RY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

The City has a policy to capitalize any intangible assets which exceed S50,000 in accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standai'ds Board Statement (GASBS) No. 51, "'Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets". 

10. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Vacation (animal leave) and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when earned. Accumulated annual leave and vested sick leave as of tlie 
end of the fiscal year is valued using employees' cun ent rates of pay and the liability for these compensated absences is recorded as 
long-teiin debt in the goverament-wide financial statements. 

In the fund financial statements, tire governmental funds report a liability for compensated absences for the amoimt tliat has matured 
as a result of employee resignations and retirements. The govermneiit-wide financials report the total acciunulated unpaid annual and 
sick leave on tlie statement of net position and the statement of activities. 

11. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

In the goverament-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other 
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary 
fund type statement of net position. Bond and loan premiums and discoimts ar e defeixed and amortized over tire life of the bonds or 
loans using the effective interest metliod. Bonds and loans payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 

Noncurrent liabilities include estimated amounts for accrued compensated absences, other poslemployment benefits, net pension 
liabilities, and capital lease obligations tliat will nor be paid witliin tlie next fiscal year. 

For purposes of measuiing the net pension liability, defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, 
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of theMmiicipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS), Mmiicipal 
Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS), and Firefighters Retirement System (FRS) and additions to/deductions 
fiom MERS, MPERS, and FRS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MERS, MPERS, 
and FRS. For tliis purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance witli benefit terais. Investments are reported at fair* value. 

Liformation relating to the City's otlier postemplo).ment benefits obligation, deferred inflows and deferred outflows of resomces, and 
otliei" post employment benefits expense, was calculated by the Cit>''s actuary, Lewis and Ellis, Inc. 

In the fund financial statements, goveramental fund types recognize bond premiums and discotmts. as well as bond issuance costs, 
during tire current period. The face amomit of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt 
issuances are reported as otlier financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other fmancing uses. Issuance 
costs, whether or not witlilield firoin the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

12. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 

In tlie goverament-wide financial statements, net position comprises the various net eaniings from revenues and expenses. Net 
position is classified in tlie following components; 

a. Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other" borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of tliose assets. 

b. Restricted net position - consists of net positions with constr aints placed on the use eitlier by (1) external gr oups such as 
creditors, grantors, contr ibutors, or la"ws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law througli constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position - all other net positions that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital 
assets". 
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NOTE A - SUM^L4RY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

12. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

In llie fund fmancial statements, fund balance is classified in the following components: 

a. Nonspendable - amounts tliat are not in spendable forai (such as inventory and prepaids) or are required to be maintained 
intact. 

b. Restricred - amounts constrained for specific purposes by tlieir providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of 
govermneiit). through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 

c. Committed - amounts constrained for specific pmposes tliat are internally imposed by the City Council itself, using its highest 
level of decision-making authority tlirotigli an ordinance. To be repoiled as committed, amounts cannot be tised for any otlier 
purpose unless tlie City Council takes the same higliest level action to remove or change tlie constraint. 

d. Assigned - amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose tlrat are neither considered restricted iror committed. Inteirt 
can be expressed by tire City or by an official or body to which tire City delegates the authority. Under tlie City's policy, the 
Mayor and City Council may assign amoimts for specific purposes and the City Council can approve. 

e. Unassigned - the residual amoimt of fimd balance which does not fall into one of the other components. Positive aniotmtsare 
reported only in tire general fimd. 

When an expeiidituie is incurred for purposes for which both restricred and muestricted fimd balance is available, the City considers 
restricted funds to have been spent fir st. Wlien an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balance are 
available, the City considers amomits to have been spent first out of committed fimds, then assigned fimds and finally unassigned 
funds, as needed, imless the City has provided otherwise in its coimnitment or assigned actions. The Cit>' does not have a fonnal 
inininuim fund balairce policy. 

13. INTERFUND SERVICES 

Interfund services are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses. Interlund services that constitute reimbm'sements to a 
fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it tliat are properly applicable to another fimd, are recorded as 
expenditiues/expenses in tlie reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditiues/expenses in tlie fund that is reimbiused. 

All other interfimd sendees are reported as transfers. 

For tlie purposes of the statement of activities, all interfund transfers between individual govermnental funds have been eliminated. 

14. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accoimting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions. Those estimates affect tlie reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosm e of assets and liabilities at the date of tlie financial statements. They may also affect the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses of proprietary fimds and the government-wide financial statements during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from these estimates. 

15. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the following statement was implemented: GASH Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures 
Related to Debt, Including Direct Bon-owings and Direct Placements. This statement improved the information that is disclosed in 
notes to governmental financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which 
liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. The following GASB statement was also 
effective but did not impact the financial statements of the City of Keimer, Louisiana; GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset 
Retirement Obligations. 
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16. PREPAID ITEMS 

Piepaid items are recorded in the year tlie experiditmes are accmed using the consumptiou method. 

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

1. BUDGETARY PROCEDURES 

The procedures used by the City in establishing tire budgetary data reflected in the financial statements are as follows; 

a. On or before May 1 of each year, tlie Mayor recommends to the City Council proposed operating and capital budgets for 
the ensuing fiscal year. The budget is prepared by fund, department (for the General Fimd), fimction, and object, and includes 
information on the past year, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year. 

b. The proposed budget is summarized and advertised and, by June 15, public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer 
comments. 

c. The operating budget is then legally adopted tlirough council ordinance by June 15. 

d. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amoimts within ftinds, except for the General Fund which is at the 
departmental level; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a fimd or depaitment in the case of tire 
General Fund must be approved by the City Council. 

2. BUDGETARY' COMPARISON 

The budget data reflected in the schedtiles of revemies, expenditures, and changes in fimd balances - budget and actual includes the 
effect of such appropriation amendments approved by tlie City Council during the current year. These amendments may 
reappropriate designated and/or reserved funds rolling forward from tlie previous year as well as amend tlie distiibutioris of operating 
funds aheady appropriated. 

Budgetaiy comparison information is required to be presented for the general fimd and each major special revenue fimd with a 
legally adopted budget. The City adopts annual operating budgets for the general fimd and all special revenue fimds. The major 
special revenue funds are One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Fund and the Fire Protection Fund. Since accounting principles applied 
for the piuposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ from tliose used to present financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a reconciliation of tlie resulting basis and timing differ ences in the net change in 
fund balances for the year ended June 30, 2019, is presented as a note in required supplementary information. 

NOTE C - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits 

At. June 30, 2019, the City of Kenner has cash (book balances) totaling $46,200,203 as follow^s: 

Goveminental Funds: 
Money market funds $ 2,652,145 
Demand deposits 23,529,621 
Petty cash 4,240 

Propiietaiy Funds: 
Hiterprise Funds: 

Petty cash 500 
Demand deposits 19,204,636 

Internal Service Funds: 
Deiiand deposits 809,061 

$ 46.200.203 

38 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE C - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Deposits (Continued) 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in tlie event of a bank failiue, tlie City's deposits niiglit not be recovered. The City's deposit 
policy for custodial credit risk conforms to state law, as described in Note A. At June 30, 2019, the City's demand deposits and 
money mai'ket funds bank balances of $46,232,442 were entirely secured by federal deposit insurance, pledged securities held by 
the City's agent, and by letters of credit. 

Restricted cash and investments 

Certain assets of the Wastewater Fund, the Debt Service Funds, and tire Capital Projects Funds ai"e classified as restifcted assets on 
tlie statement of net position because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants and they are maintained in separate bank 
accoimts. 

Investments 

Custodial credit risk is defined as tlie risk that, in tlie event of failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value 
of its investment. The City is not exposed to custodial credit risk at. Jime 30, 2019, since the investments are held in the name of tlie 
City. The City's investment policy conforms to state law, as described in Note A, which has no provision for custodial credit risk. 

Concentration of credit risk relates to the amount of investments in any one entity^ At June 30, 2019, the City had no investments in 
any one entity wliicli exceeded 5% of total investments, except obligations of government-sponsored entities, which ar e implicitly 
guaranteed by the federal government. 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fail' value of an investment. The City's 
investment policy confonns to state law, which does not include a policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

As required by GASB 72, investments are reported at fair value. Fan value is described as an exit price. GASB 72 requires a 
govermnent to use valuation techniques that are appropriate under the circumstances and for wliich sufficient data is available to 
measure fair value. Valuation teclmiqiies maximize tlie use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
GASB 72 also establishes a hierarchy of inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value, which has three levels. Level 1 
inputs are quoted prices (imadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted 
prices, included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, whetlier directly or indirectly. Finally, Level 3 inputs are 
unobservable inputs, such as management's assumption of tlie default rate among underlying mortgages of a mortgage-backed 
security. This statement requires disclosure to be made about fan value measurements, tlie level of fair value hier archy, and valuation 
techniques. These disclosures are organized by type of asset or liability. All of the City's investments are classified in Level 1 of the 
fair value hierarchy and are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. 

As of June 30, 2019, tlie City had tlie following investment in debt securities: 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 

l£ss Cieater 

InvestnKiit Tvoe Fair Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10 

Obligations ofCjovemn^nt-

Sponsored Bitities $ 15,690,983 $ 14,688,672 $ 1002311 $ - $ 

Credit risk is defined as the risk tliat an insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The City invested 
only in obligations of federal agencies or federally sponsored entities in the amoimt of$15,690,983, which are ratedAAA by Moody's. 
The type of investments allowed by state law ensures tliat the City is not. exposed to credit, risk. 
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NOTE D - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH 

A reconciiiatioii of rotai equity in pooled cash is presented below. 

Equity in Pooled Cash 

Cash 

Total Equity in Pooled Cash 

Equity in Pool 

General Fund 

Sales TaxFund 

Fire Protection Fund 

Ehteiprise Funds 

Agency Fund 

Internal Service Funds 
Consolidated (^neral Capital Projects 

Consolidated Capital Projects w/Bond Proceeds 

Nonmajor Govemrrental Funds 
Total Equity in Pool 

Paving Sewerage 

General Assessments Assessments 

Pool Pool Pool 

S 14990,086 $ 284888 $ 5,876 

542,683 

17,853 
2.773.274 

9,669,538 
1,218,085 
768,650 

14.990.086 

267.471 

17.417 

14,990,086 $ 284,888 $ 5,876 

5.876 

$ 284888 5,876 

Total 

15,280.8-50 

15,280,8-50 

816,030 

17,853 

2,773.274 

3 

9,669,538 

1,218,085 

786,067 
15,280.850 

Daily operations may occasionally result in minor deficiencies in individual allocations of pooled cash which are resolved by 
temporaiy interfmid loans. 

NOTE E - ALLOWANC E FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

An allowance for estimated uncollectible receivables is established based on historical collection experience and other relevant 
circumstances. The allowance for estmiated imcollectibles at June 30, 2019, consists of llie followins amounts: 

General Fund 

Proprietary Funds: 

Department of Wastewater Operations 

992.031 

56,755 
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NOTE F - SALES TAX 

A sales tax of 9.7% for the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30. 2019, was collected on purchases in the City of Kenner (food and 
drugs are taxed at a 6% rate, and hotel/motel rooms at a 9% rate). Of the 9.75% total, 5.0% is levied by the state and 4.75% by 
Jefferson Parish, for itself and other local government subdivisions within the Parish. The following table for parish taxes lists the 
effective year of each authorized tax rate, tlie Parish-wide tax rate (which includes ^6% retained by the Parish), tlie rate collected for 
tlie benefit of the Jefferson Par ish School Board, and the rare collected for tlie benefit of the City of Kenner. 

Effective Parish-Wide School City 
Date Rare Board Rate Rare 

1954 1% V:% b'2% 
1966 1% ^'2% V:% 
1980 V2% '/2% 
1981 V'2% - V'3% 
1984 1% - 1 
1993 b2% V'2% 
1994 ^/4% - ^/4% 

TOTAL 4 ^,/4% 2% 2 Vi2% 

The Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office (a separate reporting entity) collects all parish taxes, except on motor vehicle sales, and retains 
9.5 to 11% as a collection coimnission on the share going to local governments. The state collects parish taxes on motor vehicle sales 
and remits them back to the parish of registration. 

The Sheriff prorates tliis motor vehicle tax back to the municipalities in proportion to the sales tax collected witliin each mmiicipality. 
Taxes due on sales in a month must be remitted by the merchants to tire Sheriff by tire 20th of the following month. The Sheriff 
distributes tliese collections to the local governments approximately 30 days later. 

NOTE G - AD VALOREM TAX 

The ad valorem tax on real property is levied as of November 15th of each year. The tax becomes an enforceable lien on the property 
on tlie first day of the month following the filing of the rax rolls by the Assessor witli tlie Louisiana Tax Commission (usually 
December 1 st). The tax bills are mailed by the City in mid-November and are due upon receipt. The taxes become delinquent on 
January 1st in tlie year after levy. The taxes are levied on property values deteimined by tlie Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office. All 
land and residential improvements are assessed at 10% of their fair market value and other property at 15% of its fair market value. 
Ad valorem faxes are levied (per $1,000 assessed value) in varjdng amounts for maintenance and operation, debt service and capital 
improvements for the City. The number of mills levied for 2018, which are collected and reported as revenue for the fiscal year ended 
Jime 30, 2019, is as follows; 

2018 
Fund MDXS 

City of Kenner MunicipalTax S 1.97 
(^rbage Collection 1.52 
Fire Protection 7.01 
Sewerage, Collection and Treatment 1.08 
Acquiring, Construction, In^troving and 
Maintaining Public Streets 5.59 

Total S 17.17 
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NOTE H - CAPITAL ASSETS 

1. Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

June 30,2018 Additions Reductions 
Conpleted 

Constraction June 30.2019 
Gowrnmental Activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated; 
Land $ 10,092,578 $ 1,500,320 $ $ $ 11,592,898 
Works of art - 2.160.128 - 2,160,128 
Construction-in-progres s 8,602,737 8.517.081 (3,159,817) 13,960,001 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 18,695,315 12.177.529 (3,159,817) 27,713,027 

Capital assets being depreciated; 
Buildings and building iirproveinents 58,815,574 - 148,115 58,963,689 
Inprovements other than buildings 13.563.099 107.793 180,081 13,850,973 
Street system 283,709,516 - 1,745,026 285,454,542 
Drainage system 376,595,686 - 67,808 376,663,494 
Furniture, foauies, and equ^irent 20.991.732 237,882 - 21,229,614 
Vehicles 15,785,779 427.883 1,018,787 17,232,449 
Bridges 4.283.102 - - 4,283,102 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 773.744.488 773..558 3.1.59,817 777,677,863 

June 30,2018 Additions Reductions 
Conpleted 

Constmction June 30,2019 
Less accuimilated depreciation for; 
Buildings and building inprovenents 37,894,572 1.108.895 - 39,003,467 
In|)rovenKnts other than buildings 4,605,820 758.373 - 5,364,193 
Street svstem 216,578,347 4,839,133 - 221,417,480 
Drainage system 340.086.580 6,883,087 - 346,969,667 
Fumiture, fi.Nures, and equipirent 17,284,621 463.734 - 17,748,355 
Vehicles 13.129.218 888,354 - 14,017,572 
Bridges 1.481.555 118,411 - 1,599,966 

Total acctmmlafed depreciation 631.060.713 15.059.987 646,120,700 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 142.683.775 (14,286,429) 3,159,817 131,557,163 

Governmental activities capital 
assets, net $ 161,379,090 $ (2,108,900) $ $ $1.59,270,190 
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NOTE H - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

June 30.2018 
Cbirpieted 

Additions Reductions Constiiiction June 30.2019 
Business-Type Activities 
Capital assets not bein 
T and 

Capitali^d interest 
Constmction-in-progress 

$ 3,798,726 
357,706 

2,504,510 

S 
18,213 

3,323,899 

S - S 

(952,483) 

S 3,798,726 
375,919 

4,875,926 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 6.660.942 3.342.112 (952,483) 9.050.571 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and building inprovements 
Iirprovements other than buildings 
Fumiture, fixtures, and equipment 
Vehicles 

138,039,023 
23,894,989 
18.254,528 

1,745,088 

37,200 
53,268 

(8,183,888) 952,483 130,807,618 
23,932,189 
18.307,796 
1,745,(^8 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 181,933,628 90,468 (8.183,888) 952,483 174.792,691 

Less accmnilated depreciation for: 
Buildings and building inprovenients 
IrrproveiiKnts other than buildings 
Furniture, flNmes, and equpnient 
Vehicles 

67,147,974 
11.309,302 
14,393,817 
1.410,971 

1,648,398 
2.687,953 

277,144 
49,797 

(6,183,929) 62,612,443 
13.997,255 
14,670,961 
1.460,768 

Total accunulated depreciation 94.262,064 4.663,292 (6.183,929) 92.741,427 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 87,671,564 (4,572,824) (1,999,959) 952,483 82,051,264 

Business-t).pe activities capital 
assets, net $ 94.332,506 S (1.230,712) S (1.999,959) S S 91.101,835 

During the year ended June 30, 2019. the City incurred a loss on disposal of capital assets totaling $1,999,959 in business-t}'pe 
activities due to the demolition of Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2. The City completed construction of a new Wastewater 
Treatment Plant during tlie year ended June 30. 2018. 

Dur ing the year ended June 30, 2019, tlie City received a donation of various works of art which was recorded at an appraised 
value of $2,160,128. The works of art are not being depreciated because they do not have a detenninable useful life. These works of 
ail are held for public exhibition. 
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2. Depreciation expense was cliarged to functions/prograins of the City as follows: 

Governmental activities; 

Qjiieral government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Qiltiue and recreation 

Health and w^elfare 

318J21 

1,153,274 

12,370,609 

1,181,076 

36,307 

Total depreciation ejqjense - governmental activities S 15,059,987 

Business-type activities; 

Wastewater Operations 

Civic Center Operations 

4,046,288 

617,004 

Total depreciation ejqjense - business-type activities S 4,663,292 

3. Construction in progi'ess for governmental activities is comprised of the following: 

Authori^tion Emended to Future 

June 30,2019 June 30,2019 Committed Financing 

General govemment 

Public safety 

Public works 

Health and weUkre 

Culture and recreation 

Total 

733,658 

15,716,977 

711.453 

17,162,{ 

50,779 

13,528,456 

380,766 

13,960,001 

2,188.521 

330,687 

3,202,087 

2.188.521 

330,687 

.202.087 
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NOTE I - LONG-TERM DEBT 

1. GENERAL OBLIGATION, SPECIAL TAX, AND EXCESS REVENUE BONDS 

Long-tenn debt at June 30, 2019, includes the following serial bonds and loans; 

Final 
Interest Maturity Anwimt Amount Aii»unt 
Rates Date Authorized Incurred Outstanding 

Governmental Activities 
Sales TaxBonds, 

Series 2013 2m-5-0(P/o 6/1/2033 40,980.000 $ 40,980,000 S 32,745.000 
LDH5 loan. Sewer Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2009-
Direct Boixowing 0.95% 11/1/2030 22,000,000 22.0CK),(X)0 14,988,822 

Fiieu^n's Pension Meiger 
Payable #1 XOCTls 3/27/2029 1,190,000 1,190,000 665,973 

Fkenen's Pension Merger 
Payable #2 7.00% 3/27/2029 1,770,738 1,770,738 1,002,248 

Total 
Giveinmental Activities $ 65,940,738 $ 49,402,043 

Business-Type .Activities 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2011 3.00-5.0(B-6 11/1/2036 16,000.000 $ 16,000,000 S 13,180.000 
LDH5 loan. Sewer Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2012-
Direct Boixowing 0.95% 11/1/2034 21,000,000 2LOCK),(X)0 17,600,0)0 

LDEQ loan. Sales Tax 
Bonds, Series 2015-
Direct Borrowing 0.95% 6/1/2037 15,000.000 6,582,497 6,291.497 

Total 

Business-Type Activities $ 43,582,497 $ 37,071,497 

Total Bonds $ 109,523,235 $ 86,473,540 

2. FIREMEN'S PENSION MERGER PAYABLE 

Li March 1998, the required tliree-fourtlis vote of the active and inactive members approved tlie pension merger with tlie Fiiefighters 
Retirement System ("FRS"). Approval of tlie merger was received liom the FRS and the Joint Retirement Committee. The City 
Council approved tlie merger in December 1998 and signed an agreement witli FRS on March 25, 1999, regarding the payment of 
tlie merger liability. The final merger liability as of March 27,1999, was $14,050,233, which represented 60% of the accrued liability 
for active employees. $6,301,446, and 100% of tlie accmed liability for retired employees, $7,748,787. The Fund transferred assets 
in the amoimt of $11,130,143 to the FRS to pay tlie merger liability. The value of tlie transferred assets for purposes of the merger as 
discomited fiom the date of receipt to the merger date of March 27, 1999, at the system's actuarial valuation interest rate of 7% was 
$11,089,495. The remaining liability of $2,960,738 plus interest at tlie rate of 7% per annum was assumed by the Cit).' of Kemier to 
be paid over 30 years. 

The City has split the liability to be amortized into two components as follows: 

$1,190,000 of the liability is payable monthly at a rate of 7%. No interest was capitalized; interest incmxed and expensed during the 
year was $52,582. At Jime 30, 2019, tlie merger payable for this component had a total outstanding balance of $665,973. 

$1,770,738 of the liability is payable amiiially at a rate of 7%. No interest was capitalized; interest incurred and expensed dmlng tlie 
year was $74,903. At. June 30, 2019, the merger payable fortius component, had a total outstanding balance of $1,002,248. 

The funding necessary to seivdce tliis merger payable is provided by the dedication of the fire insurance tax received from tlie State 
of Louisiana. There are no events of default with these notes. These notes were paid off with a refinancing in tlie fiscal year ending 
.Time 30. 2020. 
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4. SALES TAX RE\'^NUE REFUNDING BONDS SERIES 2013 

On August 6, 2013, the City issued $40,980,000 of Series 2013 Sales Tax and Refmiding Bonds to a) constnict, acquire and equip 
public improvements for the City; and b) currently refund the outstanding Series 2003 Bonds. No interest was capitalized; interest 
incurred and expensed during the year was $1,496,719. As of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance of this loan was $32,745,000. 
The new bonds bear interest fiom 4.0% to 5.0% and are due in aiinual installments ranging from $75,000 to $3,045,000 tluough 
.Time 1, 2033. The new issue will reduce debt service payments for the City by $174,050 with an economic gain of $890,880 or 
6.863%. The City has pledged a dedication of sales rax revenue as collateral for tliese bonds. The City will be in default if it fails to 
pay principal or interest when due, or fail to comply with any bond covenants for 30 days after notice of failure. The Authority or 
Tmstee may take wliatever action necessary to collect the amounts do and theieaftei' become due. The City would also pay any 
attorney fees or other costs associated with collection. In the event of default, the Authority or Trustee may declare all payments 
plus a breakage fee iimnediately due and payable. 

The reacquisition price in the refimding of the Series 2003 bonds by the Series 2013 bonds was $160,556 more than tlie net carrying 
value of the bonds. This difference is reported in the statement of net position of the accompanying financial statements as a deferred 
ainomit which increases bonds payable. The defened ainomit is being amortized as a reduction of interest expense tlirough fiscal 
year 2033 using the straight-line method. The deferred amount remaining at June 30, 2019 was $809,710. 

5. SEWER REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2011 

On September 15, 2011, the City issued $16,000,000 of Series 2011 Sewer Bonds to provide for the planning, construction, 
improvement, maintenance, operation and fimding of improvements to the City's wastewater collection, treatment and disposal 
system. Interest paid dming the year was $584,375. Of this amount, $18,212 was capitalized; the remaining amount was expensed. 
As of Jime 30, 2019, the outstanding balance of this loan was $13,180,000. Net revenues from the operation of the wastewater 
system were pledged as collateral for these bonds. The City will be in default if it fails to pay principal or interest when due. In tlie 
event of default, the owners of the bonds shall be entitled to exercise all riglits and powers for which provision is made imder 
Louisiana law. 

6. LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY LOAN 

In 2009, the City executed a loan agreement with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (the "LDEQ") for the puipose 
of providing fimding for the rehabilitation of the sewer system within tlie City. Tliis loan is classified as direct bonuwing. The LDEQ 
Taxable Sewer Bonds Series 2009 authorized a loan amount of $22,000,000 with an interest rate of 0.95%. As of June 30, 2019, 
$14,988,822 was outstanding. The City has drawn a total of $22,000,000 through Jime 30, 2019. Total interest and administrative 
lees paid during the year ended Jmie 30, 2019, were $69,873 and $77,637, respectively. Any revenues available to tlie City for the 
debt seivice payment, excluding sales taxes, are pledged as collateral for the loan. The City will be in default if it fails to pay principal, 
interest or administrative fees when due. In tlie event of default, the LDEQ has the right, to take any action permitted or required 
pursuant to tlie agreement and take whatever other action necessary to collect the amounts then due. 

In 2012, tlie City executed another loan agreement with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quahty (the "LDEQ") for tlie 
pmpose of providing fimding for the rehabilitation of the sewer system within the City. Tliis loan is classified as duect bonuwing. 
The LDEQ Taxable Sewer Bonds Series 2012 authorized a loan amoimt of $21,000,000 with an interest rare of 0.95%. As of .Time 
30, 2019, $17,600,000 was outstanding. The City has drawn a total of $21,000,000 rhrougli June 30, 2019. Total interest and 
administrative fees paid during tlie year ended Jime 30, 2019, weie $81,482 and $90,535, respectively. Interest capitalized was $1; 
the remaining amount was expensed as incurred. Net revenues fr om the operation of the wastewater system are pledged as collater al 
for tliis loan. The City will be in default if it fails to pay principal, interest or administrative fees when due or comply with any bond 
covenants for 30 days after" first notice of default. In the event of default, the LDEQ has the right, to take any action permitted or 
required pursuant to tlie agreement and take whatever other action iiecessaiy to collect tlie amoimts then due. 

In 2015, the City executed another loan agreement with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quahty (the "LDEQ") for tlie 
purpose of providing fimding for the rehabilitation of the sewer system within tlie City. This loan is classified as dir ect borrowing. 
The LDEQ Taxable Sales Tax Bonds Series 2015 authorized a loan amomit of $15,000,000 witli an interest rate of 0.95%. As of June 
30, 2019, $6,291,497 was outstanding. The City has drawn a total of $6,582,497 through June 30, 2019. Total interest and 
administrative fees paid during the year ended June 30,2019, were $16,326 and $18,139, respectively. Sales fax revenue was pledged 
as collateral for this loan. Tlie City will be m default if it fails to pay principal, mterest or administrative fees when due. In the event 
of default, the LDEQ has the right to take any action permitted or required pursuant to the agreement and take whatever other action 
necessary to collect the amounts then due. 

Interest incun'ed was $753,106 for business-type activities, and the amount capitalized was $18,213. Interest expense of $734,893 
was included as a direct expense of the wastewater operations. 
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7. CAPITAL LEASE 

Oil Sepreniber 15, 2017, the City entered into a iease-purciiase finance agreement with a vendor for veiiicles mider a five year capital 
lease. The original net present value of this capital lease was $672,594, with a conespoiidiiig interest rate of 2.90%. Under the terms 
of tlie agreement, the titles of the vehicles may be turned over to the City at tlie conclusion of the lease, if the City exercises its 
pui'chase option. The vehicles, valued at $672,594, are included in capital assets. 

8. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

General 

All employees, except police and fire employees, earn sick leave at the following rates: 

Full time employees: 1 day/montli not to exceed 12 days/yeai" 

Regular part time employees: '/i day/month nor to exceed 6 days/year 

Employees earn annual leave in varying amounts according to years of service as follows: 

Seivice (years) Amount 

Full time employees: 
0-5 1 day/monlli 
5-10 1 day/month 
over 10 2 days/month 

Regular part time employees: 
0-5 '/2 day/month 
5-10 74 day/month 
over 10 1 day/month 

Employees can take their aimual leave as soon as it is accrued. Annual leave not used by December 31 of the calendar year is 
detennined for each employee. Employees retain all annual leave up to a maximum of 45 days to be paid upon separation of seivice 
or may be used in lieu of sick leave once sick leave has been exhausted. This cariy forward time is not available to be taken as amiual 
leave in future periods. Amiual leave is payable upon separation of seivice. Sick leave is accumulated without time limitation and is 
payable up to a maximum of 90 days upon retirement or deatli. 

hi accordance witli Statement No. 16 of the Governmental Accoimling Standards Board, "Accounting for Compensated Absences," 
an additional liability is recorded for salary related payments associated witli the fiitme payment of compensated absences. Such 
salary related payments consist of the City's portion of Medicare tax expense. 

Fire Department 

Firefigliters receive 18 days of annual leave after one year of service. Alter 10 years of service, employees receive one additional day 
of annual leave for each additional year of service up to a maximmn of 30 days per year. Vacation time not used by December 31 is 
lost. 

Firefighters receive 720 hours of sick leave when they join tlie Department. No additional hours are earned. At retirement, the 
employee is paid for any unused sick leave up to a maximum of 90 days. In addition, firefigliters can receive 365 days of sick leave 
with medical detennination. 

Police Department 

Pohce persoimel earn annual leave in varying amounts according to years of seivice as follows: 

Seivice (years) Civil Service Amomit 
0-1 Year 0 Days 
1-10 Years 15 Days 
10-20 Years 20 Days 
Over 20 Years 25 Days 
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S. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (CONTINUED) 

Police Depaitment (Continued) 

Non-civil seivice employees earn annual leave as previously detailed for general employees of the City. 

These hours are accrued on January 1 st and are for use only in tlie calendar year. Hours not taken by December 31 st are lost. If an 
employee terminates employment, he or she is paid lor tlie annual leave remaining on the books. 

Pohce persoimel earn sick leave at the ibllowing rates; 

Full time employees: 
Regular part time employees: 

8 hours/month not to exceed 12 days (96 hours)/year 
day (4 hours)/month not to exceed 6 days (48 hours)/year 

Upon retirement, employees are entitled to receive pay for accrued, unused sick leave days up to a maximum of 90 days. 

The General Fund, CDBG Ftmd, Streets and Drainage Fimd, and the Fire Protection Fimd have typically been used in prior years to 
liquidate the liability for compensated absences, net pension obligation, and other postemployment benefits. 

9. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a surnmaiy of long-tenndebt transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 2019: 

Governmental Activities: 

SatesTax 

Revenue Bonds 

Note Payable 

LDEQ loan, Sewer Revenue 

Bonds, Series2009 - Direct 

Borrowing 

OPS Liability (Note 0) 

Net Pension Liability (Note P) 

Capitallease liability 

Compensated Absences 

Total 
Governmental Activities 

Business- Type Activities: 

Sewer Revenue Bonds 2011 

LDEQ loan, Se'«er Revenue 

Bonds2012- DirectBonovy-ing 

LDEQ loan, Sales Tax Bonds 

2015 - Direct Borrowing 

Total 

Business- Type Activities 

Balance 

6/30/2018 

35,312,546 

1,786,356 

16,065,822 

21,551,927 

66,085.930 

565.783 

5,133,870 

Issue or 

Additions 

Paymentsor Discount/ Balance 

Expenditures fPremiumi 6/30/2019 

Net of 

Unamortized 

Premium 

6/30/2019 

Due Wthin 

One Year 

S 1,700,000 5(57,836) 
m,135 

33.554,7tt $ 32,745,000 $ 1,770,000 

1,668,221 1,668,221 118,211 

1,146,060 

9,515,574 

1,435,353 

1,077,000 - 14,988,822 

7,741,594 - 14,956,393 

12,179,895 - 63,421,609 

129,626 - 436,157 

1,469,533 - 5,099,690 

14,988,822 

14,956,393 

63,421,609 

436,157 

5,099,690 

1.086,000 

133,436 

2,704,710 

$ 146,502.234 $ 12.096,987 24,415,783 5(57,836) $ 134,125,602 $133,315,892 $5,812,357 

$ 13,685.000 S 

18,614,000 

2,614.002 3.873,495 

505,000 5 

1,014,000 

«6,000 

$ 13,180,000 $ 13,180,000 $ 520,000 

17,600,000 17,600,000 1,024,000 

6,291,497 6,291,497 698.000 

$ 34,913,002 5 3,873,495 3 1,715,000 5 $ 37,071,497 5 37,071,497 $2,242,000 
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10. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Tlie aoiiual requirements to maturity for sales tax bonds as of June 30, 2019, are as foEows: 

Year Ending, 
June 30, Principal Interest 

2020 S 1,770,000 $ 1,428,719 
2021 1,840,00) 1,357,919 
2022 1,930,000 1,265,919 
2023 2' 
2024 2,095,00) 1,103,443 

2025-2029 11,730,000 4,259,306 
2030-2033 11,350.000 1,435.719 

32,745,000 S 12,020,444 
Plus a)nd Premium 809,710 

Net EkbtSer\6ce Requirement S 33,554,710 

The aimual requirements to maturity for the Firemen's Pension Merger Payable as of June 30, 2019, are as follows; 

Year Ending, 
June 30, Principal Interest 

2020 S 118,211 S 111,574 
2021 130,890 106,813 
2022 140,174 97,529 
2023 150,117 87,586 
2024 160,765 76,937 

2025-2029 968,064 196,697 
I^bt Service Requirement $ 1,668,221 S 677,136 

The annual requirements to maturity for the LDEQ Taxable Sewer Bond Series 2009 as of June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Year Eliding, 

June 30, Principal Interest 

2020 $ 1,086,000 $ 65,006 
2021 1,094,000 60,101 
2022 1,103,000 55,158 
2023 1,112,000 50,174 
2024 1,121,000 45,150 

2025-2029 5,739,000 148,979 
2030-2031 3,733,822 19,915 

Debt Service Requirement S 14,988,822 $ 444,483 
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10. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Tlie aoiiual requirements to maturity for tlie Sewer Revenue Bonds Series 2011 as of June 30, 2019, are as follows; 

June 30, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

2025-2029 
2030-2034 
2035-203? 

Debt Service Requirement 

ftincipal 

520,000 
535,000 
555,000 
570,000 

3,305,000 

4,115,000 
1 

Interest 

569,000 

553,175 

536,131 

517,494 

497,181 

2,114,006 

1,279,031 

229,000 
6.295,018 

The annual requirements to maturity for the LDEQ Taxable Sewer Bond Series 2012 as of June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Year Biding, 
June 30, Principal Interest 

2020 $ 1.024.000 $ 76,8% 
2021 1,034,000 72,266 
2022 1,043,000 67.592 
2023 1.0.53.000 62,876 
2024 1,063,00) 58,115 

2025-2029 5,4^,000 217.564 
2030-2034 5,734,000 91.544 

2035 1,180,000 2.655 
Requirement S 17,0)0,00) S 649,508 

The amiual requirements to maturity for the LDEQ Taxable Sales Bond Series 2015 as of Jime 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Year Ending, 
June 30, Principal Interest 

2020 $ 698,000 $ 29,423 
2021 704,000 26,424 
2022 711,000 23,256 
2023 718,000 20,057 
2024 724,000 16,826 

2025-2028 2,736,497 34,438 
: Requirement $ 6,291,497 $ 150,424 

The loan has not been fiilly disbursed as of Jime 30, 2019. The amiual future payments will change once all of the loan proceeds 
have been received. 
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iO. CHANGES [N LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Future payments for the capital lease agreement as of June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Year Biding, 

June 30, Principal Interest 

2020 $ 133,436 $ 10,884 

2021 137,357 6,963 
2022 141,394 2,926 
2023 23.970 84 

436.157 $ 20,857 

11. COMPLIANCE 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in compliance with all 
significant limitations and restrictions, including federal arbitrage regulations. 

NOTE J - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 

A sununar}^ of interfund transfers at June 30,2019, are as follows: 
Transferin: 

General Capital Projects Department of Internal 

General Capital with Bond Fire Nonmajor Wastewater Service 

Fund Projects Proceeds Protection Governmental Operations Funds Total 

TransferOut: 

GeneralFund $ - $3,577,020 $ - $2,657,892 $ 1,143,600 $ - $ 188,759 $ 7,567,271 

One Percent Sales Tax 

of 1984 Fund 11,927,347 - - 728,177 180,640 - - 12.836,164 

Fire Protection .... . . . 

GeneralDebt ..... 196,000 - 196,000 

GeneratCapitalProjects .... 740,140 - - 740,140 

NonmajorGovemmentai - - 683,028 - - - - 683,028 

Capital Projects Funded with 

Bonds Proceeds .... . . . 

Department of Wastewater 

Operations .... 457,986 - - 467,986 

Total $11,927,347 $3,577,020 $ 683,028 $3,386,069 $ 2,532,366 $ 196,000 $ 188,759 $22,490,589 

Transfers are primarily used to move funds from: 

General Fund - to the General Capital projects for the gaming revenues dedicated for capital projects, to the Nonmajor Governmental 
funds (Garbage Collection aird Disposal fund) to the Fire Protection fimd because dedicated revenues are not sufficient to cover 
expenditures, to the Commimity Development Fund to cover the expenditures of the City's Resource centers, Food Bank and the 
portion of Commiurity Developmeirt's administrative expenditures not covered by the CDBG grant, and to the Internal Service 
Funds to cover health insurance costs. 

One Percent Sales tax of 1984 Fund - to the General, Nomnajor Governmental fund (Garbage Collection & Disposal fitnd), and 
Fire Protection funds to reimburse losses fiom homestead exemption, to pay expenditures for the Nomnajor Govenimeirtal fund 
(Streets and Drainage Ftmd) and the remaining funds are transfeixed to the General Fund. 

General Capital Projects - to the Nonmajor Governmental fond (Notes and Other Debt) to provide additional funding for debt 
service of the 2009 LDEQ Loan. 
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Noiimajor Governmental Funds - from the Streets and Drainage fund to die General Capital Projects Funds with bond 
proceeds for the fundmg of foture capital projects, and from the General Debt ftuid to the Wastewater Operations ftuid to 
cover sewer service charges which came under budget. 

Wastewater Operations - to the Nonmajor Governmental funds (General Debt Fund) for debt service on tlie 2009 LDEQ loan. 

Tlie composition of interfimd balances as of Jime 30, 2019, is as follows: 

Due to/from otlier funds 

Receivable Fund Payable Fimd 
General Fund 

One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Fund 

File Protection 

DepartnKnt of Wastewater Operations 

Gteneral Capital Projects Fund 

General Capita! Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds Property Tax 
Nonmajor Goveminenta! Funds 
General Caprtal Projects Fund 

General Fund 
One Percent Sales Taxof 1984 Fund 
Property Tax 

One Percent Sales Taxof 1984 Fund 
General Capital Projects Fund 
General Capital Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds 
Nonnmjor Govemnental Fimds 
Etepaitment of Wastewater Operations 
hitemal Service Funds 
Civic Center Operations 
Fire Protection 

Nonnujor Governmental Funds 

One Percent Sales Taxof 1984 Fund 
Property Tax 

Property Tax 

General Fund 

i 2,510,717 
1,497,118 
2,824,547 
4,348,301 
12,788,399 

616,943 
135.144 
319.166 

310,733 

39,166 
648,621 

100,765 

11,904,786 

412,841 
37,821 

2.140.077 

382,763 
8,487 

175.433 
141,201,828 

The above due to/from other funds were short.-term receivables or payables in the normal course of the City's operations. 
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NOTE K - TREASURE CHEST RIVERBOAT CASINO AGREEMENT 

The City of Kenner and Treasiue Chest Casino, L.L.C. entered into a lease of property in Laketown, Kenner on December 3. 1993 
for Treasure Chest Casino, L.L.C/s riverboat gaming operations. The term of the lease is divided into tliree phases, an Initial Term, 
a Primary Term, and at the Lessee's option, one or more Renewal Terms. The ''Initial Term" of tlie lease began on the date of execution 
and continued until July 1, 1994. The "Prbnary Term" of the lease was for five years begirming on July 1, 1994, and the Lessee had 
tlie option to extend the term of this lease for six additional Renewal Temis of five years each. The lease is currently renewed through 
Jime 30,2024. Lease payments to the City inclirde a rninimimi annual rent ("Base Rent") detennined by multiplying the actual number 
of passengers duiing the first three quarters of the prior fiscal year by $2.50. In addition to the Base Rent, the Lessee shall pay to the 
City an amount equal to $2.50 for each passenger in excess of the number of passengers used to detemiiire the Base Rent for that 
particular year ("Per Capita Rent"). In addition to the Base Rent and Per' Capita Rent, tlie Lessee pays the City tlie "Percentage Rent" 
in an amount equal to tlie greater of 1% of its net gaming proceeds and any admission fees in excess of $10.00 per passenger or the 
"minimmn percentage rent". The Minimum Percentage Rent equals the Percentage Rent for the first three quaiTers of the preceding 
base fiscal year. Such Percentage Rent shall be used to subsidize City projects such as City Recreational Facilities, City Playgromids, 
Tourism Advertisement and Brochmes, Convention Center/Hotel Shuttle. Trolley Transportation, City Museums, Alzheimer's Center 
Operations, City Sponsored Summer Camps, and City Senior Citizens Activities. Any fimds remaining shall be dedicated to City 
capital projects. 

The Kenner Police Department is entitled to 24% of all lease revenues received by tlie City. Additionally, the lessee agrees to pay to 
the Kenner Pohce Department the gr eater of $400,000 or 1% of net gaming proceeds. 

NOTE L - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to toils; tlieft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries 
to employees; and natural disasters. To account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss, the City has established a Self-Insurance 
Fund (an internal service fund). Under this program, the Self-Insurance Fimd provides coverage for up to a maximum of $500,000 
for each general liability claim, except up to a maximum of $50,000 for each Law Enforcement general liability claim, with 
commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fimd up to $5,000,000; $500,000 for each auto liability claim 
witli commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fimd up to $5,000,000; $550,000 for each worker's 
compensation claim, excluding police and fire, with commercial insiuance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fimd up 
to $1,000,000; and $550,000 for each police and fiie workers compensation claim in with commercial insurance for claims in excess 
of coverage provided by the fund up to $1,000,000. The City purchases commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims 
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past four fiscal years. Also, tlie Fund provides coverage for auto/physical 
damage which requires a S1,000 deductible per department, per occmrence. The remaining balance on tlie claim is paid by tlie Fmid. 

All funds of the City witli employees, except for the Department of Wastewater Operations and the Civic Center Operations Funds, 
participate in the program and make payments to tlie fimd based on an actuarial valuation dated November 2003 adjusted by the actual 
performance of the programs using historical experience. The claims liability of $5,138,535 (which includes claims incurred but not 
reported in the Fimd at Jime 30, 2019) is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, 
which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is 
probable that a Lability has been incurred at the date of the fmancial statements and the amount of tlie loss can be reasonably estimated. 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during fiscal years 2017. 2018, and 2019 were as follows; 

Beginning of Fiscal 
Year Liabilitv 

Current Year Claims and 
dianses in Estimates 

Qaim Balance at Fiscal 
Year End 

2016-2017 $ 
2017-2018 
2018-2019 

4.124,489 
4,236.501 
5.236.146 

1,638,797 
613,794 

(779,820) 
(639,152) 
(711,^5) 

4,236.501 
5,236,146 
5,138,535 

The amount of estimated claims payable due witliin one year of these financial statements is $2,737,246. 

HEALTH INSURANCE 

The City provides health and accident msuiance to its employees tlirough health maintenance organizations (HMO's) and commercial 
insurance carriers. The City has no additional liability other than the initial premiums. 
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NOTE M - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

LITIGATIGN 

The City is a defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits resulting principally from personal injury and property damage. The City 
Attorney and outside counsel have reviewed these claims and lawsuits in order to evaluate the likeliliood of an unfavorable outcome 
to the City and to arrive at an estimate, if any, of the amount or range of potential loss to the City. The City's "reasonably possible" 
loss contingencies have been estimated to be immaterial and have not been accrued in these financial statements. All material probable 
claims have been accrued as liabilities in the City's Self-Insurance Fund (see Note L for additional details) and General Fund. 

FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS 

The City receives significant financial assistance from nmnerous federal and state govermnental agencies in tlie form of grants. The 
disbur sement of funds received imder tliese programs generally requir es compliance witlr terms and conditions specified in the grant 
agreements. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or otlier' applicable funds. 
Flowever, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the finaircial statements. 

EPA ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 

On November 10, 1990, tire United States Enwromnental Protection Agency (EPA) issued the City an Administrative Order for 
sewerage effluent violations. Failme to comply with an EPA Administrative Order could result in monetary fmes or an EPA 
administrative penalty. As a result, the city initiated a Si 5 million sewer rehabilitation project. See Note I for additional information 
regarding the financing of the 1990 sewer rehabilitation project. 

On August 24,2009, tire Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (LDEQ) issued the City a Consolidated Compliance Order 
& Notice of Potential Penalty for sewerage overflow violations which resulted in raw sewerage being discharged into waters of tire 
State. As with the 1990 EPA Administrative Order discussed above, failtire to comply with the provisions of the Order could subject 
the City to substantial administrative penalties or monetary fmes. 

On June 27, 2014, the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (LDEQ) issued the City a Consolidated Compliance 
Order' & Notice of Potential Penalty for sewerage overflow and improper' sampling metlrods and reporting violations which resulted 
in raw sewerage being discharged into waters of the State. As witli tire 1990 EPA Administrative Order and the August 24, 2009, 
LDEQ order discussed above, failtire to comply with the provisions of the Order could subject the City to substantial administrative 
penalties or monetary fmes. 

EPA CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY 

The LDEQ Compliance Order mandates tliat the City take all steps necessary to acliieve compliance with Water Quality Regulations 
including but not limited to avoiding overflows and complying with all effluent limitations by properly operating and maintaining 
the facility. Failure or refiisal to comply could subject the City to civil penalties of $50,000 for each day of continued violation or 
noncompliance. 

Major renovations must be made to the City's sewer treatment and collection system to remedy tlie problems causing the LDEQ 
and EPA idolations. The required renovations include the replacement or upgrading of lift stations, expansion and upgrading of the 
City's wastewater treatment plant capacity, repair and replacement of gravity sewer lines, and procuring generators to service the 
sewer system during emergencies. 

The City's engineers estimate that the total costs of tlie required renovations will be $65 million. On December' 10, 2009, the City 
entered into an agreement for a $22 million construction loan at 0.95% interest fiom tlie Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan 
Program to partially fund the necessary upgrades and improvements. In November of 2011 the City issued SI6 million in bonds 
and in November of 2012 the City entered into an additional loan of $21 million at 0.95% interest from the Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund Loan Program to fund a portion of the required renovations. In September 2015 the City entered into an 
additional loan of SI5 million at 0.95% interest from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program to fund the rest 
of the required renovations. See Note I for additional information regarding the financing of the 2009 sewer rehabilitation 
project. 
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NOTE M - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

AGREEMENT FOR OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE, AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES OF THE KENNER 
WASTEWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT SYSTEMS 

In July 1995, the City entered into an agreement with Veolia Water Nortli America Operating Services, LLC, (formerly Pr'ofessional 
Services Group, Inc. (PSG) and LFS Filter Operating Services, Inc.) for tlie management, operation, and maintenance of the 
Wastewater Collection and Treatment Systems. PSG offered employment to all persormel of Keimer who were currently assigned 
lull-time to the Wastewater Department. In July 1999, the agreement was amended and restated. In accordance witli the agreement 
dated July 1999, compensation from the City of Kemier consisted of an amiual fee, $2,744,264, fimding the Kenner Budget Pass-
Through Fund, $817,567, and payment, of electrical invoices. The teirn of this agreement is for 20 years commencing on July 1,1995 
witli the option for four, five-year renewal periods. In July 2015. the agr'eement was amended and restated. The new agreement is 
effective from July 2015 lliroiigh December 2019. Uie compensation fr'om tlie City of Kenner' consists of an annual fee $5,076,534, 
paid monthly, and reimbursement of operating expenses. The aimual fee and Kenner Budget Pass-Through Fund will be adjusted 
annually either by negotiation or in accordance with the CPI Adjustment Formula as stipulated in the agreement. Fees incmxed to 
Veolia Water Nortli America Operating Services, LLC during the year ended .Tune 30, 2019 totaled $6,718,956. In Jmie 2019, the 
City received invoices for fees incurred prior to the 2019 fiscal year totaling $997,255. Of this amount, $229,176 was from the year 
ended June 30, 2017 and $768,079 was from the year ended June 30, 2018. These related to fees that are not included in llie fixed 
aimual fee. 

CONSTRUCTION 

Construction commitments are discussed in Note H. 

LEASE COMMITMENTS - GENERAL 

Leases ai"e accounted for in accordance with GASB Codification Section L20-Leases, which requires classification of leases as capital 
or operating leases. Governmental fund assets under capital leases are recorded in tlie goveniment-wide financial statements. As of 
June 30, 2019, the City has one capital lease agreement. See Note I for information related to this capital lease. 

Operating Leases 

The City is coimnitted imder various leases for office equipment. These leases are considered for accoimting purposes to be operating 
leases. Lease expenditures for the year ended Jmie 30, 2019, amoimted to $154,314. Future minimum lease payments for tliese leases 
are as follows; 

Year Ending 
June 30, Amounts 

2020 $ 116,690 
2021 116,304 
2022 104,904 
2023 47,904 
2024 47,904 

Thereafter 7.984 
Total niininiumlease payirents $ 441,690 

NOTE N - DEFERRED COMPENSATION FLAN 

The City offers its employees a defeired compensation plan created in accordance with Intemal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, 
available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until fiiture years. The deferred compensation is not 
available to employees mitil teraiination, retirement, deatli. or imforeseeable emergency. The funds are held in a trust for the exclusive 
benefit of participants and then beneficiaries. The Cil>' did not make any contributions to llie plan during the year ended June 30, 
2019. 

55 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE O - FOSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 

The City provides postemployment health care benefits to all retirees with 20 years or more of seivice, and life insurance benefits 
to eligible retirees. The City established a Group Insurance Plan, providing for payment of a portion of health care insurance 
premiums and life insurance premiums for eligible retired employees. The Group lusuiance Plan is a single-employer defined benefit 
health care plan administered by the City which provides medical and life insurance to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries. The 
Plan is funded on a pay-as-you go basis and there are no Plan financial statements. The City Council has the autliority to establish 
and amend plan benefit provisions. OPEBbenefitsareadministeredby City personnel. At June 30, 2019,184 retirees were receiving 
postemployinent benefits. 

There ai"e no assets accumulated in a trust that meets tlie criteria in Govenimeiital Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
No. 75, Postemployme}it Benefits Other Than Pensions - Reporting for Benefits Not Provided through Trusts That Meet Specified 
Criteria - Defined Benefit. 

BENEFITS PROVIDED 

Retirees are eligible to continue medical and life insurance coverage. To be eligible for rethement. employees must be covered as 
an active employee in tlie City health program at the time of retirement and: (1) for municipal employees, have 25 years of 
continuous service with the City or reach 60^^ birthday and have 10 years of ser vice; (2) for firefigliter or police employees, have 25 
years of continuous service witli the City or reach 50^ birthday and have 20 years of service with the City or reach 55^ birthday and 
have 12 years of service with the City. After becoming eligible based on tlie aforementioned criteria an employee has tlie option of 
remaining an active employee for thiee additional years in order to qualify for fully-funded benefits for life. The benefits then 
become available on tlie day after tlie employee retires. 

Spouses of retirees are eligible for the plan and benefits continue upon the death of the retiree. 

Under 65 retirees can continue medical coverage and enrolled in a Base Plan. Retirees 65 and over are enrolled in a Medicare 
Supplement Plan, and pay any premium that exceeds $100 per month. Effective .Tanuaiy 1, 2019, The City will no longer provide 
the $100 supplement for employees lined after March 31, 1986 

The retirees' life insurance benefit is equal to $15,000 and is reduced by 35% at age 70 and reduced by 50% at age 75. 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

The City offers a single health plan for active and retired under age 65 employees throiigli Blue Cross Blue Shield of 
Louisiana. The employee/retiree monthly premium is $70 per monfii without a health screening and $20 per month with a 
health screening. Hie City's portion is $640.81 per month for employee/retiree coverage. 

Retired employees eligible for Medicare coverage are excluded from the Blue Cross Healthcare Plan and may choose to be 
covered by one of the two Medicare Supplement Plans offered througli the City of Kenner by People's Health and Humana. 
The monthly premium is $210 for People's Health and S307.73 for Humana. The City pays $100 per month for retiree-only 
coverage with Medicare plans for those retirees hired prior to March 31, 1986. All other retirees are responsible for the entire 
monthly premium. 

The City of Kenner also provides eligible retirees Basic Term Life, which is underwritten by Prudential Life Insurance 
Company. The blended rate for active employees and retirees is $0,435 per $1,000 of insurance. The amount of life insurance 
is reduced by 35% of the original amount at age 70 and 50% of the original amount at age 75. 
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NOTE O - FOSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

EMPLOYEES COVERED BY BENEFIT TERYIS 

Af Jime 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terais; 

Inactive eiiployees currently receiving benefits payments 
Inactive enployees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active enployees 
Total 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 

At Jime 30, 2019, tlie City reported a total OPEB liability of $14,956,393. The total OPEB Lability was measured as of Jmie 30, 
2019, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The total OPEB liability was updated from the actuarial 
valuation date to the measurement date using standard actuarial roll-forward techiriques. 

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of tlie value of reported amouirts and assumptions about tlie probability 
of occmrence of events far into the future. The actuarial valuation for postemploymeut benefits includes estimates and assumptions 
regarding (1) turnover rate; (2) retirement rate; (3) health care cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5) discoimt rate (investment return 
assumption); and (6) the period to which the costs apply (past, cuixent, or future years of service by employees). Actirarially 
detemiined amomits are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made aboirt the future. 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of beirefits provided imder the terms of the substantive plan (the plan as understood 
by tlie City of Keimer and its employee plan members) at the time of the valuation and oir the historical pattern of shar ing costs 
between the City of Kenner and its plan members to tliat point. Tlie projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not 
explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual fimding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the City 
of Kemier and plan members in tlie future. Consistent with the long-teini perspective of actuarial calculations, the actuarial methods 
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets. The actuarial assumptions were based on the results of an actuarial experience study performed in 2014. 

The total OPEB liability in the Jmie 30, 2019, actuarial valuation was detennined using the following actuarial assmnptions and 
other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise noted: 

Valuation Date June 30,2019 
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal, Level Percentage of Pay 
Actuarial assum^^ons: 
Ik[»ctedremaining service liws 3 years 
Inflation rate 2.50% 
Salary Increase rate 2.00% 
Discount rate 3.13% 

Mortality rates 

Pre-Retirement Mortality: RPH-2014 Blue (dollar Ekployee Mortality Table, 
(jenerational with Projection Scale MP-2018. 
Post-Retirement Mortality: RPH-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Mortality 
Table, (jenerational with Projection Scale MP-2018. 

Healthcare cost trend rates 
Pre-65: The healthcare cost trend was 6.0%, initially, and decreases to an 
ultimate rate of 4.1% in 2074. 
65 & Over: The healthcare cost trend rate is a flat 2.5%. 

Eii^oyee turnover rates 

An age-related tumover scale based on actual experience has been used. The 
rates, when applied to the active enployee census, produce an annual 
tumover of approximately 10%. The percent tumover for each age range are as 
follows: 20-25 (17.0%), 26-40 (10.2%). 41-50 (6.8%), and 51+ (5.1%). 
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NOTE O - FOSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 

The foliowing is a summarj' of the changes in tlie City's total OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2019; 

Balance at 06/30/2018 $21,551,927 

Changes tor the year: 
Ser\'ice cost 370,068 
Interest 775,992 
Differences between e^qjected and actual e?q>erience (567,525) 
Clianges in assunptions/inputs (1,379,446) 
Changes in benefit terms (4,823,106) 
Benefit payments (971,517) 

Administrative expense -
Net clianges (6,595,534) 

Balance at 06,'30/2019 $ 14.956.393 

OPEB EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
RELATED TO OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB benefit of $5,347,181. At June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred 
outflows of resomces and deferred inflows of resoiuces related to OPEB from tire following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

ofResources ofResources 
Differences between actual and etq)ected 

ejperience $ - $ 378,350 

Changes of assun:|)tions or other inputs - 919,631 

Enployer amounts for OPEB subsequent 

to the treasurement date 

1,297,981 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resomces and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows; 

Year ending June 30: 
2020 $ (648,990) 
2021 (648,991) 

$ (1,297,981) 
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NOTE O - FOSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

SENSITIVITY OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE 

Tlie follovviiig presents tlie total OPEB liability of tlie City, as weU as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.13%) or one percentage point higher (4.13%) tlian tlie current 
discount rate: 

Current 
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 

Total OPEB liability $ 16,532,256 $ 14.956.393 $ 13.490.360 

SENSITIVITY OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE HEALTHCARE COST TREND RATES 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current 
healthcare cost trend rates: 

Current 
Healthcare 

1% Decrease Cost Trend Rate 1% Eicrease 
Total OPEB Hability $ 13.440,586 $ 14,956,393 S 16,658,440 

NOTE F - PENSION FLANS 

GENERAL 

The City reporting entity participates in three defined benefit pension plans. Assets are held separately and may be used only for the 
payment of benefits to the members of tlie respective plans, as follows: 

Substantially all of the City's full-time, permanent employees, other than classified employees in the Kemier Fire Department and 
Kemier Police Department are participants in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System, State of Louisiana (MERS), a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system. 

All full-time classified employees of the Police Department of the City are participants in the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement 
System (MPERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

All firll-time classified employees of the Fire Department of the City are participants in tlie Firefigliters' Retirement System (FRS), a 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

PLAN DESCRIPTIONS 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System. State of Louisiana (MERS) 

Employees of tlie City participate in Plan A of MERS, which is controlled and administered by a separate Board of Trustees. The 
System provides retirement, deferred and disability benefits, survivor's benefits and cost of living adjustments to plan members and 
beneficiaries. Act 356 of the 1954 Louisiana Legislative Session established tlie plan. The System is governed by Louisiana Revised 
Statutes 11:1731 through 11:1866, specifically, and otlier general laws of the State of Louisiana. 
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NOTE P - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

PLAN DESCRIPTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Mimicipal Employees^ Retii'ement SvHtein. State of Louisiana (MERS) (Continued) 

Under MERS, employees wifJi 10 years of sei"vice may retire at age 60 and employees witli 25 years ofsei"vice may retire regardless 
of age. In addition, employees may also retire witli 20 years of service regar'dless of age; however, the benefits payable to such 
employees must be actuarially reduced. The monthly amount of tire retirement allowance is equal to 3 percent of the member's final 
compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service. Retirement benefits are payable montlily for tlie life of the retiree, and 
upon tlie retiree's deatli, under' certain conditions, are payable to tlie siuviving spouse. 

The MERS retirement information in this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, June 30, 2018. The Mimicipal 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana issues a publicly available financial report, that, includes financial statements and required 
supplementary infonnation. The financial report may be obtained by writing to Municipal Employees' Retirement System. 7937 
Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809. 

Plan members are required to contribute 9.50% of then eamable compensation, and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate. Tlie cuixent rate is 26.00% of eamable compensation. At July 1, 2019, the employer rate increased to 27.75% for the 
2019-2020 fiscal year, while the employee rate remained at 9.50%. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement Svstein. State of Louisiana CMPF.RS') 

Members of MPERS hired prior to January 1, 2013, are eligible for normal retirement after tliey have been a member of tlie plan, if 
tliey have 25 years of service at any age or they have 20 years' ser\'ice and are age 50 or have 12 years' seivice and ar"e age 55. Benefit 
provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211 - 11:2233. The monthly retirement benefit is equal 
to 3 Vapercentofthe member's average montlily earnings during the highest consecutive 36 months, multiplied by years of creditable 
service, not to exceed 100 percent of final salary. Retirement benefits are payable monthly to tlie retiree, and upon the deatli of the 
retiiee, mider certain conditions, are payable to the surviving spouse and minor cliildren. 

Members of MPERS hired on or after January 1, 2013, are eligible for normal retirement based on Hazardous Duty and Non 
Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member 
of the plan and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under tlie Non Hazardous 
Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retiiement after he has been a member of tlie plan and has 30 year's of creditable 
service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under botli sub plans, a member 
is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of tlie plan for 20 years of creditable seivice at any age, with an actuarially 
reduced benefit from age 55. Under tlie Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are 3 percent and 2 'A percent, 
respectively, of the member's average monthly earnings during tlie highest consecutive 36 months, multiplied by years of creditable 
service, not to exceed 100 percent of final salary. Retirement benefits ai'e payable monthly to tlie retiree, and upon the deatli of the 
retiree, mider certain conditions, are payable to tlie surviving spouse and minor cliildren. 

The MPERS retirement information in this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, .Time 30, 2018. The Municipal Police 
Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary infonnation. The fmancial report may be obtained by writing to Mimicipal Police Employees' Retirement System of 
Louisiana, 7722 Office Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809. 

The employer and employee contribution rates for all members hired prior to January 1, 2013, and Hazardous Dut).' members hhed 
after January i, 2013, were 32.25% and 10.0%, respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for all Non Hazardous 
Duty members hired after January 1, 2013. were 32.25% and 8.0%, respectively. At July 1, 2019, the employer's contribution rare 
increased to 32.5%, and tlie employee rate remained at 10.0% for all members hired prior to January 1, 2013, and Hazardous Duty 
members hired after January 1, 2013. The employer's contribution rate increased to 32.5% and the employee rate remained at 8.0% 
for all Non Hazardous duty members hired after January 1, 2013. 
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NOTE P - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

PLAN DESCRIPTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Tlie Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS) 

Under FRS, employees witli 20 or more years of sei"vice who have attained age 50 or employees who have 12 years of service who 
have attained age 55 or 25 years of service af any age are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to 3 b'3% of their average fmal 
compensation based on tlie 36 consecutive months of highest pay multiplied by their total years of service, not to exceed 100%. 
Retirement benefits are payable monthly to the retir ee, and upon the deatli of the retir ee, imder certain cir cumstances, ar e payable 
to the surviving spouse and minor children. Act 434 of the 1979 Louisiana Legislative Session established tlie Plan. The System is 
governed by Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:2251 tlirougli 11:2269, specifically, and otlier' general laws of the State of Louisiana. 

The Firefighter's' Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report tliat includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. It may be obtained from tlie Firefighters' Retirement System. 3100 Brentwood Drive, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70809. 

Plan members are required to contribute 10.0% of then eamable compensation, and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate. The current rare is 26.5% of annual-covered payroll. Effective July 1, 2019, the employer's contribution rate 
increased to 27.75% and the employee rare remained at 10.0%. 

CURRENT MEMBERSHIP 

Total memberehip data for MERS, MPERS and FRS is available in the separately issued reports, but is not available by individual 
employer. 

CONTRIBUTIONS MADE 

The employer contribution rates are estabhshed amiually under La. R.S. 11:101-11:104 by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee (PRSAC), taking into consideration tlie recommendation of the system's actuary. Each plan pays a separate actuarially-
determined employer contribution rate. However, all assets of each plan are used for tlie payment of benefits for all classes of members 
within each system, regardless of their plan membership. Employer contributions to MERS. MPERS, and FRS were 53.261,548, 
52,658,061, and 51,586,377, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, CONTRIBUTION REVENUE FROM NON-EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS, 
AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS 

At June 30, 2019, tlie City of Kenner, Louisiana reported a liability for MERS, MPERS, and FRS of $28,228,888, $23,600,915, and 
511,591,806, respectively, for its proportionate share of tlie net pension liability. The net pension habilities were measured as of June 
30, 2018, and the total pension liabilities used to calculate the net pension liability' were determined by actuarial valuations as of tliat 
date. The City of Keimer, Louisiana's pr oportion of tlie net pension liability for each retirement system was based on a projection of 
tlie City of Kenner. Louisiana's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially detennined. At .Tune 30, 2018, tlie City of Kenner, Louisiana's proportion for MERS, MPERS, 
and FRS was 6.817456%, 2.791666%, and 2.015238%, respectively. Tliis reflects an increase for MERS of 0.003056%, a decrease 
for MPERS of (0.149879%), and a decrease for FRS of (0.060443%) from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City of Kenner, Louisiana recognized pension expense and contributions revenue from non-
employer contributions as follows; 

61 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30. 2019 

NOTE P - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, CONTRIBUTION REVENUE FROM NON-EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS, 
AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS 
(CONTINUED) 

Contributions 
Pension Revenue - Non 
Expense/ Eirpioyer 
(Benefit) Contributions 

MERS $ 1,068,562 $ 425,256 
MPERS 392,599 550,894 

FRS 329,304 323,035 

Total $ 1,790,665 $ 1,499,185 

AT June 30, 2019. the City of Kenner. Louisiana reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from tlie following sources: 

Difference between enployer contributions 
and proportionate share of contributions 

Diherences between e:f?ected and actual 
e:f?erieuce 

Changes in propoition 
Change ofassimptions 
Difference between projected and actual 

eamings on plan investments 
Eiployer contributions subsequent to tlie 

nEasurement date 

Total 

Differences between ejpected and actual 
e:q)erieuce 

Difterence between projected and actual 
eamings on plan investitEiits 

Difference between enployer contributions 
and proportionate share of contributions 

Change of assuirptions 
Changes in proportion 

Total 

21.337 

Deferred Outflows ofResources 

1.003.663 

1,025,000 

1,206,055 

2,487 

1,218,436 

2.426.978 

882,266 

4,806 
1,837 

590,056 

MERS MPERS FRS Total 

s - $ 1,600 $ 7,406 

o
 

o^
" 

106.393 106.393 
274,200 - 442,669 716.869 
849,780 L-542.306 808,644 3.200.730 

4,325,900 1,131,375 753,755 6,211,030 

3,261,548 2,658,061 1,586,377 7,505,986 

$ 8,711,428 $ 5,439,735 $ 3,598,851 $ 17,750,014 

DeferredLiflows ofResources 

MERS MPERS FRS Total 

3.091.984 

28,630 
1.837 

1.478.965 4.930.943 

Duiing the year ended June 30, 2019, employer contributions totaling $3,261,548, $2,658,061, and $1,586,377 were made subsequent 
to the measurement date for MERS, MPERS, and FRS, respectively. These contributions are reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liabihty iir the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amouirts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as 
follows: 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE P - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, CONTRIBUTION REVENUE FROM NON-EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS, 
AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS 
(CONTINUED) 

Year Bidiiig 

June 30, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Thereafter 

MEKS 

2,608,862 

1,310,840 

381,347 

123,631 

MPEKS 

883,532 

363,016 

(932,956) 

41,104 

FRS Total 

$ 585,513 $ 4,077,907 

144.630 1,818,486 

(303,384) (854,793) 

74,322 239,057 

73,873 73.873 

(41,445) (41,445) 

Total 4,424,^ 354,696 533,509 $ 5,313,085 

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 

Total pension liabilities for MERS, MPERS, and FRS in tlie June 30, 2018, actuarial valuations were determined using tlie following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurements: 

MERS MPERS FRS 

Actuarial cost method Entry AgeNormai Entry Agi Normal Entry Age Normal 

Actuarial assumptious; 

Expected Remaining Service lives 3 Years 4 Years 7 Years 

Investment rate of return 7.27-S% 
7.20%. net of investment 

ej^rense 
7.30% 

Inflation rate 2.60% per aimiim 2.60% per amnim 2.70% per annum 

Projected salai^' increases 
5.0% (2.60% Inflation, 

2.40% Ment) 

Salary growth rate based on 
years of service, ranging 
from 9.75% for 1-2 years of 

sendee to 4.25% for 23 & 
over years of service. 

Vary from 15.0% in the first 
two years of service to 
4.75% after 25 years. 

Cost-of-living adjustments 
None, since tbey are not 
deemed to be substantively 
automatic. 

None, since they are not 
deemal to be substantively 
automatic. 

None, since they are not 
deemed to be substantively 
automatic. 

MortaJitj' 

RP-2000 Employee Table 
for Active members; RP-
2000 Hralthy Annuitant 
Table for healthy annuitants; 
RP-2000 Disabled Lives 
Mortabty Tables for 
disabled annuitants 

RP-2000 Employee Table 
for Active members; RP-
2000 Combined Healtliy 
Tabi^ for healthy 
annuitants; RP-2000 
Disabled Lives Table for 
disabled amiuitants 

Mortality rate assumption 

was projected based on a 
five-year (2009-2014) 
ejq)aience study of the 
System's members. 

Termination and disability 

Termination, disabibty and 
retirement assumptions were 
projected based on a four 
year (2009-2014) e>perience 
study of the System's 

members. 

Termination, dkability and 
retirement assumptions were 
projected based on a five 
yeai' (2009-2014) eqrerience 
study of the System's 
members. 

Termination, disability and 
retirement assumptions were 
projected based on a five 
year (2009-2014) experience 
study of the System's 
members. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE P - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Tlie long-teim expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. Uiese ranges are combined to produce tlie long-tenn expected rare of return by weigliting tlie 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjiistment for 
tire effect of rebalancing/'diversification. 

The target allocation and best estimates of aritlimetic real rates of retinn for each nrajor asset class inclirded in tlie pension plan's 
target asset allocation as of Jiuie 30, 2018, are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Equity 
Fhffid IncotiK 
Alternatives 
Otliei 

Total 

MERS 

50% 
35% 
15% 

Target Allocatioii 
MPERS 

52®d 

22"/! 
im 
6% 

FRS 

54% 
26% 
lO^-b 

Long-Term IkpectedReal Rate of Return 
MERS MPERS FRS 

22m 
1.50«/o 
0.60«--b 
0.00«/o 

3.58% 
0.46% 
1.07% 
0.17% 

6.78% 
1.76% 
6.56% 
4.60% 

4.3(K'i 5.2804 19.70% 

Inflation 
fleeted Arithmetic 

Nominal Return 

2.1 

im-'o 

2.75% 

^.03°4 19.707-O 

DISCOUNT RATES 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS, MPERS, and FRS was 7.275%, 7.20%, and 7.30%, 
respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assimied that employee contributions will be made at 
tlie current contr ibution rate and tliat employer contributions from participating employers will be made at contractually required 
rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, tlie pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of 
retmn on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

SENSITIVITY OF THE EMPLOYER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILIIY TO CHANGES IN 
THE DISCOUNT RATES 

The following table presents the employer's proportionate share of the net pension habihty using the actual discount rates used 
(7.275% for MERS, 7.20% for MPERS, and 7.30% for FRS), as well as what the employer's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discoimt rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than tlie 
current rate: 

1% Decrease 

Current 

Discount Rate Increase 

MERS $ 36,262,581 $ 28,228,888 $21,371,849 
MPERS 33,165,818 23,600,915 15,576,329 
FRS 16,915,186 11,591,806 7,118,335 

Total $ 86,343,585 $ 63,421,609 $44,066,513 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE P - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

PENSION PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

Detailed informatioa about the pension plans' fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued MERS, MPERS, and FRS 
2018 Annual Financial Reports at www.mersla.coni. www, lampers .org. and www.lafirefightersret.com. respectively. 

PAYABLES TO THE PENSION PLANS 

At June 30, 2019, there were no amounts owed to any of the three pension plans for employee and employer legally-required 
contributions. 

NOTE Q - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION 

At June 30, 2019, the Self-Insurance Fund had a deficit in its unrestricted net position of $4,954,014. This deficit will be eliminated 
by the City making additional contributions into the fund during future years. 

At June 30, 2019, the Wastewater Fund had a deficit in its unrestricted net position of $8,691,412. This deficit wiU be eliminated by 
the future revenues. 

NOTE R- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The date to which events occurring after June 30, 2019, the date of the most recent statement of net position, have been evaluated for 
possible adjustment to the financial statements or disclosure is December 27,2019, which is the date on which the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
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CIT\' OF KENNER, LOi:SIANA 
SCHEDULE OF RE\T:NUES, EXPENDHTHES AND CHANGES IN FLIVD BALANCE - BLDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL Fi:SD 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

ADJUSTOENT BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
TO BUDGETARY ORICINAL FINAL POSITIVE 

ACTUAL BASIS BUTKEIARY BLTDGET BUDGET (Nm^TIVQ 

REVTNXTS 
Ta^s S 29,033.718 S $ 29.033,718 $ 27,16.5,901 $ 27,165,901 $ 1.867,817 

Licenses and permits 5,018.406 - 5,018,406 5,162,391 5,162,391 (143,985) 

IntergoveninKiital 1,876.469 (84,256) 1.792,213 1,478,975 1,478,975 313.238 

Charges for services 1,398.437 - 1,398,437 1,047,076 1,047,076 .351,361 

Fines and forfeitures 2,211.169 - 2.211,169 2,459,223 2,459,223 (248,054) 

Interest 153.3.59 - 153,359 110,500 110,500 42,859 

Miscellaneous 607.948 700 608,648 461,695 461,695 146.953 

Total revenues 40,299.506 (83,556) 40,21.5,950 37,88.5,761 37,885,761 2.330,189 

EXPENDrrURIB 

Onerai govemnKnt 10,183.042 (14,648) 10,168,394 11,864,975 11,510,555 1,342,161 

Public safetj' 20,553.365 (399,662) 20,1.53,703 20,987,322 20,984,067 830.364 

Public works 4,987.a7 35,840 5,023,447 5,534,627 5,620,182 596,735 

Health and welfare 133.264 392 133,656 104,659 142,704 9.048 

Ciikure and recreation 3,629.a5 (342) 3,629,263 3,612,420 3,923,285 294,022 

Transit and uiban development 483.106 23,136 506,242 552,037 552,037 45.795 

Total e;penditures 39.969,989 (355.284) 39,614.705 42,656,040 42,732,830 3.118,125 

Es:ess (deficiency) ofrevenues 

over (under) ejpenditures 329.517 271,728 601,245 (4,770,279) (4,847,069) 5,448,314 

Omm FINANCING SOlliCES (USES) 

Operating transfers in 11.927,347 - 11,927,347 11,186,133 11,163,288 764,059 

Operating transfers out (7.567,271) - (7,567.271) (8,710.262) (8,848.918) 1,281,647 

Total other financing sources (uses) 4.360,076 4,360.076 2,475.871 2314.370 2,045,706 

Net change iu fund balance 4.689,593 271.728 4,961.321 (2,294.408) (2,532.699) 7,494,020 

Fund balance - beginning of year 17.058,926 . 17,058.926 17,058.926 17,058.926 . 

Fund balance - end of year S 21.748,519 S 271.728 $ 22,020.247 % 14,764.518 % 14,526.227 S 7,494,020 

See accoiipaiiying note to bndgetaiy conparison schedules 
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C ITY OF KEN NER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REWNLYS, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

ONE PERCENT SALES TAX OF 1984 FLTVD 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

ADJUSTMENT BUDC^ARY AMOUNTS 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDCtl 

ACTUAL 
TOBUrXSTARY 

BASIS BUDt^ARY 

ORI<3NAL 

BUTX^ 
FINAL 

BUTJGET 
POSITIVE 

(NHoATIX-'E) 

REVESTIK 
Ta^s: 

Sales tax $ 12,836,164 $ 12,836,164 $ 12,042,661 $ 12,042,661 $ 793,503 

Total revenues 12,836,164 12,836,164 12.042,661 12,042.661 793.503 

EXPIMJimRES 
Personnel 
Supplies 
Service charges 
Capital outtey 

- - - -
-

-

Total e^enditures 

^^ess (deficiency) of levenues 
over (under) etpendituies 12,836,164 12,836,164 12.042,661 12,042.661 793.503 

OTHLK FINANCING SOURCES (ISES) 
Transfers out (12,836.164) (12,836.164) (12,042,661) (12.042,661) (793,503) 

Net change in flind balance 

Fiind baiaiice - beginning of year 

Fund balance - end of year 

See acconpanying note to budgetary conparkon schedules. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVEmJES, EXPENDIIXTRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FIRE PROTECTION FUND 
YEAR ENDED JL^NE 30, 2019 

REVENllS 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax 
Parking tax 
Qible fiancliise tax 

Iiitergovemnental 
Qiarges for services 

ACTUAL 

3,639,796 
1,843,277 

375,944 
374,918 

448 

ADJUSTMENT 
TO BUDCITARY 

BASIS BUDC$TARY 

BUDOT"ARY AMOUNTS 

3,639,796 
1,843,277 

375,944 
374,918 

ORIONAL 
BUIXET 

3,603,012 
1,659,441 

391,000 

330 

FINAL 
BUDdT 

$ 3,603,012 
1.659,441 

391,000 

330 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
POSITI\E 

(NEGATI\T) 

36,784 
183,836 
(15,056) 
374,918 

118 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

5,349 
375 

5,349 
375 754 754 

5,349 
(379) 

Total revenues 6.240.107 - 6,240,107 5.654.537 5,654,537 585.570 

EXPINDHURES 
Public safety: 

Personnel 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Service charges 

8,633,534 
134,963 

858 
856,821 

1,023 

(11,425) 

8,633,534 
135,986 

858 
845,396 

9,451,211 
130,800 

825,400 

9,264,275 
174,934 

900 
967,302 

630,741 
38,948 

42 
121,906 

Total expenditures 9,626,176 (10,402) 9,615,774 10,407,411 10,407,411 791,637 

Dscess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) e.^enditiues (3,386,069) 10,402 (3,375,667) (4,752,874) (4,752,874) 1,377,207 

OTHER FINANCING S OLRCES 
Transfers out 
Transfers in 3,386,069 

-
3,386,069 4,752,874 4.752,874 (1,366,805) 

Net change in fund balance - 10,402 10,402 - - 10,402 

Fund balance - begimiing of year _ 

Fund balance - end of year $ $ 10,402 $ 10,402 $ $ $ 10,402 

See accoiipanying note to bud^tary a arrparison schednfes. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE A - BUD(^-TO-ACTUAL RECONCILIATION 

An ejq^laiiation of tlie differences between budgetary inflows and outflows and revenues and e^qrenditures 

determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles follows: 

Ckneral 
Fund 

Connminity 
Development Streets Fire 
Block Qant and Drainage Protection 

Fund Fund Fund 

Net change in fund balances 

(budgetary basis) 4961,321 $ (82,617) 21,866 S 10.402 

Basis differences: 
To adjust forencuniirances (355,284) (21,866) (10,402) 

Ditity differences: 
To adjust for revenues not budgeted 83.556 

Net change in fund balances 

(GAAPbasK) 4.689.593 $ (82. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDUT E OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LI ABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE T\YO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

2018 2019 
Total OPEB Liability 

Seivke cost $ 362,812 $ 370,068 
Interest 769,735 775,992 
Clmtges of beneft lemB - (4,823,106) 
DifereiKes between ejqiected and actual experience (55,831) (567,525) 
Clianges ii assunptfon or other inpttts - (1,379,446) 
Benefit pa^anents (850,746) (971,517) 

Net change in total OPEB fiabik>^ 225,970 (6,595,534) 

Total OPEB IkbiBty - beginning 21,325,957 21,551,927 

Tota OPEB Ikbility - end $21,551,927 $14,956,393 

Covered enpfoyee pa>ToD $28,193,097 $25,381,491 

Total OPEB IkbiHty as a percentage of covered 
enployee payroll 76.4% 58.9% 

Notes to Schedule: 

Changes of benefit terms: Retirees 65 and over pay the portion of the actual Medicare Supplement premmm that 

exceeds SlOO per montn. Effective 1/1/2019, the City will no longer provide the $100 

supplement to those employees hired post March 3L 1986. Each retiree who was hired 

after March 31, 1986, will be responsihfe for pacing the entire premium for their selected 

pkn. Therefore, onfy employees and retirees hired prior to April 1, 1886 were considered 

eligible for the pkn. In addition, it was assmned 10(P/b of those eligible for the benefit 

would elect to remain on the City's pkn (the prior assumption assumed 70%) 

In addition, effective 7/1/2018, the Citv' reduced the pkn options for under-65 retirees from 

three options (Base, Option and Premium) to one option (Base). 

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in tlie discount 

rate each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period: 

2018-3.62%. 2019-3.13% 

Oftier actuarml assumption changes included; retirement and turnover rates, ckim cost 
treals, percentage of retirees wth spouses and mortality rates. 

This schedule is intended to show inforrmtion for 10 years. Additional years VVTD be displayed 

as they become av^ikbfe. 
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CIT\ OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDIXE OF EMPLOYER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE SIX YTIARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

.s tiiployers 
Pix)poitioii of the Pioportionate Shaie of Bijjloyef s 

Fiscal Net Pension the Net Pension Covered 
Year liability Liability Payroll 

MERS: 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

6.81746% 

6.55929«/o 

6.92951% 

6.92428®% 

28^28,888 

28,507.508 

26.884,611 

24,635,568 

17,784.191 

21.461,170 

$ 12,399,087 

$ 12,377,177 

$ 11,717,163 

$ 11,767,976 

$ 11,699,489 

$ 11.624.136 

Enployer's Propoitionate Share Plan Fiduciary Net 

of the Net Pension liability Position as a % of the 

as a % ofits Covered TotalPension 
FayroU liability 

221.1% 

230.3®'o 

229.4% 

209.3®/o 

152.0®'o 

184.6% 

63.9®/o 

62.5®'o 

62.1% 

66.2®/o 

74.0®'o 

MPmS: 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

2.79167% 

2.94155®% 

3.018.53% 

3.04822% 

3.03337®/o 

3.07695®% 

23,600.915 

25,680,932 

28.292,130 

23,879,578 

18,977,030 

24.580,017 

8,238,570 

8,797,386 

8,455.544 

8,153,754 

8,058,896 

8,024,893 

286.5®'o 

291.9®% 

334.6®% 

292.9^4) 

235.5®% 

306.3% 

71.9®'o 

70.1®% 

70.7% 

75.1®% 

66.7^4) 

FRS: 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

2.01524®% 

2.07568% 

1.95589®% 

2.00546®% 

2.01242®% 

2.11904®% 

11.591,806 

11,897,490 

12,793,256 

10,823,693 

8,955.108 

10.991.862 

4,799,460 

4,851.604 

4,412,472 

4,262,059 

4,207,688 

4,140.703 

241.5% 

245.2®% 

289.9®% 

254.0®% 

212.8®% 

265.5®% 

74.8% 

73.5®% 

68.2®% 

72.4®% 

76.0®% 

70.7®% 

Tliis schedule is intended to report infoniBtion for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they becoiiE available. The 
arr»unts presented have a neasurenent date of the previous fiscal year. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOLTSIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE TEN \T:ARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Fiscal 
Year 

MEE^; 

2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 

Contiactually 
Required 

Contiiburions 

3.261.548 
3.067.606 
1815,810 
2314,139 
2324,274 
2,193,659 
1,976,108 
1,898,680 
1,761,462 
1.765.711 

Contribiiiions in 
Relation to 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

3,261,548 
3,067,606 
2,815,810 
2,314,139 
2,324,274 
2,193,659 

1,976,108 
1,898,680 
1,761,462 
1,765,711 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Bcess) 

Covered 
PajnoU 

12,545,209 
12,399,087 
12,377,177 
11,717,163 
11,767,976 
11,699,489 

11,624,136 
11,335,398 
12,361,138 
13,079,334 

Contributions as 
a Percentage of 

Covered 
Payroll 

26.0°/o 

24.7% 

22.8% 
19.7% 
19.8% 
18.8% 
17.0% 
16.8% 
14.2% 
13..5% 

MPERS: 

2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 

2,658,061 
2,533,362 
2.793.171 
2,494,386 
2,568,431 
2,498,256 
2,487,715 
2,097,124 
1,874,013 
850.920 

2,658,061 
2,533,362 
2,793,171 
2,494,386 
2,568,431 
2,498,256 
2,487,715 
2,097,124 
1,874,013 
850,920 

8,242,059 
8,238,570 
8,797,386 
8,455,544 
8,153,754 
8,058,896 
8,024,893 
7,913,669 
7,496,045 
7,735,643 

32.2% 
30.8% 
31.8% 
29.5% 
31.5% 
31.0«/o 
31.0«/o 
26.5% 
25.0% 
11.0°/o 

FRS; 

2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 

1,586,377 
1,271,881 
1,225,030 
1.202.399 
1,246,652 
1,188,672 
993,769 
973,314 
928,830 
613,321 

1,586,377 
1,271,881 
1,225,030 
1,202,399 
1,246,652 
1,188,672 
993,769 
973,314 
928,830 
613,321 

5,986,331 
4,799,460 
4,851,604 
4,412,472 
4,262,059 
4,207,688 
4,140,703 
4,186,859 
4,320,144 

26..5% 
26.5% 
25.2% 
27.3% 
29.2% 
28.3% 
24.0% 
23.2% 
21.5% 
14.0% 

This scliedule is intended to report infoniBtion for lOyeare. Additional years wrUbe disptoyed as they becoriK available. 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION II 

JUNE 30, 2019 

MERS: 

1. CHANGES OF BENEFIT TERMS 

There were no changes of benefit terms for any of the years presented. 

2. CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS 

Following is a detail description of the changes: 

Valuation Date June 30,2018 June 30,2017 June 30,2016 June 30,2015 June 30,2014 
Investment Rate of Return 7.275% 7.40% 7.50% 7.50% 7.75% 
Inflation Rate 2.60% 2.775% 2.875% 2.875% 3.00«/o 
Project Salary Increases 5.00% 5.75% 5.00% 5.00% 5.75% 

Amounts reported in the actuajy valuation dated June 30,2015 for MERS reflect an adjustment in the mortalit}.' rate assumption, 

which was changed from set based upon aggregated data collected for the period July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2010 to set based 
upon aggregated data collected for the period July L 2009 to June 30, 2014, for the year ended June 30, 2014. Otlier changes 
were as follows: 

There were no changes in assumptions for any of the remaining years presented. 

MPERS: 

1. CHANGES OF BENEFIT TERMS 

There were no changes of benefit terms for any of the years presented. 

2. CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS 

Following is a detail description of the changes: 

Valuation Date JmieJO, 2018 JmieJD, 2017 JmieJO, 2016 JmieJO, 2015 JmieJO, 2014 
Investment Rate of Retum 7.20% 7.325% 7.50% 7.50% 7.75% 
Inflation Rate 2.60% 2.70% 2.875% 2.875% 3.00% 
Project Salary Increases 4.25%-9.75% 4.25%-9.75% 4.25%-9.75% 4.25%-9.75% 4.00%-10.00% 

Amounts reported in the actuary valuation dated June 30, 2015 for MPERS reflect an adjustment in the mortality rate used to 
measure the total pension liability. The mortality rate assumption was changed from set based upon the results of an actuarial 
study for the period July 1,2003 to June 30. 2008 to set based upon the results of an actuarial study for the period .luly I, 2009 
to June 30, 2014, for the year ended June 30, 2014. Other changes were as follows: 

There were no changes in assumptions for any of die remaining years presented. 

FRS: 

I. CHANGES OF BENEFIT TERMS 

There were no changes of benefit terms for any of the years presented. 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION II 

JUNE 30, 2019 

2. CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS 

Following is a detail description of the changes: 

Valuation Dare June 30,2018 June 30,2017 June 30,2016 June 30,2015 June 30,2014 
Investment Rate of Return 7.30^4 7.40^4 7.50^4 7.50^4 7.75% 
Inflation Rate 2.70% 2.775% 2.875% 2.875% 3.00% 
Project Salar>'Increases 15% P 2 years 15% P 2 years 15% P 2 years 15% P 2 years 15% P 2 years 

4.75% after 25 years 4.75% after 25 years 4.75% after 25 years 4.75% after 14 years 5.50% after 14 years 

Amounts reported in the actuary valuation dated June 30, 2015 for FRS reflect an adjustment in the mortality rate used to 
measure the total pension liability. The mortality rate assumption was changed ifom set based upon the results of an actuarial 
study for the period July 1,2004 to June 30, 2009 to set based upon the results of an actuarial study for the period July 1, 2009 
to June 30,2014, for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

There were no changes in assumptions for any of the remaining years presented. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds accoiuit for the proceeds of specific revenues (otlier than special assessments, expendable trusts, or revenues 
for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 

The Commmiity Development Block Grant Fund accounts for tire grants received from the Federal Commmiity Development Block 
Grant Program. 

GARBAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FUND 

The Garbage Collection and Disposal Fmid accounts for the proceeds of ad valorem taxes which are specifically dedicated to solid 
waste collection througliout tlie City in residential and some commercial areas. 

STREETS AND DRAINAGE FUND 

The Roads and Bridges accoimt for the proceeds of ad valorem taxes which are specifically dedicated for the functions peifomied by 
each of these funds. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Debt Service Fmids are used to accmnulate monies for the payment of principal, interest, and fiscal charges on the City of 
Kemier's general obligation and special tax bonds. 

GENERAL DEBT FUND 

The General Debt Fmid accounts for tlie tax levy needed to comply witli the interest and principal redemption requirements of bond 
indentures for tlie following excess revenue and sales tax bonds: 

LDEQ Taxable Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2009 
Sales Tax Bonds Series 2013 

AD VALOREM TAX BOND FUND 

The Ad Valorem Tax Bond Fund accomits for tlie property tax levies needed to comply with the interest and principal redemption 
requirements for the loan agreement for the LCDA loan. 

FIREMEN'S PENSION MERGER FUND 

The Fiiemen's Pension Merger Fund accomits for the funding needed to comply with tlie interest and principal redemption 
requirements for the loan payable to tlie Statewide Firefighters Retirement System. 
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CnYOFKEIN'NER, L011SL4NA 

COMBE^E^G BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNVIENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE30.2019 

SPECIAL REVmUE FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Cash 

Equity in pooled cash 

Receivables (net, where 

applicable, of allowances 

for imcoHectibles) 

Accounts 

hitergovemmental 

Other 

Due from other fimds 

GARBAGE COMMUNITY 

COLLECTION STREETS AND DEVELOPMaTI 

AND DISPOSAL DRAINA(^ BLOCK <3LANT TOTAL 

869,872 

150,260 

158 $ 48,368 

435,975 

369.493 

506 

30,884 

48,526 

435,975 

869,872 

506 

550,637 

Total assets 1.020.132 $ 369.651 515,733 S 1.905.516 

LIABILmES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OFRISOURCES AND FLND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable S 

Accmed liabilities 

Due to other fimds 

116.317 $ 

766.691 

6,264 

14,318 

348.554 

3,204 

42,107 

125,785 

56,425 

1.115.245 

Total liabilities ).136 45,311 1,297,455 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOLRCES 

Unavailable revenues 137.124 515 137.639 

Fund balances: 

Restricted 

Federal grants 

Debt service 

Coimnirred 

Eiicuirforances 

Other coniinitinents 

Unassisned 

470,422 S 470.422 

Total fimd balances 470,422 470,422 

Total liabiliies, defened inflows 

of res ources. and fimd balances 1.020.132 ',651 $ 515,733 $ 1,905,516 
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DEBT SER\1CE 

AD VALOREM 

TAX BONDS 

(ANTRAL 

DEBT 

FIREMEN'S 

PENSION MERGER 

FUND TOTAL 

TOTAL 

NONMAJOR 

GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

6.991 

6,769,240 

17.417 325.684 

6,769,240 

350,092 

6,817,766 

786,067 

16,046 

669,145 

586 

669.145 

16.046 

869.872 

669,145 

1.092 

566.683 

23,037 S 7,456,388 $ 325,684 S 7,805,109 S 9.710,625 

3.581,610 3.581.610 

125,785 

56.425 

4,696.855 

3.581,610 3.581.610 4,879.065 

16.046 284.459 300.505 438.144 

6.991 .874,778 3,881,769 

470.422 

3,881,769 

41,225 41.225 41.225 

6,991 3,874,778 41,225 3,922,994 4,393,416 

s 23,037 S 7,456,388 $ 325,684 S 7,805,109 S 9,710,625 

77 



CITY OF KEINXER, LOUISIANA 

CONffiESINGSTATENIENT OFREVTNUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES EN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVIRNMENTAL FU^DS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30,2019 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

GARBA($ 

COT T FCTION 

AND DISPOSAL 

STREETS AND 

DRAINA($ 

COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 

BLOCK GRANT TOTAL 

REVENUES 

Taxes I 

EileigovemnKJiital 

Cliaiges for services 

Eileresl 

5 788,751 

3,121,560 

S 2,301,425 $ - ; 

283,232 

2.439 

S 3,090,176 

283,232 

3,121,560 

2,439 

Toral Revenues 3,910,311 2,301,425 285,671 6,497,407 

EXPENDITURES 

Current; 

Public works 

Health and welfare 

Transit and urban developoKnt 

Debt service: 

Principal 

Interest and fiscal charges 

MiscelHneous 

4,631,667 1,641,242 

383,548 

565,068 

6,272,909 

383,548 

565,068 

Total E^enditures 4,631 Ml 1,641,242 948,616 7,221,525 

Da:ess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) e^enditures (721,356) 660,183 (662,945) (724,118) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (ISES) 

Transfeis in 

Transfeis out 

721,356 22,845 

(683,028) 

580,039 1,324,240 

(683,028) 

Total other financing 

sources (uses) 721,356 (660,183) 580,039 641,212 

Net change in fund balances - - (82,906) (82,906) 

Fund balances - beginning ofyear 553.328 553,328 

Fund balances - end of year I $ S 470,422 J S 470,422 
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AD VALOREM 

TAX BONDS 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

GENHLAL 

DEBT 

HROv-lEN'S 

PmSION MERGER 

FUND TOTAL 

TOTAL 

NONMAJOR 

GOVERNMB^AL 

FUNDS 

$ 4014,871 

103,237 

285,944 4,300.815 S 

104.233 

7,390,991 

283.232 

3,121.560 

106.672 

96 4,118,108 286,844 4,405,048 10,902,455 

- - - - 6,272,909 

383,548 

565,068 

- 2,777,000 

1,676,998 

36,000 

118,134 

127,485 

2,895,134 

1,804.483 

36,OCX) 

2,895,134 

1,804.483 

36,(XX) 

4,489,998 245,619 4,735,617 11,957,142 

96 (371,890) 41,225 (330,569) (1,054,687) 

- 1,208,126 

(196,000) 

- 1,208,126 

(196,000) 

2,532,366 

(879,028) 

1,012,126 1,012,126 1,653,338 

96 640,236 41,225 681,557 598,651 

6.895 3.234,542 3.241.437 3.794.765 

s 6,991 $ 3,874,778 $ 41,225 $ 3,922,994 S 4,393,416 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

ADJUSTMENT BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUTKET 
TO BUDtSTARY ORK3NAL FINAL KtsrrivE 

ACTUAL BASIS BLTKSARY BUDGET BUTXET (NEGAITVE) 

TAXK 
Ad valorem tax $ 1,023.149 $ S 1.023,149 $ 1.012,798 $ 1.012.798 $ 10.351 

Sales tax 19.771.338 - 19,771,338 17,543,872 17,543,872 2.227.466 
Beer tax 60.711 - &}JU «),564 60,564 147 
Parking tax 1.393.653 - 1,393.653 1,393.653 1,393,653 -
Francliises 

Electricity seivke 1,452.975 - 1.452,975 2.512,8.39 1.512,839 (59.864) 
Gas savice 188.744 - 188,744 182.199 182.199 6.545 
Off-track wagering 59,090 - 59.090 65,000 65,000 (5,910) 
HoteFniDteltax 389.345 - 389.345 386,206 386,206 3,139 
Tekplione 70,819 - 70.819 90,036 90,036 (19,217) 
Video service 211.411 - 211,411 272,929 272.929 (62.518) 
Riveilioat 4,412,483 - 4.412,483 4,645,805 4.645,805 (233.322) 

Total ta^s 29.033.718 29,033.718 27,165.W1 27,165,901 1,867,817 

LICiNSES AND PIRWre 
Business: 

Occupational 2,533.555 - 2.533,555 2,877,076 2.877.076 (343.521) 
Alcoholic beverase 86.W0 - &}.m 95,908 95,908 (9,008) 
Oiain store 40.983 - 40.983 47,746 47,746 (6,763) 
Pluni>ing 43.275 - 43.275 51.566 51,566 (8,292) 
Electrical 34.200 - 34,200 35.865 35.865 (1.665) 
Tascab 702.563 - 702,563 552.959 552.959 149.«)4 
Air conditioning 21,175 - 21,175 21,700 21,700 (525) 
Bingo 50 - 50 50 50 -
AniiiEtl control - - - - - -

Total business 3,462,701 3.462,701 3.682,870 3.682.870 (220.169) 

Non-business; 
Building 1.242.516 - 1,242.516 850.(X)0 850,000 392,516 
MisceUaneous 3.900 - 3.W0 - - 3,9«) 
Brake rags 309.289 - 309.289 629,521 629,521 (320,232) 

Total non-business 1.555.705 1.555,705 1.479,521 1.479.521 76.184 

Total licenses and pennits 5.018.406 5,018.406 5,162,391 5,162,.391 (143,985) 

IN lMtGO\TKNMENTAL 
Federal Grants 501.742 (84.2,56) 417.486 - - 417,486 
Fromstate: 

Parish transpoitation fund 387.038 - 387,038 395.215 39.5.215 (8.177) 
Pansli road fund 206.400 - 206,400 221.400 221.400 (T5,0(») 
Video poker 540.831 - 540,831 626,460 616.460 (75.629) 
Otherstate grants - - - - - -

From other local govemtnent subdivisions: 
Jefferson Council on Aging 29.458 - 29.458 34,WO 34.900 (5.442) 

Jeffeison Parish 211.000 - 211,030 211.030 211.000 -

TotalintergovemnKntal S 1.876,469 i ; (84.2,56) 3 ; 1,792.213 $ 1,478.975 S 1,478,975 S 313,238 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

ADJUSTMENT BUDCETARY AMOUNTS 

VARIANCE 
WITHEINAL 

BUDCET 
TO BUDGETARY ORIONAL FINAL POSITIVE 

ACTUAL BASIS BUTKETARY BUDGET BUDCET (NEGATIVE) 

CHAROS TOR SERVICES 
Zoning fees S 12.036 S S 12.036 S 11.709 S 11.709 $ 327 
Eispectkiii fees 

Electricsl 68.474 - 68.474 78.851 78.851 (10.377) 
Plimiiing 56,320 - 56.320 48.482 48.482 7.838 
Air conditioning, heating, and other 73.3® - 73.3® ®.310 ®.310 13.050 

Maps and doaunent sales 3.023 - 3.023 3.728 3,728 (705) 
Taxresearch fees 8.8® - 8.8® 10.222 10.222 (1,362) 
Police leports 43,498 - 43.498 52.836 52.836 (9,338) 
Weed ctitliiig fees 61,208 - 61.208 152.202 152.202 (90,994) 
Recreation departsneiit 

Participation fees 269,771 . 269,771 307,676 307,676 (37,905) 

Adnnssion fees 86.253 - 86.253 76.910 76,910 9,343 
Identification and other fees 282,130 - 182,130 183.150 183.150 (1.020) 

Coinniinky service fees - - - - - -
Administrative cliaiges 533.504 - 533.504 61.00) 61.®0 472.504 

Total charges for serv ices 1,398.437 1.398.437 1.047.076 1.047.076 351..361 

EENIS AND FORFHTURES 
Fines 2.941,879 - 1,941,879 2,105,826 2,105,826 (163,947) 

Forfeitures 204.224 - 204.224 265.4® 265.4® (61,236) 
DWI fines 2,918 - 2.918 2.5® 2.5® 418 
ReinstatenKot fees 62,148 - 62.148 85.437 85.437 (23,289) 

Total fines and foifeitures 2.211,169 2.211.169 2.459.223 2.459.223 (248.054) 

INTERESTONINVESTED FUNDS 153„359 153.359 110.503 110,5® 42,859 

MBCELLANEOUS 
Donations 36,318 - 36.318 - - 36.318 
Rents 363,270 - 363.270 351.584 351.584 11.686 
Other investment income 67.967 - 67.967 59.5® 59.5® 8.467 
Other 140,393 100 141.093 50.611 50.611 90.482 

Total miscellaiieoiss ®7,948 700 ®8.648 461.695 461.695 146.953 

Total revenues S 40,299.506 S (83.556) S 40,215.950 S 37,885.761 S 37,885.761 $ 2,3.30.189 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIAN A 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIILRES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FL:ND 
YEAR ENDED JUTN E 30, 2019 

CmmAL GO\13i^^IE^T 
Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

Total general gnvemment 

ACTUAL 

7,21L418 

13X639 
2.691,352 

142,633 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDCSTARY 

BASIS BUDCSTARY 

10,219 
(27,817) 

2.950 

S 7,211,418 

147,858 
2,663,535 

145,583 

BUTDGETARYAMOUNTS 

10,183.042 (14,648) 10,168.394 

ORIGSNAL 

BUDGET 

8,295,861 

152,022 
3,401,719 

15,373 

11.864,975 

FINAL 

BUDCET 

7,955,876 

136,470 
3,408,412 

9.797 

11.510.555 

\ARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUTK3ET 

POSITT\-E 
(NEGATIVE) 

744,458 
(11,388) 

744,877 

(135,786) 

1.342,161 

PUBLIC SAIEIY^ 
Pei"sonnel 
Supplies 
Seivice charges 
Capital outlay 

17,137,101 
644,115 

2,361,685 
410.464 

(51,390) 

18,511 

(43,363) 
(323,420) 

17,085,711 
662,626 

2,318,322 

87.044 

17,885,422 17,509,505 
683,904 652,893 

2,417,996 2,648,729 
172,940 

423,794 
(9,733) 

330,407 
85,896 

Total public safety 20,553,365 (399,662) 20,153,703 20.987,322 20.984.067 830,364 

PUBUC WORKS 
Personnel 

Supplies 

Service chai'ges 

Capital outlay 

Total public works 

3,181,277 

428,834 

1,376,256 

1.240 

4,987.607 

(12,567) 

48.407 

35.840 

3,181,277 

416,267 

1,424,663 

1.240 

5,023.447 

3,281,750 

786,416 

1.466,461 

5.534,627 

3,332,312 

802,223 

1,484,054 

1.593 

5.620.182 

151,035 

385,956 

59,391 

353 

596,735 

HEALTH AND WELFARE 
Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

Total health and welfere 

(Continued) 

127,834 
5.430 

133.264 

392 

392 

127,834 
5,430 
392 

133.656 

101,484 

1,675 

1,500 

104,659 

134,749 
6,455 
1.500 

142.704 

6,915 

1,025 

1,108 
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CIT\ OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIlXliES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

GENERAL FUAD 
YEAR ENDED JIT^E 30, 2019 

CULTIM:AND RECRIAllON 

Pei'soimel 
Supplies 
Semce charges 
Capital outlay 

Total culture and recreation 

TRANSIT 

Personnel 
Supplies 
Service charges 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

2,596.719 
266,411 
759,678 

6,797 

3,629,605 

483.106 

ADJUSTMENT 

TOBUDdTARY 

BASIS 

(19,192) 

17,659 
1,191 

(342) 

(42,232) 
65,368 

BUTDdlARY 

$ 2,596,719 
247,219 
777,337 

7,988 

3,629.263 

(42,232) 
548.474 

BUDdTARY AMOUNTS 

ORKINAL 

BUDdT 

2.532,563 
322,790 
752,967 

4,100 

3,612,420 

552,037 

FINAL 

BUDdT 

2.604,619 
339,637 
927,454 

51,575 

3,923,285 

552,037 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDdT 

POSITIVE 
(NHJATIVE) 

$ 7,900 

92,418 

150,117 
43,587 

294,022 

42,232 
3.563 

TOTAL TRANSIT 483.106 23.136 506.242 552.037 552.037 45.795 

TOT.4L IXPiNDiniRES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

30,254,349 
1,482,429 
7,672,077 
.561.134 

(51,390) 
(45,261) 
60,646 

(319,279) 

30,202,959 
1,437,168 
7,732,723 
241,855 

32,097,080 
1,946,807 
8,592,680 

19.473 

31,537,061 
1,937,678 
9,022,186 
235.905 

1,334,102 
500,510 

1,289,463 
(5,950) 

TOT.4 L EXPENDITLT^S 39,969.989 (355,284) $ 39,614,705 42.656,040 $ 42.732,830 3,118,125 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITLHES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTION 

COUNCIL OmCE 

EXPENDITURE 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Caphal outlay 

ADJUSTMENT 

TOBUDCETARY 

BASIS 

512,423 S 

17,009 (8,774) 

(2.017) 

(4.462) 

BUDCEIARY 

S 812,423 

8,235 

85,759 

(2,735) 

BUEHETARY AMOUNTS 

ORK3NAL 
BUDCgr 

810,791 

37.170 

167,450 

10,MO 

FINAL 

BUDffiT 

S 829.448 

17,040 

111.156 

1.550 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDQEI 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 17,025 

8,805 

25,397 

4.285 

(15,253) 903.682 1.025,411 959.1 

MAYOR'S OFFICE 

EXPENDirURK 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital otitlay 

748,424 

7,631 

43.789 

ADJUSTMENT 
TO BUEKSTARY 

BASIS 

(452) 

(406) 

BUDCETARY 

S "48,424 

7,179 

43J83 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BUIXaT 

758.728 
ii.ax) 
41,365 

FINAL 

BUTK^ 

S 768,"S7 

9,"00 

43.710 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDC^ 

POSmVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 20,333 

2,521 

327 

Total e^endifuies (858) 23,181 

EXPEsTITURK 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Seivice charges 

1,233,186 

20,129 

57,220 

594 

.ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDdTARY 

BASIS 

(.597) 

(360) 

BUDGETARY 

S 1,233,186 

19,.532 

56,8M 

594 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BUDGET 

1,286.745 

21,250 

FINAL 

BUTDCET 

1.306,102 

24.382 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BLTXEF 

POSITIVE 

(NEGJATTVE) 

$ 72,916 

4.850 

Total e?|3enditures 1,311,129 (957) 1,310,172 1,403.195 110,670 

RISK. INSURANCE AUDIT & COMPUANCE 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

268,363 

4.CX)5 

2C»,7U 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS BUTXEI.ARY 

S 268,363 

4,005 

209.711 

3.080 

BUIXETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BUDCEI 

295,021 
6.(X)0 

248.582 

FINAL 

BUDtET 

297.244 

6.023 

249.281 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

$ 28,881 

2,018 

39.570 

(3,080) 

Total e^endifures 

(Conlinued) 
482,079 485.159 7,389 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDLTLE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTION (CONTINUED) 

PURCH.'^SING 

EXPENDITURES 

Peisofiiiel 

Supplies 

Sendee charses 

297 

44 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

(297) 

(44) 

BUDCETARY 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BUDCET 

FINAL 

BmXJET 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

posrn\E 
(NEOATIVE) 

Total e^endiwres (341) 

PHGSONNEL 

EXPENDITURES 

Peisoniiel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capiial outlay 

303,06! 

3306 

13.972 

ADJUSTMEs'T 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

(446) 

(340) 

BUDGETARY 

$ 303,061 

2,8«) 

13.632 

BUDtETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIGINAL 

BLT^CET 

298,731 

2.933 

16.542 

FIN.AL 

BLTXEI 

303,596 

3,548 

17.627 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 535 

688 

3,995 

Total expenditures 320,339 319.553 

EXPENDITURES 

Penonnel 

Supplies 

Sendee charges 

308,440 

1,865 

24,674 

349 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

1,413 

(2,528) 

BUDGETARY 

$ 308.440 

3,278 

22,146 

349 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIGINAL 

BLTXET 

S 464,658 

4.100 

36,191 

5,000 

FINAL 

BLTXET 

365,022 

2,895 

3" .296 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 56.582 

(383) 

15,150 

4.651 

Total e^enditures (1.115) $ 334.213 509,949 410,213 

EXPENDITURK 

Persoimel 

Supplies 

Sendee charges 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

(Continued) 

INFORMATION TECHNOIXJGY 

ADJUSTMHSH 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS BUDGEF.ARY 

7,118 9,606 

260.895 (18,538) 

617,329 $ (8,932) 

349B16 

16,724 

242,357 

8,397 

BUDGEFARY AMOUNTS 

ORIGHNAL 

BLTXET 

396,509 
13,656 

221.310 

FINAL 

BLTXET 

S 365.843 
14,171 

271,945 

VARIANCE 

WITH FIN.AL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 

(NEQATIVE) 

$ 16,527 

(2,553) 

29.588 

43,562 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDLTLE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BLTDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENER AL FUND 
GENERAL GOWRNMENT FUNCTION (CONTINUED) 

CIVIL SERVICE 

EXPENDITURES 

Peisoniiel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

17L341 

2,567 

30,279 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

519 

(2) 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

BUDGETARY 

$ 171.341 

3,086 

30.277 

ORIONAL 

BUDCET 

216,618 

2,500 

63.285 

373 

FINAL 

BUTXET 

212,473 

3,015 

73,489 

373 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUD<^ 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 41,132 

(71) 

43,212 

373 

Total e^enditures 204,187 4.704 282.776 

GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSE 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

961,277 

56.049 

772,338 

137.689 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDCETARY 

BASIS 

(1,695) 

(3,484) 

7.036 

BUDGETARY 

$ 961.277 

54.354 

768,854 

144.725 

BUDt^ARY AMOUNTS 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET 

551,166 

34.313 

992.962 

FINAL 

BLTXET 

537,(»8 

36.196 

983.718 

VARL-VNCE 

WTTHFIN.AL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ (424,179) 

(18,158) 

214,864 

(144.725) 

Total e^endituies 1.927.353 1.857 1.929.21 1.578,441 1.557,012 (372,198) 

MAYOR'S COURT 

EXPENDITURES 

Peisoniiel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

738,863 
12,195 

133,514 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS BUDGETARY 

$ 738.863 

23,170 

133.514 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIGINAL 

BUDCEI 

805,799 

13,500 

196.000 

FIN.AL 

BLTXET 

816,980 
13,800 

195.700 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDtET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 78,117 

(9,370) 

62,186 

Total e^endituies 884,57 10.975 895.547 1.015.299 1.026.480 

EXPENDITl-TRES 

Personnel 

SuppHes 

Service charaes 

826,169 

5,468 

61.385 

2,274 

CITYATTORNEY 

ADJUSTMHSIT 

TO BUDtETARY 

BASIS BUTXETARY 

$ 826,169 

(33) 5.435 

(98) 61.287 

(2,704) (430) 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORICaNAL 

BLTXET 

FINAL 

BUTXJET 

836.095 S 

5.000 

826.014 

5,700 

61,532 

2.274 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUIXET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

S (155) 

265 

245 

2,704 

Total e?pendituiBb 895.296 (2.835) $ 892.461 895,520 3,059 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISL4NA 

COMBINING SCHEDIXE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTION (CONTINUED) 

INSURANCE 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service chaises 

Capital outlay 

980,626 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDf^ARY 

BASIS BUDffiTARY 

980,626 

BUIX$T ARY AMOUNTS 

ORKINAL 

BUDC^ 

1.275.C 

FINAL 

BUDGET 

1.273.200 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDCET 

POSITIVE 

(NEQATTVE) 

Total e?q}etiditures 1,2"3,200 292,S"4 

PAYINCENTIV^ 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Seivke chaiges 

Capital outlay 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

ACTUAL BASIS 

490,555 

BUD($TARY 

490,555 

BUEKETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BUDGET 

S 1.575.C 

FLNAL 

BUDGET 

1,327.299 

VARIANCE 

WITH FE9AL 

BLTDdT 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 836,744 

Total e}q)enditures 490,555 490,555 1,327.299 836,744 

EXPHMDITURES 

Persoimel 

Supplies 

Service chaises 

Capital outlay 

15,129 

.ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDC^TARY 

BASIS BUDGETARY 

15,129 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BUDGET 

FINAL 

BUDGET 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDCET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

(15,129) 

Total ej^jenditures 15,129 S (15,129) 

TOTAL - (SNERAL ODVERNMENT FUNCTION 

EXPENDITURE 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Seivke chaigea 

Capital outlay 

7.211,418 

137,639 

2,691.3.52 

142,633 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

10.219 

(27,817) 

2.950 

BUDGETARY 

$ 7.211,418 

147,858 

2,663.535 

145,583 

BLTXET ARY AMOUNTS 

ORKHNAL 

BUDtST 

S 8.295.861 

152.022 

3,401,719 

15,373 

FINAL 

BUDffiT 

7,955,876 

136.470 

3,408,412 

9.797 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDCEI 

POSITIVE 

(NEOATIVEl 

$ 744,458 

(11,388) 

744,8"7 

(135,786) 

Total eiqjenditures S 10.183,042 (14.648) $ 10.168,394 11.864.975 11.510.555 1.342.161 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUT^D 
PUmiC SAFETY FLECTION 

POUCE ADxMMSTRAmi SERVICES 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

2,012.851 

39,778 

767,253 

64J93 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

6,183 

(15,473) 

(17,429) 

BUDGEIARY 

$ 2.012,851 

45.961 
751.780 
46,964 

BUTXET ARY A.MOUNTS 

ORICSNAL 

BUDCTT 

2,068..544 

35,0(X) 

792.00) 

FINAL 

BLTM^ 

S 2.011,344 

37,100 

720,000 

38.100 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BLTXEI 

POSITIVE 

(KEOATTVE) 

S (1,507) 

(8.861) 

(31.780) 

Total et^ienditiires 2.884.275 (26,719) $ 2,857.556 2.895,544 6,544 (51.012) 

(Continued) 

POUCE FIELD SERVICES 

EXPENDITURES 

Pereoimel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

6,789,876 

362,220 

1.300,550 

338343 

.ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

S (10,910) 

10.061 

(25.563) 

(304,704) 

BUDCglARY 

$ 6,778,966 

372.281 

1374.987 

33.639 

BLTXEIARY AxMOUNTS 

ORICffNAL 

BUDffiT 

6,197,103 

440,00) 

1.23 

FINAL 

BLDCffiT 

6,772,403 

353,000 

1,510,700 

127.850 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BLDCEI 

posmvE 
(NEGATIVE) 

S (6,563) 

(19.281) 

235.713 

94311 

Total et^ienditures 8.790.989 (331,116) $ 8,459,873 8,763,953 

POUCE INVKTIQATING SERVICES 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service chaiges 

Capital outlay 

3,209,336 

6,555 

14.179 

ADJUSTMENT 

TOBUDffiTARY 

BASIS 

S (35,530) 

(1,222) 

BUDGETARY 

$ 3,173,806 

5,333 

14,179 

BLTX^.ARY AMOUNTS 

ORKSNAL 

BUDGET 

3,348,8« 
11,(X» 

15.003 

FINAL 

BLDGEI 

3,205,416 

5,750 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

S 31,610 

417 

(179) 

10 

Total ejpenditores 3,230.760 (36,752) $ $ 3,374,5 3,225,8 

POUCE COMMLTTCATIONS SERVICE 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

787,446 

380 

57.726 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS BUDGETARY 

787.446 

380 

57,726 

BUIXET ARY AxMOUNTS 

ORIcaNAL 

BUIXIT 

701,608 

I5.0«3 

FE4AL 

BLDC^ 

500 

39.000 

VOVRLANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BLT>C^ 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATTVE) 

S (538) 

120 

(18,726) 

Total ejqtendilures 845.552 845.552 716.«!8 826.408 (19,144) 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISL4NA 
COMBINING SCHEDIJLE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL Fl^D 
PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION (C0NTINUT:D) 

POUCE JAIL SHIMCES 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 
Service chai'ges 
Capital outlay 

L151214 

136372 

22.444 

ADJUSTMH4T 

TO BUDt^ARY 

BASIS 

2..596 

(260) 

BUDCEIARY 

$ L251214 

138.96S 

22.184 

BUDC^ARY AMOUNTS 

ORI(3NAL 

BUDGET 

953T03 

122.000 

10.000 

FETAL 

BUDGET 

L153T03 

135.000 

22.600 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BLDdT 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ (2.111) 

(3.968) 

2.426 

Total eiqjendituras 2.313.190 2.176 2.315.366 1,084.103 S 1,310.703 

(Continued) 

POUCE TECHNICAL SERVICES 

EXPEsDirURES 

Personnel 

Service charges 

Capital outhy 

1.429,682 

48..569 

30,769 

4376 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDCEIARY 

BASIS 

7.975 

(4,344) 

(1,550) 

BUDCEI.ARY 

$ 1,429,682 

56.544 

26,425 

BUDGEI.ARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BLTXST 

2.453,481 

22.000 

17.000 

FINAL 

BLDffiT 

1.411,681 

57.100 

30,950 

1.500 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDCEI 

POSITIVE 

(N'mATIVE) 

556 

4,525 
(1,326) 

Total et^ieiiditures 1.513.396 2.081 S (14,246) 

CODE ENFORCEMENT - ADMINISTRATION 

EXPENDITURES 

Persontiel 

Supplies 
Service charges 
Capital outlay 

1,342,061 

23,626 

157.707 

l,3W 

ADJUSTMH4T 

TO BLTX^ARY 

BASIS 

(4,18^ 

347 

BUDGETARY 

158.054 

l,3W 

BUDC^ARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BLTK^ 

1,633,112 

24,254 

316.632 

FETAL 

EUDGEI 

1,641,222 

25,369 

292.929 

3.490 

VARIANCE 

WITH FETAL 

BUDdT 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 299,161 

5,929 

134.875 

2.100 

Total eiqjendituras 1.524.7 (3.839) 1.520.945 1,973.5 S 1,963.010 442.065 

POUCE SUPPORT SERVICES 

EXPBsDirURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service chaiges 
Capital outhy 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUTK^ARY 

ACTUAL BASIS BUDCEIARY 

(39398) $ (4,950) $ (44348) 

BUDCETARY AMOUNTS 

ORICSNAL 

BLTXET 

FETAL 

BUDffiT 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

Total e^jendituies (39.298) $ (4.950) $ (44.248) 44.248 



CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUTO 
PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION (CONTINLTID) 

CODE ENFORCEMENT - Es'SPECTIDNS 

EXPENDITURES 

Peisonnel 

SupplKi 

Seivke chatgei 

226,254 

24,782 

1016 

ADJUSTMENT 

TOBUDCETARY 

BASIS 

(2,896) 

2,325 

BUDCETARY" 

S 226.254 

21.886 

7.341 

BUDCETARY AMOUNTS 
ORKHNAL 
BUD(ET 

272,324 

28,250 

8.084 

FDiAL 

BUDGET 

35,988 

8,256 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 
BUDCET 

POSITIVE 
(NEaATIVE) 

S 42229 

14.102 

915 

Total e^endituie^ 256.052 (5>1) 255,481 308.658 57,246 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

EXPENDITURES 

Peii onnel 

Siippiie? 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

Total e;q)endhure5 

223.679 

1.833 

7041 

1.112 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDdTARY 

BASIS 

(395) 

423 

BUIXET.ARY 

223,679 

1.833 

BLTIGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORK2NAL 

BUDGET 

257.281 

2.W 

10.280 

FINAL 

BUDGET 

10,294 

1.300 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

S 35266 

1253 

3.648 

233,665 233.693 269,961 273.625 

TOTAL - PUBUC SAFETY FUNCTION 

EXPENDITURES 

Peri oune! 

Supplies 

Service charges 

1 outlay 

17,137,101 

644,115 

2.361,685 

410,464 

ADJUSTMENT 
TOBLT)(ETARY 

BASIS BUDGETARY 

S (51.390) 

18.511 

(43.363) 
(323.420) 

17.085.711 

662.626 

2,318222 

87.044 

BUDGETARY AMOUTITS 

ORIG2NAL 

BUDGET 

17.885.422 

683.904 

2.417.996 

FINAL 

BUDtEI 

$ 17.509.505 

652.893 
2.648.729 

172.940 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 
BUD(ET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 423,794 

(9,733) 

330,407 

Total eiqienditures 20.553,365 20.153.703 20.987.322 $ 20.984.067 830,364 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDUTLE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXFENDITLiRES - BL1>GET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 
PUBLIC WORKS FUTS'CTION 

PUBUC WORKS - STREET UCHTING 

VARIANCE 

EXPHS'DmJRES 

Pereonoel 

Supplies 

Service charges 
1 oullav 

271,356 

899,025 

613 

ADJUSTMBsT 

TOBUEXETARY 

BASIS 

(6,670) 

12.269 

BUEKEIARY 

$ 271,356 

(7,548) 

911,294 

613 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

ORICSNAL 

BLTXZT 

: 3i»,788 

70,000 

984,000 

FINAL 

BLTXET 

313,1 

WITH FINAL 

BUDCET 

posm\E 
(NECfe^TIVE) 

S 41,828 

76,935 

58,196 

Total ejpenditures 1.170,116 5,5? 1,17.5,715 1,363.788 1,352,674 176.959 

PUBUC WORKS - TRAFFIC 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

197.657 

AD-TUSTMBSY 

TOBUTXEIARY 

BASIS 

35.964 

BUD^TARY 

197,657 

122.310 

BLTKEIARY .AMOUNTS 

ORICINAL 

BUDCET 

239,087 

50,00) 

FINAL 

BUDGET 

243.478 

85,792 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BLTXET 

POSITIVE 

(NEOATICE) 

$ 45,821 

(36.518) 

Total ei^eiiilitores 2S4,<»3 35,964 289,087 329,270 

PUBUC WORKS - PARKWAYS 

EXPENDIOJRES 

Peftoniiel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

105,056 

152,119 

AD.TUSTMH4T 

TO BLTXET ARY 

BASIS BLTXETARY 

(330) 
22,783 

105,056 
17,674 
174.902 

BLTDCETARY .AMOUNTS 

ORICJNAL 

BUrXET 

18,00) 

150,00) 

FINAL 

BUEXET 

95,203 

19,720 

164,440 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BLTXET 

POSITIVE 

(NEiQATIVE) 

2.046 

(10.462) 

Total e}^endituies 

(Continued) 

275,179 22,453 (18.272) 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUTVD 
PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION (CONTINUED) 

PUBUC WORKS - FLEET MANAGEMENT 

EXPENDITURES 
Pereoimel 
Supplies 
Service charaes 
Capita! outlay 

ACTUAL 

8.197 
8,017 

ADJUSTMENT 
TOBU'DGETARY 

BASIS 

S 
(24,6i2) 
21.924 

BUTXSTARY 

$ 409,654 

163.565 

109,941 

BLTKETARYAMOUNTS 
ORK3NAL 
BL'DCET 

424,561 
482,416 
99.311 

FINAL 
BLTJCET 

434,483 
475.778 
102.949 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUIXST 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

S 24,829 
312,213 

Total e^endilures (2,708) 3.160 1.013.210 330,050 

PURTTC WORKS - <3N"HIAL SERVICES 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel 
Supplies 
Service charges 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

1,636.834 
116,152 
46.054 

627 

ADJUSTMENT 
TOBLDC^TARY 

BASIS 

(16,871) 

6,097 

BUDGETARY 

S 1.636,834 
99,281 
52.151 

627 

BUTXETARYAMOUNTS 
ORK2NAL 
BUIX^ 

1,566.245 
140,50) 

.38.150 

FINAL 
BUDGET 

1.631.7.34 
126,046 
49.175 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

S (5,100) 
26,765 
(2,976) 

353 

Total expenditures 1. S (10,774) 1.744,895 S 1,807,935 

PUBUC WORKS ADMDHSTRATION 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel 
Supplies 
Sendee charges 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

560.720 
21.01.3 

191,041 

ADJUSTMENT 
TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

(14,666) 

BUDGETARY 

$ 560,720 
20,985 

176.375 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 
ORICSNAL 
BUTXET 

742.06 
25.50 

195.00 

FINAL 
BLDCET 

614.233 
25.500 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BLDCET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

S 53,513 
4,515 

21.625 

Total expenditures 772,774 (14,694) $ 758.C 962.5 837,733 79.653 

TOTAL - PLDUC WORKS FLTsCTION 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel 
Supplies 
Service charges 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

.3,181,277 
428.834 

1,376,256 
1.240 

ADJUSTMENT 
TOBUDCETARY 

BASIS 

(12,567) 

48.407 

BLDCET ARY 

$ 3.181,277 
416,267 

1,424,663 
1240 

BLTKETARYAMOUNTS 
ORICaNAL 
BUIK^T 

.3281.750 
786.416 

1,466.461 

FINAL 
BLDCET 

S 3..332,312 
802,223 

1,484,054 
1,593 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDCEI 
POSHIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

S 151,035 

385,956 

59,391 

353 

Total expenditures 35.8 S 5.023,447 5,5.34.627 5.620.182 596,735 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISL4NA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 
HEALTH AND WELFARE FUNCTION 

CODE ENFORCEMECr - HUMANE 

EXPEviDITURK 
Personnel 
Supplies 
Service charees 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

134,995 
678 

ADJUSTMECT 
TO BUTKH'ARY 

BASIS 

392 

BUDdTARY 

$ 134,995 
678 
392 

BUDGETARY AMOLOTS 
ORIONAL 
BUDGET 

101,484 
1.675 
1.500 

FINAL 
BLTKiEr 

134,749 
1,675 
1.500 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BLTXEI 
POSITIVE 

(NEGVnVE) 

S (246) 

997 
1.108 

Total e^endilures 135,673 392 136,0 104.659 137,^ 1.859 

COUNCIL ON A<aNG 

EXPENDITURE 
Personnel 
Supplies 
Service charges 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

{7,161} 
4,752 

ADJUSTMEsT 
TO BLTXETARY 

B.ASIS BUDdTARY 

(7,161) 
4,752 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 
ORICSNAL 
BLEK3ET 

FINAL 
BUDdT 

4.780 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUlXdl 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

S 7,161 

Total et^enditures (2.409) 

TOTAL - HEALTH ANT) WELFARE FUNCTION 

BCPENDITURES 
Personnel 
Supplies 
Seivice charges 
Capital outky 

ACTUAL 

127,834 

ADJUSTMENT 
TO BUTXETARY 

BASIS BUDdTARY 

392 

127,834 
5,430 

392 

BUDdlARY AMOUNTS 
ORIGIN.AL 
BLTXET 

101,484 
1,675 
1,500 

nNAL 
BUDdT 

S 134,749 
6,455 
1,500 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 6,915 
1,025 
1,108 

Totalet^endilures 133.264 392 133.656 104,6 142,704 9,048 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BITIGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FU^D 
CULTURE AND RECREATION FUNiCTION 

LEKURE SERVICES 

Peisonnel 
Supplies 
Semce charges 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

134.137 
94,051 

ADJUSTMH4T 
TOBLTXSTARY 

BASIS 

(4,827) 
17,503 

BLTX£TARY 

$ 134,137 
89.224 
17.503 

BUDffilARY AMOUNTS 
ORIGINAL 
BLTX£T 

S 300,808 
72.790 

FINAL 
BUDGET 

139,781 
142.922 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BLTCET 
POSimE 

(NEGATTCE) 

$ 5.644 
53,698 

(17,503) 

Total e^enditures 228.188 12.676 373, 282,703 41.839 

(Continued) 

PLANETARIUM 

EXPENDITURES 
Peisoimel 
Supplies 
Service cliarges 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

64,647 
16,551 
8.829 

ADJUSTMENT 
TOBLTXETARY 

BASIS 

(2.15.3) 
3.630 

BLTXglARY 

$ 64.647 
14.398 
1Z459 

BLtDGEIARY AMOUNTS 
ORIONAL 

62.094 
50.000 

5,(X)0 

FINAL 
BUDC^ 

64,596 

27,232 

13,832 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BLTXST 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ (51) 
12,834 

1.373 

Total e^enditures W,027 1.477 $ 91.504 117.094 105.630 14,156 

CULTURE & RECREATION - HUMANTITES AND MUSEUMS 

EXPEND1TU"RES 
Personnel 
Supplies 
Seivice charges 
Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

107.802 
3.953 

ADJUSTMENT 
TOBLTX^ARY 

BASIS BLTXSTARY 

$ 107,802 
3,953 

BLTXET ARY AMOUNTS 
ORIGINAL 
BLTXST 

100,946 
15,500 

li2,tX(0 

FINAL 
BUDGET 

107,862 
7,158 

99,173 
594 594 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BLTXET 
POSITIVE 

(NBTATIVE) 

$ 60 
3,205 

(1,316) 
6 

Total e:q>eiidrtt!!"es 212.8.38 H2,8 228,446 214,793 1,955 

CULTURE & RBIREATION - MAIN STREET PRO<3A.M 

EXPENDITURES 
Peisonnel 
Supplies 
Seivke charges 
Capital otitlay 

ACTUAL 

38.326 
(2,503) 
5,620 

ADJUSTMENT 
TOBUTXITARY 

BASIS 

(115) 
(13) 

BLDCTTARY 

$ 38,.326 
(2,618) 
5.607 

40 

BUDffiTARY AMOUNTS 
ORIONAL 

37,398 
1,500 

10.300 
2.200 

FINAL 
BUDGET 

38,227 
1,500 

10,159 
2,1(» 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BLTXET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGAUVigl 

$ (99) 

4.118 
4,552 

Total e^eiidituies 42.443 1,.355 51,298 51,986 10.631 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOIJISIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 
CULTURE AND RECREATION FinSCTION (CONTINUED) 

RBriEATION - ATHmnCS 

EXPHsDITURES 
Peisofinel 

Supplies 

Seivke chaiges 

Capital outlay 

1,324.553 

93.CH2 

479,586 

3,553 

ADJUSTMENT 

TOBUDCEIARY 

BASIS 

(7,655) 

51,329 

BUIXSTARY 

$ 1,324,553 
85,387 

530,915 

3.553 

BUDCETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIONAL 

BUDCET 

1,472,549 

565,667 

FINAL 

BUEKET 

1,334,748 

91,303 

551.528 

42,365 

VARLANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDCET 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

S 10,195 
5,916 

20.613 
38.812 

Total e^etidilures 1.900.734 1,944,4 2,159; 2,019,944 75,536 

RECREATION MAINTHC.ANCE 

EXPHsDITURES 

Peisonnel 
Supplies 
Seivke chaiges 
Capital outlay 

666.238 
58.412 
133,202 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDCETARY 

BASIS 

(4,442) 

(49,953) 

1,151 

BUDCETARY 

53,970 

83,249 

1.151 

BUDCETARY AMOLTJTS 

ORICSNAL 

BUDCET 

558,768 

FINAL 

BUDCET 

647,461 
67,023 

209.965 

VARLANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDCET 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

S (18,777) 

13,053 

126.716 
(1.151) 

(53.24 804,6 682,768 119,841 

CITY PARK OPERATIONS 

EXPENDITURE 

Fkrsonnel 

Supplies 

Sen-ke charges 

Capital otitlay 
(2.672) 

AD.TUSTMENT 

TOBLDCETARY 

BASIS 

(5.207) 

BUDCETARY 

(7,879) 

BUDCETARY AMOUNTS 

ORIOKAL 

BUDCET 

FINAL 

BUDCET 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDCET 

rosnrvE 
(NEGATIVE) 

Total e^eiiditures (2,672) (5207)1 (7,871 7,879 

CULTURE & RECREATION - FCX)D BANE; 

EXPENDITURE 

Personuei 

Siipplies 

Service chsiges 

Capital outlay 

ACTUAL 

S 261,016 

2,905 

34,624 

2.650 

ADJUSTMENT 

TOBLDCETARY 

BASIS BUDCETARY 

261,016 

2,905 

34 .»4 

2,650 

BUDCETARY AMOUNTS 

RICaNAL FINAL 

BLDCET 

271.944 

2.499 

42.797 

6.510 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 
(NBGAmE) 

$ 10,928 
(406) 

7,803 

3,S60 

Total e^enditures 

(Continued) 

301.195 301,565 323,750 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BIDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENER AL FUND 
CULTURE AND RECREATION FUNCTION (CONTINUED) 

TOTAL - CULTLIRE AND RECREATION FUNCTION 

EXPENOnURK 

PeiBonnel 

Supplies 

Seivke charges 

Capital outlay 

S 2,596.719 

266,411 

7.59,678 

6.797 

.ADJUSTMENT 

TOBUTXETARY 

(19,192) 

17,6.59 

1,191 

BUIXETARY 

$ 2,596,719 

247,219 

777,337 

BLTXETARY .AMOUNTS 

ORICSN.AL 

BUD(ET 

S 2,532,563 

322,790 

752.967 

4.100 

FINAL 

BUDCET 

2.604,619 

339.637 

927,454 

51,575 

VARIANCE 

WITHITNAL 

BUDCET 

posm\E 
(NEGATIVE) 

92,418 
150,117 
43.587 

Total ejpenditures 3,629.605 (342) 3.629.263 3,61Z420 3.923,285 



CITY OF KENNER, LOiTSlANA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 
TRANSIT FUNCTION 

TOTAL - TRANSIT FUNCTION 

EXPHvDITURES 

Personnel 

ADJUSTMENT 

TOBUDCETARY 

BASIS BUXXETARY 

BUEXETARYAMOUNTTS 

ORICJNAL 

BLTXET 

FINAL 

BLTXET 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

(42^J2) (42,232) 

65,368 548,474 552,03" 

VAKLANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUIXET 

POSITIVE 

(NTOATIVEi 

42,232 
3,563 

Total ej^ienditures 483,106 23,136 $ 506,242 45,795 

97 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 
YEAR ENDED JU^NE 30, 2019 

ACTUAL 

ADJUSTMENT 

TO BUDGETARY 

BASIS 

BUDCTTARY AMOUNTS 

ORIGINAL FINAL 
BUD(STARY BUDC^ BUDGET 

VARLANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIAE 
(NEGATIAE) 

RE\TNUES 
IntergovemiTEntal 

Iiiferest 

Miscellaneous 

$ 283,232 283,232 

2,439 

$ 143,360 
7 

$ 143,360 

2.200 

139,872 

239 

Total revenues 285.671 285,671 145.560 145,560 140,111 

EXPENDHURES 
Public works; 

Capital outlay 

Totalpublic works 

Culture and recreation: 

Capital outlay 

Total culture and recreation 

Urban development: 

Peisonnel 

Supplies 

Service charges 

Capital outlay 

498,274 

5,161 

61.633 

(477) 
498,274 
4,684 

61,821 

556,223 
7,1«) 

74.692 

563.355 
6,650 
76,092 

65,081 
1,966 

14,271 

Total mban developnKiit 

(Corttini^d) 

565, (289) 564,779 638,015 646,097 81.318 



CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REWNUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

COMMUNITY DETCLOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 
YEAR ENDED HJNE 30,2019 

(CONILNUED) 

ADJUSTMENT BUD(XTARY AMOUNTS 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 
BUDGE! 

TO BUDGETARY 
ACTUAL RASIS BUDGEIARY 

ORIONAL 
BUDCSJ 

FINAL 
BUDGEl 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATI\L) 

IXPINDllLiRtS (COiN llNCED) 
Health & Welfare: 

Peisoiinel 
Supplies 
Service charges 

Capital outlay 

$ 376,650 $ - S 376,650 
2,755 - 2,755 

4,143 - 4,143 

$ 567,696 
7,258 

39,101 
2,700 

$ 413,326 
11,858 

6,019 

S 36,676 
9,103 
1,876 

Total Health & WeUkre 383,548 - 383,548 616,755 431.203 47,655 

Total Ejqjenditures 948,616 (289) 948,327 1,254,770 1,077,300 128.973 

Dfiiess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) e^enditures (662,945) 289 (662,656) (1,109,210) (931,740) 269.084 

OTHm FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfer's out 

580,039 - 580,039 757,509 580,039 -

Total other financing sources (uses) 580,039 - 580,039 757,509 580.039 

Net change in fiind balance (82,906) 289 (82,617) (351,701) (351,701) 269,084 

Fund balance - beginning of year' 553,328 - 553,328 553,328 553.328 

Fund balance - end of vear $ 470,422 $ 289 S 470.711 $ 201,627 $ 201,627 S 269,084 

See accoiT|)an)Tng note to biuiggtary conpamon schedules. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDUILE OF REWNUIES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GARBAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FUIND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

ADJUSTMENT BUDGETARY AMOUNTS 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDCTT 

ACTUAL 
TO BLTXETARY 

BASIS BLTXSTARY 
ORIONAL 
BUDGET 

FINAL 
BUDOT 

POSrTI\E 
(NEGATIVE) 

REV1NUES 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem fax 
Qiarges forseivices: 

Garbage fees and penalties 
Interest 

$ 788,751 

3,121,560 

$ - $ 788,751 

3,121,560 

$ 780,772 

3,388,065 

$ 780,772 

3,388,065 

$ 7,979 

(266,505) 

Total revenues 3,910,311 3,910,311 4,168,837 4,168,837 (258,526) 

EXPINDmiRES 
Public works: 

Contractual services 4,631,667 4,631,667 4,648,224 4,648,224 16,557 

Total ejf)enditures 4.631.667 4,631.667 4,648,224 4,648,224 16.557 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) eiqrendituies (721,356) (721,356) (479,387) (479,387) (241,969) 

OTHER FINANCING SOmCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

721,356 - 721,356 479,387 479,387 241,969 

Total other financing sources (trses) 721.356 721.356 479.387 479,387 241.969 

Net change in fiind balances - - - - - -

Fund balance - beginning of year - - - - - _ 

Fimd balance - end of year 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REILNLTIS, EXPENDIIURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BLTIGET AND ACTUAL 

STREETS AND DRAINAGE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

ADJUSTMENT BLTKJETARY AMOLTTTS 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUT)($T 

ACTUAL 

TO BUTKSTARY 

BASIS BUDGETARY 

ORICINAL 

BUTK3Er 

FINAL 
BUTK^ 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVT^TIES 

Taies: 
Ad valorem tax $ 2.301,425 $ $ 2,301,425 $ 2,274,132 $ 2,274,132 $ 27,293 

Total revenues 2,301,425 2,301.425 2,274,132 2,274,132 27,293 

EXPENDirURES 

Public works: 
Persomiel 
Supplies 
Capital outtey 

Service charges 

1,410,733 

229,123 

1.386 

(21,866) 

1,410.733 

207.257 

1.386 

1,868,880 

405,252 

1,836,515 

459,802 

660 

425,782 

252,545 

(726) 

Total CT^enditures 1.641,242 (21,866) 1,619,376 2,274,132 2,296,977 677.601 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 660.183 21,866 682,049 (22,845) 704,894 

OTHER FINANCING S OTRCiS 

Transfers m 

Transfers out 

22,845 
(683,028) 

- 22,845 
(683,028) 

- 22,845 
(683,028) 

Net change in fiind babnce - 21,866 21,866 - - 21,866 

Fund balance - beginnmg of year _ _ 

Fund balance - end of year $ $ 21,866 $ 21,866 $ $ $ 21,866 

See acconpan^^ note to biKi^tary conparison sctednfes. 
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aXY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REXTNUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL DEBT FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 
ADJUSTMENT BUIX^ARY AMOUNTS BUDdT 

ACTUAL 
TO BUDC^ARY 

BASIS BUDCtlARY 
ORIGINAL 
BUDGEl 

FINAL 
BUD($T 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

REVENTES 
Ta>£s: 

Sales tax 
Interest 

S 4,014,871 
103.237 

s $ 4,014,871 
103.237 

$ 4,276,909 
26.500 

S 4,276,909 
26,500 

S (262,038) 
76,737 

Total revenues 4,118,108 4,118,108 4,303,409 4,303,409 (185,301) 

EXPENDirURIB 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

2,777,000 
1,676,998 

36,000 

- 2,777,aX) 
1,676,998 

36.000 

3,468,000 
1,869,535 

36,000 

3,468,000 
1,869,535 

36,000 

691,0)0 
192,537 

Total e^enditures 4,489,998 4.489.998 5,373,535 5,373,535 883,537 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) e>^enditures (371,890) (371,890) (1,070,126) (1,070,126) 698,236 

OTHER FIN ANCING SOURCES (ISES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

1,208,126 
(196,0(») 

- 1.208,126 
(196,000) 

1,208,126 1,208,126 
(196,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,012,126 1.012.126 1,208,126 1,208,126 (196,0)0) 

Net change in fimd batance 640,236 - 640,236 138,000 138,000 502,236 

Fund balance - beginning ofyear 3,234,542 3.234.542 3,234,542 3,234,542 

Fund balance - end ofyear S 3,874,778 $ $ 3.874,778 $ 3,372,542 S 3,372,542 S 502.236 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOLTSIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVTOUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

AD VALOREM TAX BONDS FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

ACTUAL 

AD.TUSTMENT 
TO BLTDOTARY 

BASIS 

BUDdTARY AMOUNTS 

BUDGETARY 
ORKINAL 
BUDGET 

FINAL 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDCET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATI\^) 

REVENDES 
Ta:^s; 

Ad valorem tax 
Interest 

Tofa! revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total e>5)eiiditures 

E^ess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) erqreuditures 

96 96 

96 96 

OTHIR FINANCING SOURCES (ISES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers Out 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fimd balance - beginning of year 

Fimd balance - end of year 

6.895 6.895 

96 

6.991 6.991 6.895 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FIREMEN'S PENSION MERGER FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

REV'ENUES 
Ta}®s 

File insurance premium 

Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPEKDnXJRES 

Debt seivice: 
Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total e^ienditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) e?q>enditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer's in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fiind balance 

Fund balance - beginning of year 

Fund balance - end of year 

ADJUSTMENT BUDCEIARY AMOUNTS 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDCTT 

ACTUAL 
TO BUDOTT.ARY 

BASIS BUD<ST.ARY 
ORJGIN.AL 
BUDGEl 

FINAL 
BUDGET 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

$ 285,944 

900 

1 $ 285,944 

900 
s s $ 285,944 

9(» 

286,844 286,844 286.844 

118,134 
127,485 

- 118,134 
127,485 

- - (118,1-34) 

(127,485) 

245.619 245,619 (24.5,619) 

41,225 41,225 41,225 

-

41,225 - 4L225 - - 41,225 

$ 41,225 $ $ 41,225 $ $ $ 41,225 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
ENTERPRISE FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enteipiise Funds are used to report any activity for whicli a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. 

DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS FUND 

The Depailinenr of Wastewater Operations Fimd accounts for the sewer services provided to the residents of tlie City of Kenner. 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS FUND 

The Civic Center Operations Fund accotints for tire operations of tire Pontchartrain Civic Center. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF RE\TNUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

ADJ. TO 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGETARY AMOUNTS BUDGET 

ACTUAL 

BUDGETARY 

BASIS BUD($TARY 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET 

FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

OPERATING RE\T;NUES 

Cliarges for servkes 

Sewerage sei"vke cliarges S 7,770,473 S - $ 7,770473 $ 8255,7.50 S 8,2.55,750 $ (485,277) 

Total operating revenues 7,770,473 7,770,473 8255.750 8255.750 (485277) 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Siqjplies and other expenses 

Building and maintenance e}q?enses 

Outside services 

Depreciation 

Public works 

Other 

20.781 

6,773489 

4,046,288 (4,046,288) 

113,675 

22.535 

20,781 20,478 20,478 (303) 

70,090 75mO 75,000 4,910 

6,773,489 5,846,077 5,846,077 (927,412) 

113,675 

2235 20,000 
(113,675) 

(2,535) 

Total operating expenes 11,046.858 (4,046,288) 7,000,570 5,961,555 5,961,555 (1,039,015) 

0{^rating income (bss) (3276,385) 4,046288 769,903 2294,195 2,294.195 (1.524292) 

NON-OPERATING REWNUES (EXPENSES) 

Ad v^forem taxes 564211 

Interest nicome 287,129 

Loss on disposal of assets (1,999,959) 

Interest expense (734,893) 

1,999.959 

564211 

287,129 

(734.893) 

554,037 

40,000 

(739,924) 

554,037 

40,000 

(739.924) 

10,174 

247,129 

5,031 

Total non-operating revenues (ejqrenses) (1,883,512) 1.999,959 116,447 (145.887) (145,887) 262334 

IiicoiiK (less) before contribiitbns 

and ti'ansfers (5,159,897) 6,046247 886,350 2,148,308 2,148308 (1261,958) 

Bond payments 

Capital contributions 

Transfer in 

Transfer ait 

116,266 
196,0(W 

(467,986) 

(116266) 

196,000 

(467,986) 

(1,491,000) 

(467,986) 

(1,491,000) 

(467,986) 

1,491,000 

196,0(K) 

Change in net positiai (5,315.617) 5.929,981 614,364 189,322 189,322 425,042 

Net position - beginning of year' 53,540,153 _ 53,.540,153 53,540,1.53 53,540.153 _ 

Net position - end of year S48224,.536 S 5,929,981 $54,154,517 $53,729,475 $53,729,475 $ 425,042 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REATNUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

ADJ. TO BUDGE l ARY AMOUNTS 

VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

ACTUAL 

BUDGETARY 

BASIS BLTDGETARY 

ORIGINAL 

BLTDGET 

FINAL 

BUDGET 

POSIT WE 

(NEGATIVE) 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for sen'Kes: 
Rental charges S 

Parkmg 

Concessions 

Catering 

Reimbiu'sed servkes 

Advertising 

Kliscellaneous 

742,771 

49,728 

86,505 

133,597 

264,345 

75.317 

S $ 742,771 

49,728 

86,505 
133,597 
264,345 

75,317 

S 685,000 

55,000 

110,000 

155,000 

353,000 

30,000 

30.000 

$ 685,000 

55,000 

110,000 

155,000 

353,000 

30,000 

30.000 

$ 57,771 

(5272) 
(23,495) 
(21,403) 
(88,655) 

(30,000) 

45,317 

Total qreratii^ revenues 1,352,263 1,3.52.263 1,418,(K)0 1.418.(K)0 (65,737) 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Supplies and otlier expenses 

Building and maintenance expense 

Outskle servkes 

Insurance premiums 

General expenses: 

Depreciation 

Otlier 

3,631 

513,317 

1,322,413 

58,735 

617,004 

17.912 

(617,004) 

3.631 

513.317 

1,322.413 

58,735 

17.912 

21,795 

775,795 

1,293,965 

100,700 

14,895 

775,795 

1,300,865 

100,700 

11,264 

262,478 

(21,548) 

41,965 

(17,912) 

Total operating expenses 2,533,012 (617,004) 1.916,(W8 2,192,255 2.192.255 276247 

Operating income (l<^s) (1,180,749) 617,004 (563,745) (774,255) (774,255) 210,510 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Hotel/motel taxes 196,869 

Cabk television franchise fees 375,944 

Interest income 824 

- 196.869 

375.944 

824 

279,000 

391,000 

750 

279,000 

391,000 

750 

(82,131) 

(15,0.56) 

74 

Total non-operating revenues 573.637 573.637 670,750 670,750 (97,113) 

Income (foss) before contriiutions. 

and transfers (607,112) 617,004 9.892 (103,505) (103,505) 113,397 

Capital Contrltutrons 22.671 22.671 (22,671) 

Change in net poskion (584,441) 617,004 32,.563 (103,505) (103,505) 90,726 

Net position - beginning of year 14,011,144 . 14.011,144 14,011,144 14.011.144 

Net position - end of year S ; 13,426.703 S 617,004 $ 14,043,707 S 13.907,639 $ 13.907,639 $ 90,726 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other 
departments or agencies of the government and to otlier government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

The Self-Insmnnce Fund accounts for monies accumulated to provide automobile, properly damage, and worker's compensation for 
which the City is self-insured. 

HEALTH INSURANCE FUND 

The Health Insurance Fund accounts for monies accumulated to pay the health insmance premiums. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

INTERNAL SER\aCE FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2019 

SELF-

INSURANCE 

FUND 

HEALTH 

INSURANCE 

FUND TOTAL 

ASSETS 
Casli 

Equity in pooled cash 

Investments 

Due from other ftmds 

18138] $ 62E680 809.061 

Total assets 187.38] 621,680 809.061 

DEFEIiRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LLABIUriES 
Accounts payable 

fetirnated claims payable 

Due to other hinds 

5J38A35 

2.860 614.083 
5.138.535 
616.943 

Totalliabilities 5,141,395 614,083 5.755.478 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NEIPOSmON 
Unrestricted (4.954.014) 7.597 (4.946.417) 

Total net position 1,954,014) 7.597 $ (4,946,417) 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING ST ATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
INTERN AL SERVICE FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

SELF-

INSURANCE 

FUND 

HEALTH 

INSUR.'VNCE 

FUND TOTAL 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Oiarges forser\"ices 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Outside services 

Eisurance clairiK 

Insurance preiniums 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) 

Interest income 

Total non-operating revenue 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers in 

Change in net position 

Net position - beginning of year 

Net position - end of year 

850,000 

129,655 
613.793 

743,448 

,552 

2.799 

2.799 

109.351 

109,351 

(5,063,365) 

(4,954,014) 

$ 5,055,805 

5.248.567 

5.248.567 

(192.762) 

.003 

.003 

(188.759) 

188.759 

7.597 

5.905.805 

129,655 
613,793 

5.248.567 

5.992.015 

(86,210) 

7.597 

(79,408) 

188.759 

109.351 

(5,055,768) 

(4,946,417) 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

INTERNAL SERVICE WVNDS 
YEAR ENDED JLTNE 30, 2019 

SELF-
INSURANCE 

FUND 

Cash flows from operating actlMtles: 
Receipts from insured 
Payments to suppliers 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Cash flows from non-cajatal flnancing activities: 
Transfers in 
Transfen; (out) 

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activtties 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds fromsales and nmtuiities of investments 
Piuchases ofinvestments 
Ihierest and dividends received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyear 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position: 
Cash 
Equity in pooled cash 

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyear 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
P'ovidedbv'(usedfor) operating activities: 

Operating incoiiK (loss) 
Adjustn^nts to reconcile operating income 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in accounts payable 
Decrease in estiiiBted claims payable 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 
To ta 1 adju s t ment s 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

HEALTH 
INSURANCE 

FUND TOTAL 

$ 850,000 
(841,060) 

$ 5,055,805 
(5,248,567) 

$ 5,905,805 
(6,089,627) 

8,940 (192,762) (183,822) 

- 330,001 330,001 

- 330,001 330,001 

2.799 4,003 6,802 
2.799 4,003 6,802 

11,739 141,242 152,981 

175,642 480,438 656,080 

$ 187,381 $ 621,680 $ 809,061 

$ 187,381 $ 621,680 $ 809,061 

$ 187,381 $ 621,680 $ 809,061 

$ 106,552 $ (192,762) $ (86.210) 

(97,612) 
-

(97,612) 

(97,612) - (97,612) 

$ 8,940 $ (192,762) $ (183,822) 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINI ED) 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

SELF-
INSURANCE 

FUND 

HEALTH 
INSURANCE 

FUND TOTAL 

Noncash mwsting, ca|xtal, and flnanclng activities: 
Gain on fair narket value of investnents 
(Increase) in fair nmrket value of investments 

Net effect ofnoncash activities 
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C ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency funds account for assets held by an entity as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments 
aiid^r other entity's fimds. 

AIRPORT SALES TAX FUND 

The Airport Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the proceeds of sales taxes generated from a special 2% sales tax assessed 
within the Airport Taxing District and to distribute to the appropriate taxing bodies. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND UABILIHES 

AGENCTFUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

AIRPORT SALES TAX FUND 

ASSETS 
Equity in pooled cash 
Due fiomother hinds 
Intergovernmental 

Total assets 

UABILrnES 

BALANCE 
6/30/18 ADDinONS DEDUCHONS 

BALANCE 
6/30/19 

$ 2 $ 1,168,901 $ 1,168,900 $ 3 

404,332 634632 615,877 423,087 $ • 404,334 $ 1,803,533 $ 1,784,777 S 423,090 $ • 404,334 $ 423,088 $ 404,332 $ 423,090 $ • 404,334 $ 423,088 $ 404,332 $ 423,090 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COUNCILFERSONS* COAIPENSATION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

COUNCILPERSON 
NUMBER OF 

DAYS SERVED COMPENSATION 

Kristi McKinney 365 S 35,876 

Gregory Carroll 365 32,002 

Ixonard Cline 0 848 

Maria Defrancesch 0 693 

Keith Reynaud 0 848 

Qenn Hayes Sr. 365 29,731 

Thomas Willmott 363 43,517 

George Branigan 365 36,608 

Brian Brennan 365 31,443 

Michael Sigur 365 38,921 

250,487 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS 
TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIXT: OFFICER 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Agency Head Name: E. "Ben" Zahn, Mayor 
Period: July 1, 2018 - June 30,2019 

Salary $ 111,129 
Benefits - insiffance 7,531 
Benefits - retkement 28,894 
Reimbursements 5, 
Automobile e?^enses 6,( 

$ 159 754 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

ThB part of tiie City ofKenner's coirpretens^e annual financial report presents 

detailed infommtion as a context for imderstanding what tlie inibmmtion in tiie 

financial staten^nts, note discbsiffes, and required scppleirentary inlbrmation says 

about die city's overall financial heaMi 

Contents Schedules 

Financial Trends 1-4 

Tliese schedutes contain trend inibmiation to help tiie reader imderstand liow 

die citys financial perlbmmnce and wett-being have clianged OYQV tin^. 

Revenue Capacity' 5-9 

These schedufes contain information to he|> die reader assess the city's most 

significant local rewnue source, die sates tax, as well as the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 10 - 14 

These schedutes present information to he^i die reader assess the affordability 

of die city's cmrent teveb of outstanding debt and die city's ability to bsue 

additional debt in the fiitiffe. 

Demographic and Economic Information 15 - 16 

These schedutes offer denw^aphic and economic indicators to die 

reader understand the emironment widiin wliich the city's financial acti\Tties 

Oj^rating Infommtion 17 - 19 

These schedutes contain service and infi"astructwe data to he|3 the reader 

understand how die information in the city's financtel report relates to die 

services die cfly provides and the activates k perfonrK. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the infommtion in tlKse schedutes B derived Ifomtlie 

conpreheiBwe annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 1 -- NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL \TARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Governmental actn^es 
Net investnent in capital assets 
Restiicted 
Unrestricted 

2010 2011 

S 226,326,766 S 205,360,570 
18,214,320 17,903,956 
(2,398,068) (127,032) 

2012 

S 176,582,658 
29,772,780 
2,692,277 

2013 

S 180,438,285 
20,477,759 
(4,721,675) 

2014 

138,185,196 
34,664,950 
4,026,130 

Total govermiKntal activities net position S 242,143,018 S 223,137,494 S 209,047,715 S 196,194,369 176,876,276 

Business-type activtties 
Net investuKiit in captal assets 
Restiicted 
Unrestricted 

S 67,464,821 S 70,674,888 S 72,572,594 S 56,241,502 
15.068.526 

618.663 (709,274) (1,087,284) (4,328,953) 

55,967,834 
13,261,209 
(594,712) 

Total business-type activ-ities net positbn ^,083,484 S 69,965,614 S 71,485,310 S 66,981,075 68,634.331 

Primry government 
Net investuKiit in capkal assets 
Restiicted 
Unrestricted 

S 293,791,587 
18,214,320 
(1,779,405) 

S 276,035,458 
17,903,956 

(836,306) 

S 249,155,252 
29,772,780 

1,604,993 

S 236,679,787 
35,546,285 
(9,050,628) 

194,153,030 
47,926,159 

3.431.418 

Total primary govemnKnt net positbn S 310,226,502 S 293,103,108 S 280,533,025 S 263,175,444 245,510,607 

(Continued) 
Source: Audited Conq^rehensiv^e Annual Financial Reports 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 1 - NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (CONTINUED) 
(accrual basis of accoimting) 

(Unaudited) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Govemn^nlal actmties 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
UnrestiKted 

S 156,456,600 
7,965,322 

(45,070,937) 

S 149,042,805 
6,604,685 

(40,835,794) 

S 138,501,616 
9,097,420 

(41,045,645) 

$ 131,061,483 
9,212,571 

(53,958,644) 

$ 129,548,648 
9,853,877 

(40,073,193) 

Total govemn^ntal activities iKt position S 119,350,985 S 114,811,696 S 106,553,391 $ 86,315,410 $ 99,329,332 

BiKiness-type activities 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

S 52,907,339 
12,630,950 

165,593 

S 59,774,596 
13,027,560 

(997,691) 

S 63,270,535 
13,384,442 
(6,210,890) 

$ 59,419,503 
14,776,869 
(6,645,075) 

$ 54,030,338 
16,176,932 
(8,556,031) 

Total biismess-t)pe activities net posftion S 65,703,882 S 71,804,465 $ 70,444,087 $ 67,551,297 $ 61,651,239 

Primary government 
Net investment m capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

S 209,363,939 
20,596,272 

(44,905,344) 

S 208,817,401 
19,632,245 

(41,833,485) 

$ 201,772,151 
22,481,862 

(47,256,535) 

$ 190,480,986 
23,989,440 

(60,603,719) 

$ 183,578,986 
26,030,809 

(48,629,224) 

Total piiimiy government net position S 185,054,867 S 186,616,161 $ 176,997,478 $ 153,866,707 $ 160,980,571 
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CnY OF KEMNTR, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDlXEl - CILAVCTS IN NET POSmON 

LAST TEN nSCAL YEARS 
(accrual biuis of accounting) 

(I'naudited) 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Expenses 
Governmental activities; 

Genera! govemment $ 12,445Jll $ 13,331,542 S 13,518,067 $ 14,334.561 : $ 15,177,249 

Public safety 28,176,202 28,981,374 30.120.747 29.726.401 29.635.749 
Public works 30,431,909 36.657.670 31,743,384 30.447.190 28.877.594 
Health aud welfare 927.097 756.235 478,916 461.077 463.687 
Culture and recreation 9,550,670 7.066,031 6,075^69 7,4.58,593 8.328.521 

Transit and urban development 1,981,932 1,537,013 5,065,979 2,178,189 1,807,143 
Interest on long-term debt and other charges 1,858,468 1,688,282 1.696,804 1.582,211 1,743,210 
Debt issuance costs - - - 166.797 699.366 

Total governmental activities expenses 85,371,989 90,018,147 88.699.166 86.355.019 86,732,519 
Business-type activities: 

W as tewater operations 7,282,712 7.233.176 8,482,102 10,025,404 9.868.246 
Civic center operations 3.156.767 3.321,275 3,359^57 3.228.630 3,317.342 

Total business-type activities et§)en5es 10.439.479 10,554,451 11,841,359 13.254.034 13.185.588 
Total piinHry goveniuMnt e>q)euses $ 95,811,468 S 100.572.598 $ 100,540,525 $ 99,609,053 : $ 99.918.107 

Prc^ram Rewnues 
Govemmental activities: 

Charges for services: 

General govemment $ 5,959,847 S 6,794,368 $ 8,101.475 $ 7,397,121 : $ 7,396,643 
Public safety 4,828,953 3,456,639 3.529,877 3.582,022 3,670,994 

Pubhc works 4,027,778 4,303,084 3.975.986 4.219.748 4,196,238 
Other activities 1,325,504 1.405.306 1.143.772 1.022.077 985.922 

Operating grants and contributions 2,321,055 2.497.951 1,528,912 2,119,168 1.432.247 
Capital grants and contributions 3,617,474 1.810.855 7.238.923 3.843.389 2.492.715 

Total govemmental activities program revenues 22,080,611 20,268,203 25.518.945 22,183.525 20,174,7.59 
Business-type activities: 

Charges for services; 
Wastewater operations 3,517,961 4,399,069 5,670,289 6,323.934 7,045,527 
Civic center operations 1,266,846 1,2.^8,9.^7 1,441,990 1,297.089 1,306,346 

Operating grants and contributions - - - - -
Capital grants and contributions 325.899 6.706.005 - 2.074.647 -

Total business-type activities program revenues 5A10J06 12.364.031 7.112.279 9.695.670 8,351,873 
Totalpriimty government programrevenues $ 27,191,317 S 32,632,234 S 32,631,224 $ 31,879,195 : $ 28,526,632 

(Continued) 
Source; Audited Con^rehensive Annual Financial Reports 
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(Continued) 

CnY OF KEME, LOLIS lANA 
SCHEDTiLE2 ~Ca4NGES INNETPOSmON 

LAST TEX FISCAL YFAM (CONTEsLTD) 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
Ikpenses 
Govemnental activities: 

&neral government $ 13,813,735 $ 14,8.36,858 $ 16,586,949 $ 15,358,488 S 12,481,649 
Pubtc safety 29,475,863 30,883,950 33,467,757 35,312,148 32,024,036 
Public works 27,941,741 32,764,458 24,782,776 25,194,381 25,521,327 

Health and welfare 801,735 613,131 858,793 1,118,220 465,377 

Culture and recreation 6,358,836 7,008,906 9,948,548 7,139,313 5,209,904 

Transit and urban developnent 1,894,39! 2,922,725 1,588,093 1,616,963 1,366.794 
Interest on long-teimdebt and other charges 1,877,967 2,023,349 1,972,444 1,914,936 1,949,980 

Debt issuance costs - - - - -

Total govemmenta! activities e^enses 82,164,268 91,053,377 89,205,360 87,654,449 79,019.067 

Business-type activities: 

Wastewater operations 10,515,025 10,344,589 10,148,155 12,131,8.52 11.781,751 
Civic center operations 3,913,657 3,461,.541 3,091,574 2,795,722 2.533.012 

Total business-type activities etqienses 14,438,682 13,806,130 13,239,729 14,927,574 14,314,763 

Total pritiBty govemnient e^enses $ 96,602,950 S 104,859,507 $ 102,445,089 S 102,582,023 $ 93.333,830 

Program Revenues 
Gaveminental activities: 

Charges forservices: 
(ineral govemnKnf $ 7,871,195 $ 8,518,059 $ 8,537,637 S 7,752,7.34 S 7,125,479 

Pubhc safetv 3,539,018 3,651,930 3,542,687 4,261,438 4,.540,654 
Public works 4,629,113 7,796,416 4,699,524 5,814,361 5,430,424 

Other activities 1,048,379 1,310,601 1,774,337 1,788,108 2,031.554 

Operating grants and contnbutions 3,930,625 2,225,208 2,396,402 2,781,272 4,807,988 

Capital grants and contributions 2,305,682 3,1.35,333 5,244,371 5,545,840 10,775,121 

Total governmental activities program revenues 23,324,012 26.637.547 26,194,958 27,943.753 34,711,220 
Business-type activities: 

Charges forsetvices: 

W astewater operations 7,550,271 8,146,011 8,810,605 8,305.494 7,770,473 

Civic center operations 1,364,595 1,440,206 1,458,603 1,5.53,304 1,352,263 
Operating grants and contributions - - - - -

Capital grants and contiibutions 68.498 8.925.652 657,463 984.220 138,937 

Total business-type activities program revenues 8,983,.364 18,511.869 10,926,671 10,843,018 9,261,673 

Total primary government program revenues $ 32,307,376 $ 45.149,416 S 37,121,629 S 38,786.771 S 43,972,893 
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CIIYOF KENNER, LOUSIANA 
SCHEDULE! - CHANGES INNU POSFIION 

LAST TEN EB CAT YEARS (CONTINLID) 
(accraal basis of accounting) 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Net (Expense) Revenne 
GDvemnKntal activities S (63,291378) S (69,749,944) $ (63,180,221) $ (64,171,494) $ (66.557,760) 
Busiiiess-t>'pe activities (5328,773) 1,809,580 652.688 (3,558,364) (1,759,790) 

Total piiman' government net etfiense $ (68.620,151) S (67,940.364) $ (62,527.533) $ (67,729,858) $ (68,317,550) 

General Revenues wid Other Changes in Net Pwition 
Q^vemmental activities: 

Ta>ss; 
Ad valorem s 7.479,348 s 7,940.366 $ 7,876.865 $ 7,617,724 $ 7,714,727 
Hotel/motel* - - - - -
Sales and use 29,758.967 30,788,076 30,.371,384 31.708,191 30.831.511 
Beer tax 77,085 70,485 77,787 76.434 70.784 
Pailcing 1,864,772 1,952,097 2,007,642 2.090.075 2.303.311 
Franchise 7.648,751 8,142,735 7,926.562 7.916.445 7.837.526 

Q'auts/contiibutions not restricted to specific program 118,139 313,757 164.992 218.121 105.524 
InvestiiKnt earnings 40.466 56,054 35,278 40,631 42,272 
Miscellaneous 240,378 190,806 237.906 242,494 468.097 
Settlen^nt proceeds - - - - -
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - 85,951 - 99 -
Transfers - 1,204,100 392.024 (19,936) (2,134,08.5) 

Total governmental activities 47,227.906 50,744,427 49,090,440 49.890,278 47,239,667 
Business-type activities: 

Tates: 
Ad valorem 522,429 512,750 524,658 595,762 442,735 

Sales and use 382,424 340,181 304.110 _ 
Franchise 454,143 421,522 403.104 781.448 728.574 

Qants/contributions not restricted to specific progranr > 2.552 97 13,835 156.398 95.019 
hivestment eamings 1,139 942 4.453 12.751 7.630 
Miscellaneous 11.545 1,158 8.872 42.666 5.003 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - - - (483,861) -
Roceeds troininsurance - - - - -
Transfers (497,644) (1,204,100) (392,024) 19.936 2.134.085 

Totalbusiness-type activities 876,588 72,550 867.008 1.125.100 3.413.046 

Total prinary government s 48.104,494 s 50,816,977 $ 49,957.448 $ 51,015,378 $ 50,652,713 

Change In Net Position 
Govemn^ntal activities s (16,063,472) s (19,0)5,517) $ (14,089,781) $ (14,281,216) $ (19,318,093) 
Business-type activities (4,452,185) 1,882,1.30 1,519,696 (2,433,264) 1,653,156 
Total prinBiy government s (20.515,657) s (17,123,387) $ (12,570.085) $ (16,714,480) $ (17,664,837) 

(Continued) 
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cm' OF KEMNIR LOllS LANA 
SCHEDIILE2 -CHANCTS INJCrPOSmON 

LAST TIN FISCAL YEARS (CONTCSXID) 
(accrn^ t^is of acconnting) 

(Uaandted) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
Net (Eipense) Rewnue 
Goveruiitntal activities $ (58,840.256) S (64,415,830) $ (63,010.402) S (59.710,696) t 5 (44,307.847) 
Business-type activities (5,455.318) 4,705,739 (2,313.058) (4.084,556) (5,053.090) 

Total piiiiiaiy govemitKut net e^^ense $ (64,295.574) S (59,710,091) $ (65,323.460) S (63.795,252) t 5 (49,360.937) 

General Revenues and Other Changes In Net Position 
Goveinnfiiifal activities: 

Ad valorem $ 8,083,474 s 8,096,586 $ 8,118,440 s 8,238,143 ! 5 8,419,900 
HoteTmofel* - 274.270 283,656 499.322 202,958 
Sales and use 31,898,9^ 32,423,441 33,751,167 33,732,865 36,622,373 
Beer tax 70,120 67.959 65,301 62.159 mjii 
Parking 2,496,875 2,760,154 2,885,134 3,101,075 3,236,930 
Franchfie 8,003,764 7,650,076 7,539,276 7,444,344 7,180,721 

Qants/contribntions not restricted to specific prograriB 54,448 24,511 101,102 35.722 29,933 
Investment eamines 128,207 374.122 493,319 605.697 944,943 
Miscelianeons 501,170 553.877 302,527 449.888 328,814 
Settlement proceeds - 6,960,079 - - -
Gain 0oss) on disposal of capital assets - 700,894 mm - 22,500 
Transfers 19.935 (9,428) 439,175 318,548 271.986 

Total govemniental activities 51,256.983 59.876,541 54,752,097 54.487,763 57,321.769 
Business-type activities: 

Taj^s: 

Ad valorem 625.549 542.529 544,023 552,033 564.211 
Hotel/'motel* - 266.042 275,146 325,883 196.869 
Sales and use - - - - -
Franchise 701.842 394.707 387,544 409,430 375.944 

Qants/contiibutions not restricted to specific programs 1,159,217 112,028 - - -
Investment earnings 52.248 172.451 175,142 222,9^ 287.953 
Miscellaneous 5.948 10.505 - - -
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - (112,846) 10,CKX) - (1,999,959) 
Proceeds from insurance - - - - -
Transfers (19,935) 9.428 (439,175) (318,548) (271,986) 

Total biisiness-tj'pe activkies 2,524,869 1,394,844 9.52,680 1,191,766 (846,968) 

Total prinBry government $ 53,781,852 s 61,271,385 $ 55,704,777 s 55,679,529 ! ̂ 56,474,801 

Change in Net Position 
Govemnsntal activities $ (7,583,273) s (4,539,289) $ (8,258,305) s (5.222.933) f 5 13,013,922 
Business-tc'pe activities (2,930,449) 6,1CK),583 (1,.360,378) (2,892.790) (5,900,058) 
TotalprinBty government $ (10,513,722) s 1,561,294 $ (9,618,683) s (8,115.723) f 5 7,113,864 

Reclassified for fiscal year 2016 presentation, included with franchise taxin prior years 
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CITY OF KEMPER, LOIISIANA 
SCHED11LE3 - FIJND BALANCES OF GOV^ERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(modified accmal basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

General fund 
Reserved 
Unreserced 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

L513,885 
6.480.932 

489 
L986,029 
410.554 

2,012,582 
7,686,775 

527,355 
2,186,205 
939,732 

3,502,878 
6.561.410 

635,059 
2,225,664 
345,445 

2.397.898 
6.517.899 

144,011 
1,995,638 

485,101 
2,267,631 
6,131,325 

Total general flrnd 7,994,817 12,585,300 S 13,717,580 12,121,965 $ 11.023.706 

All other goveininental funds 
Reserved 
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special revenue firrids 
Capital projects funds 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 

Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

4,«)3,768 

597,914 
13.097.466 

18,601,334 
70,291 

(396,366) 

30,998,309 
2.016.844 

18,252,095 
1,439,396 

(465,042) 

32,669,312 
7,225,718 

3,963.802 

Total all other governri^sntal fiinds $ 18.299.148 18.275.259 S 33.0L5.153 19.226.449 43,858.832 

(Continued) 

Source; .Audited Conprehensrve Annual Financial Reports 
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cm OF KENNER, LOIISL4NA 
SCHEDULES - FUND BALANCES OF G0\™NTVIENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (CONTBVUID) 
(modified accrual basis ofaccounling) 

(Unaudited) 

fiscal Year 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

General fiind 
Reserved 
Unreserved 
Nonspeiidable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 

Unassisned 

742.419 
1.845.524 

a)l,469 
2,519,307 
5.980.799 

132,955 
1,768.991 
3,435,096 
2,219,967 
8.855.189 

140,429 
1,803.344 

584,870 
1,712,310 

11.213.217 

505,737 
2,108,511 
657,696 

3,756,456 
10.030.526 

515,.503 
2,781,633 

367,188 
1,573,848 

16,510.347 

Total eeneral fund 11,689,518 16,412,1 15.454.170 17,058,926 $ 21,748,519 

AH other govemnKntal funds 
Reserved 
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special revenue funds 
Capital projects funds 

Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassisned 

31,552,813 
10,871,980 

(27,746) 

27,129,795 
17,980,162 

(22,358) 

21,941,251 
17,732,624 

(293,544) 

22,717,278 
18,410,977 

(28,831) 

23,126,211 
19,974,112 

41.225 

Total all other governmental funds $ 42,397,047 45,087,599 S 39,380,331 S 41,099,424 43.141.548 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOIJISL4NA 
SCHEDULE 4 - CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN YEARS 
(rmdifed accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Year 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Rewniies 
Taiffis $ 45,799,281 $ 47,782,458 $ 47,822,765 $ 48.702,710 $ 48.328.(^1 
Licenses and permits 4,402,801 3,508,681 3.462,423 3.445,677 3.191.259 
InteigovemriKDtal 6,825,921 5,519,796 9,840,654 7.039,477 
Qiaiges for services 4,408,484 4,657,430 4.272,206 4.619,331 4.716,197 
Fines and foifeitnres 2,124,594 2,602,543 2.885,847 2.322,357 2.187,652 
Merest 13.201 27,253 5,188 15,273 15.647 
Miscellaoeotis 1,458,777 869,151 853,842 746,692 955.303 
Total revenues 65,033,059 64,967,312 69.142,925 66.891,517 64.265.525 

E^peniitiires 
General goveniiiKnt 10,457,451 10,490,966 10.874,488 11.7(W,333 12,403.699 
Public safety 24,891,692 24,859,654 26.418,059 26.629,412 26.234,628 
Public works 17,940,695 20,653,967 18.150,570 14.657,352 14.971,997 
Healtli and welfare 684,543 611,230 384,177 398,757 404.803 
Culture and recreation 8,564,497 5,668,520 4.575,485 6.(»4,878 7,(»9.417 
Transit and urban developntent 1,858,565 1,451,668 5.044,566 2.086,908 1.721.693 
Debt Service 

Principal 5,946,595 4,580,965 5.944,643 5.483,832 18.569.019 
Merest and fiscal charges 1,924,444 1,711,023 1.611,510 1.794,687 1,975.501 
Agent fees - - - - -
Debt issuance costs - - 417,120 166,797 699.366 
Miscellaneous 36.000 36,0W) 36,000 36,000 36.0(W 

Total e?q?endrtures 72,304,482 70,063,993 73.456,618 69.048,956 84,(^6.123 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (7,271,423) (5,096,681) (4.313,693) (2.157,439) (19.760.598) 

Other flDaucing soiii ces (uses) 
Proceeds tronisale ofproperty - - - - -
Transfers in 19,826,803 16,071,100 21.195,128 19.747,075 19.523.670 
Transfers out (19,a)8,479) (14,867,006) (20.803,921) (19.771,811) (21.657.755) 
Pienaumon bonds issued - - 1^,707 - 1,156.726 
Long-termdebt issued - - - 424,838 44.272.(K1 
Paynsnt to refiinded bonds escrow agent - - - (8.725,000) -
Proceeds ofiefunding bonds and other debt 2,032,646 8,459,187 19.«)3,953 9.205,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,250,970 9,663,281 20.185,867 880,102 43,294.722 

Special Item 
Proceeds fl'omBP settleiiEnt - - - - -
Net change in fiind balances $ (5,020,453) $ 4,566,600 $ 15.872,174 $ (1.277,337) $ 23,534.124 

Capital expenditures 3,681.029 6,586.341 2,476,948 1,147,3.33 2,295,433 
Non-capital e:q)enditures 68.623.453 63,477.652 70,979,670 67,901,623 81.730,690 

Debt service, (interest and principal only) as 
a percentage of noncapital e:penditures 11.22% 11.98% \Q£T/<, 10,.36% 25.14% 

(Continued) 
Source: Audited Conprehensive Annual Financkl Reports 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 4 -- CHANGES IN FUND B ALANCES OF GOWRNMENT.AL FUNDS 

LAST TEN YEARS (CONTINUED) 
(modifcd accrual basis of accounDiig) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Revenues 
Tasis $ 50.058.106 $ 51,327.286 $ 52,588.514 S 53841.647 S 5.5.119.S«) 
licenses andpennits .^396.737 7,027.733 3,897.098 5,314,977 5,018,406 
Bitergovemmeiital 5.745,262 4,769,5«) 7,501,068 7.433.369 12.114.120 
Charges for services 4.466,196 4,680,205 4,857,515 4.764.982 4.520.445 
Fines and forfeitures 2.119.325 1,894.829 2,165.691 3421.112 3211.169 
Interest 99.612 333.946 414.856 520,678 870,649 
Miscellaneous 1.0)4,101 1,389.177 1,128.366 1.2a).392 2.202.676 
Total revenues 67.389,339 71,422.736 72,553.1(B 74.497.157 82.057.355 

E^q)eaditiires 

Cineial govemriKnt 11,509,666 12,118,543 13,462,653 12,475,852 11,276,228 
Public safetj' 26,400,885 28,579,578 28,772,959 29,989.256 30,606.677 
Public works 15,328,831 21,777,427 21,073,634 14,995.569 22,387.195 
Heafth and welfere 844.481 507352 647343 774.831 540.728 
Culture and recreation 5,171,^ 5,327,908 8,372,632 5,825,754 4,229,515 
Transit and urban developnent 1,860,824 2,796,924 1,509,933 1,378.299 1,358.396 
Debt Service 

Piinc^al 4,987.765 5,109,170 4,620,744 4,808,892 3,024,760 
Iirterest and fiscalchaiges 2,103,841 1,987,594 1,934,814 1,875,^7 1,819,177 
Agent fees - - - 4.(X« 152.690 
Debt issuance costs - - - - -
Miscellaneous 36.(»0 36,000 36,000 36.6» 36.mO 

Total e)q3enditures 68,244,195 78,240,396 80,430,582 72,164,450 75,431,366 
E^ess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) ejqsenditures (854,856) |6,817.6«)) 17,877.474) 2.332.707 6.625.989 

Other lliiiiiirtng sources (uses) 
Proceeds fforrrsale ofpropeity - 700.894 773,(KK) - 22.5(» 
Transfer's in 20.233,048 18,273,409 22,248,288 20.441.257 22.105.830 
Transters out (20.513.113) (18,282.837) (21,809.110) (20.122.709) (22.(02.603) 

Preniurn on bonds issued - - - - -
Long-term debt issued 38,947 - - - -
Increase in obligations under capital lease - - - 672.594 -
Proceeds ofrefundine bonds and other debt - - - - -
Total otlrer financing sources (uses) (241.118) 691.466 1,212.178 991,142 105,727 

Special item 
Proceeds fi'orrrBP settlemeirt - 6,960.079 - - -
Net change in fund baknces S (1,095.974) $ (6,126.194) $ (6,665.29^ S 3,323,849 S 6,731,716 

Capital e}q)endituies 2,573.386 5,036.558 10,251.979 4,816,430 10,790,959 
Noncapital erqrendirures 65.670,809 73,203,838 70,178,«)3 67.348.020 64.640.407 

I>bt service, (interest and principal only) as 
a percentage of noncapital e>q)enditures 10.80% 9.69% 9.34% 9.93% 7.49% 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
^HEDULE 5 -- DIRECT AND OWRLAPPING S ALES TAX RATES 

LAST TEN YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

City Overlairang Rate.s 
Direct Jefferson Jefferson Parish 

Fiscal Year Rate (1) Parish (2) School Board 

2010 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.(X) m 
2011 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.00 M)% 

2012 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.00 00®/o 

2013 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.(X) m% 
2014 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.00 
2015 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.(X) m 
2016 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.00 M)% 

2017 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.00 00®/o 

2018 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.(W m% 
2019 2.5833% 0.1667% 2.00 00% 

NOTES: (1) As discussed in NOTEF to the Financial Statements, the State ofLoiiisiana levies a 5.0% 
sales tax on purchases within the City ofKenner. In addition, the Parish of Jefferson levies a 
4-75% sales tax on purchases within the City ofKenner. From the 4.75% levied by Jefferson 
Parish, 2.5833% is collected for, and remitted to, the City ofKenner. The sales taxrate is 
determined by the Jeffei^on Parish Council subject to the approval of the voteo of Jefferson 
Parish. The City ofKenner also receives one-third of a 2% sales tax on purchases made in the 
airport taxing district located within the city limits, but this amount is insignificant conpared 
to the City's share of the 4.75% Jefferson Parish sales tax 

(2) Jefferson Parish retains .1667% ofthe 4.75% sales taxlevied on purchases within the City of 
Kenner. 

(3) Information regarding the breakdown of ta^ble sales by category is not available. 

(4) Information regarding the principal sales taxremitters is not available. 
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Rscai 

Year 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

Real 

Estate 

448,346,980 

450.120,302 

459.736,113 

461,435,216 

467,997,815 

481.794,686 

499,462,920 

5C©,786,612 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 6 -- ASSESSED AND ESTOIATED ACTUAL \ALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Personal 
Property 

8.5,289,971 

90,962,548 

90,052,443 

96,136,586 

90,S«0,102 

90,446,691 

88,393,308 

93,569,127 

Sale 

94,662,776 2,789,130 

5,46,5.150 

3,847.380 

3,580,020 

3,324,140 

3,005,720 

2,892.660 

Source; .TefFersoii Parish Assessor's Office. 

PuMic 
Serwce 

Corporations 

27,699,147 

27,480,863 

30.771,874 

30,393,912 

29,310.348 

32,126.720 

33,096,239 

34,258.582 

37,530.201 

37.014,559 

RailTOjy 

Rdiing 

Stock 

46,460 

34.570 

56,450 

63,320 

102.820 

Total 

Assessments 

573,544,493 

,564,119,734 

,570.018,184 

,58,5,768,113 

584,710.347 

599,742.871 

609,459,737 

617.211.322 

643.381,558 

NOTE Assessed vahies are established by the Parish Assessor by Deceirberofeach year at 10 

percent ofassunKdnarket value for real property and 15 percent ofassuned market value tbrotlier 

property. A revahiation of all property is required to be coiipleted every four years. The last 
revaluation was coripleted for Decerrber, 2016. Taxrates are per $100 of assessed vahie. 

(1) Includes tax-e}4jrt|)t property. 

Less: 
TaxEcen^it 

Real Proper^' 

I0.5,611,.567 

105,508,260 

103,970,210 

102,620,280 

101,659,460 

100,950,120 

10D,582,8«I 

100,885,160 

101,101,420 

101,137,160 

Total TaxaMe Total 
Assessed Direct 

Value Tax Rate 

467,932,926 

458,611,474 

483,147,833 

483,050,887 

498,792,751 

508.876,847 

516.326,162 

527,393,549 

542.244,398 

18.13 

18.13 

18.13 

17.51 

17.51 

17.51 

17.17 

17,17 

17.17 

17.17 

Estimated 
.Aetna] 

TaxaUe Value 

5,327,416,986 

5,270,812.833 

.5,313,141,691 

5,452,971,430 

5,449,010,967 

5,569,673,289 

6,091,002,670 

5,7.56.130.944 

Assessed 

Vfdue as a 
Percentage of 

Actti^ Value (1) 

5,998,141,294 

8.7794) 

8.35% 

8.97»/o 

8.46% 

9.0494) 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIAN A 
SCHEDULE 7 - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPLNG PROPERTY TAX RATES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Rate per $100 of Assessed Value) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year 

2010 

Basic 
Rate 

2.( 

City Direct Rates 

General Street 
Garbage Fire OUigation Ylaintenance & 

Collection Protection Del^ Service Im|»*oveiiKnt 

1.61 lA 

Wastewater 
Operations 

1.14 18.13 

Overlaf^ng Rate 

Jefferson 
Total Parish 
Direct Districts (1) 

64.46 

Total 
Direct & 

Rates 

82.59 

2011 2.( 1.61 7.40 5.< 1.14 64.46 82.59 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

1.01 

2.01 

2.01 

2.01 

1.97 

1.97 

1.97 

1.61 

1.55 

1.55 

1.55 

1.55 

S2 

1.52 

1.52 

7.40 

7.15 

7.15 

7.15 

7.15 

7.01 

7.01 

7.01 

5.90 

5.70 

5.70 

5.70 

5.70 

5.59 

5.59 

5.59 

.14 

.10 

.10 

.10 

.10 

18.13 

17.51 

17.51 

17.51 

17.51 

17.17 

17.17 

17.17 

67.05 

66.28 

66.28 

66.28 

66.28 

65.61 

65.61 

65.61 

85.18 

83.79 

83.79 

83.79 

83.79 

82.78 

82.78 

82.78 

(1) Source: Jefferson Parisli Assessor. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOITSIANA 
SCHEDLXE 8 - PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YE ARS AGO 
(Unaudfted) 

June 30,2019 June 30,2010 

TaxjMver 

Entergy Services 

Five Properties 

Entergy Louisiana 

Southwest Airlines 

Pelleiin Milnor 

Esplanade Mali Realty LP 

WalMart 

Treasure Check Casino 

Oschner Coniiimity Hospitals 

Atnns Energy Corp. 

United Airlines 

Westport Petroleum 

Splint Spectnun 

Continental Airlines 

Bellsoiith 

Total 

TaxaUe 
Assessed 

Value 

I2,92U58 

9,291,940 

7,862,684 

7,344,460 

6,403,057 

3,304,730 

3,961,973 

Percentage of 
Total City 
TaxaUe 

Rank AssessedValue 

3,678,024 8 

3,168,810 10 

l.WA 

L26®T 

L07®T 

LOO®T 

0.87®T 

0.45®T 

0.56®T 

054"/. 

050"/. 

0.43"/ 

TasaUe 
Assessed 

Value 

7,568,140 

7,086,120 

3,034,566 

7,415,860 

4,930,4t» 

4,550,762 

3,032,502 

3,284,926 

3,336,970 

4,340,530 

Fercent^e of 
Ttrtal Qty 

TaxaUe 
Rank AssessedValue 

10 

8 

7 

6 

4.66% 

4.36% 

1.87% 

4.57% 

3.04% 

2.80% 

i.87% 

2.02% 

2.05% 

2.67% 

62,046,936 8.44% $ 48,580,776 29.9T 

Sotirce: City of Kenner Finance Department 
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CITY OF KENNER, LGITSIANA 
SCHEDIXE 9 - PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaidited) 

Rscal 
Year 

20! 0 

2011 

2012 

20! 3 

2014 

2015 

20! 6 

2017 

2018 

20! 9 

Taxes I^\ied 
for the 

Fiscal Year 

8,483,637 

8,314,639 

8,449,463 

8,439,927 

8,458,230 

8,733,87! 

8,787,701 

8,737,422 

8,865,327 

9.055.354 

Cdlected (or Adjusted) within the 

Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date 

Amount 

8,141,338 

7,974,603 

8,134,682 

8,076,814 

8,150,033 

8,417,97! 

8,488,335 

8,456,190 

8,551,46! 

8,779,021 

Percentage Collections in 
ofLe\y Subsequent Years Amount 

95.97% 

95.91% 

96.27% 

95.47% 

96.590^0 

193,436 

178,861 

156,5i: 

105,748 

1.59,59! 

143,288 

152,371 

78,1.54 

N/A 

8,334,774 

,153,464 

8,577,562 

8,631,623 

Percentage 
of Lew 

98.2.5% 

8,291,194 98.13% 

97.62% 

.,255,781 97.61% 

,.2I% 

^.2291 

,561 98.53% 

8,629,615 97.34% 

8,779,021 96.95% 

Source: City of Keimer Finance EtepaitoKut 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 10 - RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Sales Tax 
Revenue 
Bonds 

25,945,000 

23,262,062 

20,008,776 

16,664,003 

43,498,890 

41,126,054 

38,683,218 

37,020,382 

35,312,546 

33.554,710 

Certificates 
of 

fiidel^dness 

LCDA 
Rewnue 

Bonds 

200.000 13,205.000 

200.000 11.858.593 

3,735. 

LDEQ 
Taxable 
Bon& 

2,150,621 

10,609,808 

10,346,622 13,194,761 

9,205,000 I2,i 

5,570,000 13,760,496 

1,880,000 17,134.822 

16,065,822 

Notes 
PayaMe 

2.465,430 

2.399,465 

2.328,787 

2.253,133 

7,380,000 14,497.550 2,172,114 

2.085,349 

12,967,497 1,989,179 

14,988,822 

1.889,435 

1.786,355 

1.668,221 

Business-Type Activities 

IVtortgage 
PayaMe 

Sewer 
Revenue 
Bonds 

Total 
Primary 

Government 

43,966,051 

48,329,928 

16,185,621 62,064,567 

18,066,426 59,037,031 

24,761,160 92.309,714 

28,943,311 91,485,210 

30,992,447 

34,913,002 

367.341 

32,817,905 90.742,544 

,077.725 

Percentage 
ofPersonal Per 
Income (1) Capita (1) 

37,071,497 87,283,250 

2.73% 

3.05% 

3.73% 

3.45% 

5.26% 

5.23% 

5.10% 

5.15% 

4.81% 

4.82% 

725 

930 

884 

1,378 

1,364 

1,319 

1,353 

1,306 

1.309 

Note: Etetails regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

(1) See Schedule 15 forpereoiial incoine and population data. These ratios are calculated using pereoiial income and population for tlie prior calendar" year. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 11 -- RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BOND DEBT OUTSTANDING 

EAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

Genera! Bonded Debt Outstandim 
General 

OMigation 

Bonds 

Delrt Service 

Monies 

AvailaMe 

Net General 

OMigation Bon^ 

Outstanding 

Percentage of 
Estimated Actual 

TaxaWe Value 

ofPropert>'(l) 

Per 

Capita (2) 

Note: Derails regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fmancial statenents. 

(1) See Schedule 8 for property value data. 

(2) Population data can be found in Schedule 15. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 12 - DIRECT AND OWRLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIMTIES DEBT 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

(Unaiuiited) 

Governmental Unit 

Jefferson Parish 

Debt 
Outstanding 

S 350,182,00( 

Estimated 
Percentage 

AfylicaMe (1) 

19.99®/o 

Estimated 
Share of 

OverlajfMng 
mu 

I 70.001.382 

Jefferson Parish Public School System $ 193,547,C 14.68% 28.412.700 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

City direct debt 

98,414.082 

50.211.753 

Total direct and overlapping debt 148.625.835 

Sources: Assessed value data used to estinwte applicable percentages provided by Jefferson Parish. Debt 

outstanding data provided by each goveinnientalunit. 

Note: CX'erlapping govemiiKnts are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the 

city. This schedule estiimtes the portion of the outstanding debt of tlrose overlapping govemnients that ri borne 

by the residents and businesses of Kenner. This process recogni^s that, when considering the city's ability to 

issue and repay long-temidebt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken 

into account- However, this does not iiiply that every ta^ayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for 

repaying the debt, of each overlapping govenin^nt. 

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt appHcable is estimated using taxable assessed properly values-

Applicable percentages were estimated by detennining the portion of another govemrrEntal irnit's taxable 

assessed value that is within the city's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable assessed value. 
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CriYOF KENNER, L0UISL4NA 
SCHEDULE 13 - LEGAL DEBT M ARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Debt Linit 
Totalnet debt applicable to linit 

S 200.740,573 S 197.441,^ S 199.506,364 S 205.018,8«) S 204,648,®] $ 209,910,«35 $ 213,310,938 $ 216,013,%3 $ 219,973139 $ 225,183,545 

Legal debt margin S 200.740,573 S 197.441,907 S 199.506,364 S 205.018,840 S 204,648,621 $ 2(»,910,CK)5 $ 2I3,310,«)8 $ 2I6,023,%3 $ 219,973,239 $ 225,183,545 

Totalnet debt applkable to the liiM 
asapeiceniageofdebtlinnt 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0034 0.0034 0.0034 0.0034 0.0034 0.0034 

Legal Deh Margin Calcuiatiwi tor Fiscal Year 2019 

Assessed value 3,381,558 

Debt linit - 35% of assessed value 

General obBsatioB and es:ess revenue bonds 

225.183,545 

less: aniDiuit available forrepayiient of general 
ob%atiocand es:ess revenue bonds 

Total net debt applicable to fant 

225,183.545 

Note: Louisiana R.S. 39:562 allows forarmanumofltB-o of the assessed vakation for bonded debt foranyonepuiposeor 35% of the total assessed vake for all purposes. 

136 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 14 - PLEDGED-REWNUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaiwiited) 

Sales Tax Bonds 

Fiscal 

Year 

Sales Tax 

Collections 

DeK Service 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

1L211,927 

11J98.565 

11,023 749 

12,584,294 

11,789,242 

12,025,651 

13,352,252 

13,921,420 

12,872,530 

14.913.533 

Principal Biterest 

2,980,000 

3,075,000 

3,165,000 

3,265,000 

2.020,000 

2,315,000 

2,385,(KK) 

1,605,000 

1.650.000 

1,039,916 

954,489 

865,021 

772,929 

1,466,161 

1,734,551 

1,644,624 

1,594,369 

1,546,219 

1.496,719 

Coverage 

2.79 

2.93 

2.74 

3.12 

3.38 

2.97 

3.31 

4.35 

4.03 

4.67 

NOTES: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements. Certain information for prior periods is not shown since it was not previously 
maintained by the City. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 15 - DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaiidfled) 

Fiscal 
Year 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

(1) 
Population 

67,842 

66,702 

66,715 

66,820 

66,975 

67,064 

66,993 

67,089 

67,451 

66.657 

Personal 
Income 

1,613,418,444 

1,386,306,964 

1,663,338,380 

1,708,854,680 

1,755,079,875 

1,748,626,736 

1,731,233,106 

1.761,421,695 

1,832,508,768 

1,810,937,376 

(2) (4) 
Per Cafrita 

Personal Income 

23,782 

23,782 

24,932 

25,574 

26,205 

26,074 

25,842 

26,255 

27,168 

27.168 

(3) 
IJnemjdoyment 

Rate 

8.1% 

8.0% 

8.7% 

7.9% 

6.05-0 

6.7% 

6.45o 

5.95-'o 

5.7% 

5.0% 

(1) Source: American GDmnuinity Suivey Estimate for 2007-2010; July 2017 population estinates for 2011-2017. 

E^ept for 2009-2010, the figures represent the City's population for the preceding calendai' year'. 

(2) Source: Bureau of Economic Analysk, U.S. Departii^iit of Commerce. Figures apply to Jefteison Parish, in 

which the City of Kenner is an incoiporated UBmicipality. 

(3) Source: Louisiana Departn^iit of Labor, Research and Statistical Division for calendar years. Figmes 

apply to Jefferson Parish, in which the City ofKeiineris an incoq)orated mnnicipahty. 

(4) 2009 figure used for 2009,2010, and 2011; 2012 figure used tor 2012 and 2013; annual %ures used for each 

subsequent year. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 16 - PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

(Unaudited) 

June 30,2019 June 30,2010 

Dnployer 

Ochsner Medical Center 

Treasure Cliest Casino 

Pellerin Miliior Coip 

City ofKeiiner 

Cross Road Centers 

St. Theresa's Medical Center 

Altus (3obal Trade Solutions 

Revolution Foods 

C\'cie Construction Conyany 

Crowne Plaza Hotel 

Wal-Mart Stores Inc. 

Dillard's Inc 

Hoine Depot, Inc. 

Chateau Living Center 

Macv's Inc 

Employees Rank 

850 

725 

280 

165 

135 

80 10 

Percentage of 

Total City 
Eitiploynieut 

2.59«^o 

2.21% 

2.14% 

1.85% 

0.85% 

0.50«/o 

0.41% 

0.25% 

0.24% 

0.24% 

Einfdoyees 

768 

780 

525 

739 

600 

515 

200 

192 

200 

200 

Rank 

2 

1 

5 

3 

4 

6 

7 

10 

Percentage of 

Total City 
Emi^oyn^nt 

2.10% 

2.10% 

1.40% 

2.00«/o 

1.6W4 

1.40«/o 

o.smii 

0.503-O 

0.50«/o 

O.SO^-b 

Total 

Source: JEDCO, HDS DepaitiiKnt 

3.706 1.2 4,719 12.603-0 
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cm OF KENNER, LOEISIANA 
SCHEDULE 17 - FULL-TIME EQllVALENT aXYGOWRNMENT EMPLOYEES BYFUNCnON/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Full-time Equhalent Dty^oyees as of June 30 
Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

General goveniiiKnt 96 92 87 86 89 86 85 88 83 91 
Public safety 331 332 324 333 328 326 324 318 311 338 
Public works 73 72 72 73 73 69 68 69 73 84 
Health and welfare 61 53 36 36 36 35 34 38 34 34 
Culture and recreation 78 69 78 79 75 68 64 69 54 38 
Transit and urban development 16 13 15 14 14 14 14 12 19 21 
Miscellaneous 

Total 655 631 612 621 615 598 589 594 574 606 

Source: City ofKennerpayrolldepaitiiKnt. 
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cm' OF MNMR, LOllS UNA 
SCHEDIILEIS -0PER.4TINGINDICAT0RS BYRNCTiON 

L4ST TEN FISCAL \1.4RS 

Rscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscd Year 
Function 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Police 
Physical arrests 8.815 9,393 8,990 7,767 7,573 7.625 7,333 6,134 5,692 4,110 
Paiidng violations 467 449 496 928 447 470 418 471 384 548 
Traffic violations 

Fire 
nm 20,242 26,201 19,973 17,397 18,568 17,139 15,292 15,586 18,899 

EoKigency responses 3,588 3,454 2,555 1,662 1,366 L504 1,728 1,706 2,044 2,124 
Fires extinguished 137 186 120 190 136 189 146 113 203 151 

Refiise collection 
Refiise collected (tons per month) 160 160 3,065 3,314 3,129 3,254 2,908 2,914 3,049 3,089 
Recyclables collected (tons per month) N/A N/A N/A 4 11.15 11.00 30.00 80.15 74.85 52.84 

Other public works 
Street resurfacing (sq. ft.) 8,00) 488,735 117,972 285,813 39,609 124,569 3,705 3,890 3,890 4,6^ 
Potholes repaired 163 130 484 527 1,113 1,153 1,154 2,017 855 258 

Wastewater 
Average daily sewage treatment 12.2 10.7 10.7 10.5 9.1 9.5 10.6 11.8 10.6 10.6 

(mil per day) 

Source; City of Kenner Finance DepartrtKni. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 19 - CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fuuction 

Fiscal Year 

2010 

Police 
Stations 1 

Patrohiiiits 204 
Fire 

Stations 6 
Pieces of equipment 23 

Water 
Watermains (miles) 264 
Fiiebydrauts 1919 
Storage capacity •* 

(thousands of gallons) 
Ofherptiblic worls 

Streets (miles) 300 
(1) Highways (miles) 10 

Bridges 33 

Streetlights 6,992 
Traffic s^uals 19 

Health and welfare 

Culture and recreation 
Parks 3 
Playgrounds 12 

Art GaEeries and Museums 6 
GyiimasiunB 11 

Wastewater 
Sauitaiy and stonusewera (miles) ^5 

Treatment plants 1 
Low-lift stations 79 

Treatment capacity 13.5 MOD 

Rscai Year 

2011 

1 

201 

6 
23 

264 

1911 

10 
33 

6.992 

1 
79 

13.5 MC® 

Fiscal Year 

2012 

1 

204 

21 

1915 

10 
33 

6.992 

4 
II 
n 

10 

905 

1 
79 

11.288 MOD 

Rscal Year 

2013 

1 
210 

20 

264 
2,919 

300 
10 
33 

6.992 

4 
11 
7 
10 

905 
1 
79 

13.5 MOD 

Fiscal Year 

2014 

201 

6 
19 

264 
2,923 

300 
10 
33 

6,995 

1 
79 

13.5 M(2) 

Rscal Year 

2015 

182 

6 

264 

2.725 

10 
33 

20 

11 

10 

1 
79 

13.5 MOD 

Rscal Year 

2016 

181 

6 

264 

;726 

10 
33 

20 

10 

13.5 MOD 

Rscal Year 

2017 

1 
180 

264 

300 
10 
33 

',000 
20 

4 
11 
5 
10 

905 
1 

79 
15.2 M(3) 

Rscal Year 

2018 

1 
191 

6 
20 

264 
2.919 

300 
10 
33 

',060 
20 

4 
11 
5 
10 

905 
1 

79 
15.2 MGD 

Rscal Year 

2019 

1 
171 

5 

20 

264 
2.927 

300 
10 
33 

6,931 
20 

905 
1 

79 
15.2 MCS) 

Source: City of Kenner finance department 

** Ceitaiu infomation for prior periods is not shown since it was not previously maintained by the City. 

(1) Hallways are naintained by the State 

For the items not recorded, infoimatiou was not accuimlated in those years. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
EINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OE EINANCIAL STATEMENTS PEREORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council 
City of Kenner, Louisiana 

December 27, 2019 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the 
husiness-t5T3e activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of City of Kenner, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise City of Kenner, Louisiana's basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated December 27, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
City of Kenner, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum­
stances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Kenner, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of City of Kenner, Louisiana's internal control. 

www.dhhmcpa.com 
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cit}-' of Kenner, Louisiana's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Dup/antierf Hrapmann, Hogan & Maher^ LLP 

New Orleans, Louisiana 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
EOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

December 27, 2019 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council 
City of Kenner, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited City of Kenner, Louisiana's compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Kenner, Louisiana's 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. City of Kenner, 
Louisiana's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal 
programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of 
Kenner, Louisiana's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

www.dhhmcpa.com 
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Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Kenner, Louisiana's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Kenner, 
Louisiana's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, City of Kenner, Louisiana, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of City of Kenner, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Kenner, Louisiana's internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cit}-' of Kenner, Louisiana's internal 
control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
hinctions, to prevent, or detect and coirect, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

146 



The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Duplantier, Hrapmann, Hogan & Maher, LLP 

New Orleans. Louisiana 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

FEDERAL GE^NTOR/PA SS-THROU<MaU.hrrOR/' PROGilAM TITLE 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Daect Progiams; 

Coimminity Develqpmeiit Block G^it 

Commuiiily Devebprnent Block Grant 

Commiiniry Devebpmeiit Bbck Grant 

Conmnintty Development Block Q^ant 

Ccanmmiity Development Bbck Q:ant 

FEDERAL 
CFDA 

NUMBER 

14.218 

14.218 

14.218 

14.218 

14.218 

GRANT 

PASS-THROUGH 
ENTITY 2019 

IDENTIFYING FEDERAL 
NLMBER EXPENDFRRES 

-14-MC-22-C 
-15-MC-22-( 
-16-MC-22-( 
-17-MC-22-0008 

-18-MC-22-C 

19.570 

5L730 

44.215 

33.744 
320300 

TOTAL DEPARTK'IENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

469,559 

Direct 
Edward Byrne MeinorialJuscbe .Assfetance Q^ant Pro^am: 

Bulletproof Vest Partiierslip Grant Program 

Alcohol, Tobacco and Fireaims Trainaig Assitaiice Program: 

Passed Through Loukiana Commissbii Law Enforcement: 

Narcotbs Criminal Patrols Pro^'am 

Passed Through Louisiana Commksbn Law Enforcement: 

Crime Victim Assistance Program 
Victim Assistance Grant 

16.738 
16.738 

16.607 

16.012 
16.012 

16.73^ 

16.575 
16.575 

2017-DJ-BX-0277 
20178-DJ-BX-0277 

Unavailable 

18-NOR-407-AFF 
19-NOR-407-AFF 

4597 

4314 
3812 

3.281 
6.160 

9.441 

8,125 

4,568 
2.411 
6.97^ 

15.550 

9,900 
8.348 

18.248 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

NATIONAL HIGHWAY TRAITIC SAFETA" ADMNISTRATION 

Passed throng Louisiana Hi^way Safety Commissbn 

Traffic Safety Overtine Enforcement Program 

Traffb Safety Overtime Enforcement Program 

58.343 

20.601 

20.601 

2018-30-31 

2019-30-31 

9352 

7.263 

TOTAL NATIONAL HIGHWAY SAFETY ADMINISTRATION Total 20.601 16.615 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

(CONTINUED) 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

Di^ect; 

Staffing for Adequate Eire & Emergency Response 97.083 EMW-2017-FH-00322 

Passed throng LouLiana Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency PrepareAiess: 

Rivertown Soutlt Kenner Draina^ Project 97.039 FM.4 2011 PW 2RRFI 

374.917 

165.041 

TOTAL DEPARTK'ENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY 

Passed Tlirougli Jefferson Pai^isli Sheriff's Offfce 

Gulf Coast High Intensity Dnig Trafficking Areas 

Gilf Coast Higli Intensity' Drug Trafficking Areas 

Gulf Coast High Intensity Dmg Trafficking Areas 

539.958 

95.001 

95.001 

95.001 

G17GC0001A 

G18GC0001A 

G19GC0001A 

TOTAL OFFICE OF NAHONAL DRUG CONTROL POUCY 

DEPARTMENT OE TRANSPORTATION 

Passed Tluougli Louisiana Depailinent of Transportation and Development 

Total 95.001 

5.696 

7,214 

12239 

25,149 

Veterans Boulevard r ighting Airport 20.205 H0i0973 99293 

Fire Station Relegation 20.205 H013104 1,551,099 

Aber^en Street Improvemetns 20.205 H011276 2,793.988 

Statewide Flood Control Prop:am Pliase III 20.205 H010107 1,217.075 

Cliateau Boulevard Resufacing 20.205 HOI 1007 168,064 

Williams,TJS 61 Intei"secticin Improvements 20.205 HO11457 604242 

Total 20.205 6.434,461 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTAnON 6,434,461 

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE ; 7.544,085 

accouyanying Notes to Schedule ofEjqtendttures of Federal Awards are an integral part of tliis schedule. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARD EXPENDITlTiES 

JUNE 30, 2019 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
award activity of the City of Kenner. Louisiana under programs of the federal government for the year ended 
June 30, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code ofFe(feral Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the City of Kenner, Louisiana, it is not intended to and does not present the 
Imancial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the City of Kenner, Louisiana. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments or the cost principles 
contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

3. INDIRECT COST RATE: 

The City of Kenner, Louisiana has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance. 

4. SUBRECIPIENTS: 

There were no awards passed through to sub-recipients. 

5- LOAN PROGRAMS: 

City of Kenner, Louisiana had outstanding loans with the Louisiana Department of Enviromnental 
Quality at June 30, 2019. Loans made during the year are incliKled in the federal expenditures presented in 
the Schedule. The balance of loans outstanding at June 30, 2019 consists of: 

CFDA Number Program Name Outstanding Balance 

66.458 LDEQ #3 814,988,822 
66.458 LDEQ #4 17,600,000 
66.458 LDEQ #5 6,291.497 

150 



CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QLTISTIONED COSTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

A. SUNIIVIARY OF ALT)ITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements: 

Type of auditor's rqDort issued; unmodified opinion. 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 
• Significant deficiencies identified that 

are not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X no 
• Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no 

Federal Awards: 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 
• Significant deficiencies identified 

that are not considered to be material 
weaknesses yes X no 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for the major federal award programs: unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be yes X no 
Reported in accordance with Uniform Guidance, Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 200.516(a) 

Identification of major program: 
CFDA Number Expenditures 

Federal Aid Highway Planning and Constriction Program 20.205 $ 6,434,461 

Dollar threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs: $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QLTISTIONED COSTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

B. FINDINGS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED UNDER GENERALLY ACCEPTED 
GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS 

None 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - NIAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

None 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA 
SUIVEVIARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR JUNE 30,2018 

A. SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

2018-01: Amended Budget 

Condition 

The City did not submit a revised amended budget for the Fire Protection Fund, a special revenue fund, 
which had actual expenditures exceeding budgeted expenditures by more than 5%. 

Criteria 

A revised amended budget is required to reflect a change in operations when actual expenditures exceed 
budgeted expenditures by more than 5%. 

Effect 

A revised amended budget has not been submitted as required. 

Cause 

The excess expenditures were primarily due to a shortage of fire personnel, w^ich required additional 
overtime to be worked in order to satisfy the needs of the City. 

Recommendation 

We recommend the City more closely-monitor the budget and actual expenditures of all special revenue 
funds so that the budget can be amended in a timely manner if necessary. 

Status 

The City monitored the budget throughout the 2019 fiscal year and there were no violations of the budget 
act during the year ended June 30. 2019. 

153 



CITY OF KENNER, EOUISIANA 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR THE PERIOD JULY I, 2018 
THROUGH JUNE 30, 2019 
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December 16, 2019 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council 
City of Kenner, Eouisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were 
agreed to by management of the City of Kenner, Eouisiana (the City) and the 
Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana (LEA), on the control and compliance 
(C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. Management 
of the City of Kenner, Louisiana is responsible for those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs. 

This agreed upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance 
with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing 
Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of 
the specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation 
regarding the sufficiency of these procedures described below either for the 
purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows; 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1) We obtained the entity's written policies and procedures and 
determined whether those written policies and procedures addressed 
each of the following financial/business functions, as applicable: 

a) Budgeting, including 
amending the budget. 

www.dhhmcpa.com 

Members 
American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants 
Society of LA CPAs 

preparing, adopting, monitoring, and 



Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council 
City of Kenner, Louisiana December 16, 2019 

Written Policies and Procedures (Continued) 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all 
collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation 
with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation 
of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confinnation). 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing and (2) reviewing and approving time 
and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) 
required approvers, and (5) monitoring card usage. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-
1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor 
possible ethics violations, and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected 
officials, annually attest through signature verification that they have read the entity's 
ethics policy. Note: Ethics requirements are not applicable to nonprofits. 

j) Debt Ser\dce, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) EMMA reporting requirements, 
(3) debt reser\'e requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

k) Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity including (1) identification of critical data and 
frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated 
from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and 
software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed 
to recover operations after a critical event. 



Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council 
City of Kenner, Louisiana December 16,2019 

Written Policies and Procedures (Continued) 

Results: 

No findings were noted as a result of applying the procedure above. 

Bank Reconciliations 

2) We obtained a listing of the City's bank accounts from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. We also asked management to identify the City's 
main operating account. 

a) Bank reconciliations were prepared within two months of the related statement closing 
date; 

b) Bank reconciliations included evidence that a member of management or a board member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue cash had reviewed each bank 
reconciliation; and 

c) Management had documentation reflecting that it had researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for more than twelve months as of the end of the fiscal period. 

Results: 

We noted one instance of no documentation indicating that reconciling items that have 
been outstanding more than six months were researched as of the end of the fiscal year for 
one of the five accounts selected for testing. 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

3) We obtained from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger was 
complete. We randomly selected 5 reimbursements, obtained the related expense 
reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well 
as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established 
either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.govk 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 



Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council 
City of Kenner, Louisiana December 16,2019 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement (Continued) 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#lh). 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

e) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established 
either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

f) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

g) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy, and 

h) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Results: 

Upon applying the procedures noted above, we noted there was one instance in which an 
incorrect per diem rate for meals was used to calculate an employee's reimbursement. 
The rate used was the Jefferson Parish rate per the www.gsa.gov website, but they should 
have been based on the location the expenses were incurred. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Duplantier, Hrapmann, Hogan & Maker, LLP 

New Orleans, Louisiana 

http://www.gsa.gov

